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TR Property Investment Trust plc

The investment objective of TR Property
Investment Trust plc is to maximise
shareholders’ total returns by investing

in the shares and securities of property
companies and property related businesses
internationally and also in investment
property located in the UK.

INTRODUCTION

TR Property Investmenl Trast ol {the "Company” o the
“Trust™) was formed in 1905 and has been a dedicated
oroperty investor since 1987 Tag Compdny 15 an
Invesiment Trust and 1ts shares are premium isted on the
London Slock £xcharge

BENCHMARK

The benchmark 15 the FTSE EPRA/NARLH Deveioped
EJrope Capped Net Total Reluin ndex n Sterling.

INVESTMENT POLICY

The Compdry seeks Lo achieve its ofbjective by investing in
snares and secunties of propeity (ompantes and properly
related busimesses on ar nlermatioral dasis, although,
wilh @ Pan-Furopean benchmark, the majonty of the
Invesiments will be located 1 that geographical area. The
Company alsg 1mvests innvestment property located in
the UK cnly.

Furlther detaiis of the Investment Pclicies, the Asse!
Allocation Guidehnes and paiicies regarding me use of
geanng are set out 1n the Strategic Report on page 25 and
the entire portfolio 1s shown o page 18

INVESTMENT MANAGER

BAO Investment Busingss Limeed acls a5 the Company's
alternative investment fund manager {"AIFM™) with
po:lioho management delegated to Thames River Capital
LLP (“the Portfolio Manager” or “the Manager™) Mdraus
Phayre-Mudge has managed the port'olio since 1 Azl
2011 and beer part of the Fund sanagement team sice
a7

INDEPENDENT BOARD

The Directors are all independent of the Manager and
meel reqularly o consides ipvesiment strategy, to momtor
adherence to the stated objective and investment pelicies
and to review performance Details of how the Board
operates and fuifils 1its responsibifities are set out in the
Report of the Direcions o page 413

PERFORMANCE

The Finanaal Highlights for the carrent year are sel out
apposite and Historicdl Performance can be found on
page 3 Key Performance Indicalors are set out in the
Strateqic Reporl on pages 26 and 27

RETAIL INVESTORS ADVISED BY IFAS

The Company currentiy conducls 1ts a*fairs so that ils
shares can he recormnmended by Independent Financiai
Advisers {"IFAS™) i the UK to ardingry refal investons 1n
accordance wath the financiaf Congquct Authority ("FCAT)
rules i 1elation Lo non-mainstream investmeant products
and mtends Lo continue to do so The shares are excuged
from the FCAS restiictions, which apply Lo non-marmsliean:
nvestmenrt producls, becanse they are shares (n an
authonsed investment trust

FURTHER INFORMATION

General sharehalder information and detasis ol how 1o
invest in TR Property Invesiment Trust ule, including an
imvastment thraugh an 15A 01 savig scheme, car be
found an pages 11 and 112 Tris mlorrabion can a'se be
found on the T-ust’s website wiww tipronerly com

TR PRCPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Financial Highlights and Performance

Year ended
31 March

- 7 2021
Balance Sheet

Net asset value perf share 217.97p
Shareholders’ funds (£'000) 1,326,433
Shares in issue at the end of the year {m) 3174
Nideht'-" - 16.5%
share Prite

Share price 392.50p

ﬁ\arkel capitalisation £1,246m

Year ended
31 march
201
Revenwve
Revenue earnings per share ) 12,25p
Dividends?
triterim dividend per share 5.20p
Firal dividend per share 9.00p
Total dividend per share - 14.20p
Performance: Assets and 8enchmark
Net Asset Value total retyrn®¢ +20.7%
Benchmark tetal return® +15.9%
Share price total retuin* - +28.3%
Ongoing Charges™*
including pesformance fee +1.40%
Excluding performance fee +0.65%
Excluding performance fee and direct propertycosts _ _*063%

Year ended

31 March
220 change
358.11p +16.7%
1,136,453 +16.7%
3174 +0.0%
e
317.50p +23.6%
£1,008m +23.6%

Year ended

31 March
200  _  Change
. 1asp ~16.2%
5.20p +(0.0%
3.80p +2.3%
M A

1.5%

-14.0%
. _e8% _

+0.80%

+(.61%

_ *0.59%

1. et debt is the fatai vaiue of foan notes, {oans {including notianal exposure to CFO5 and Totaf Return Swap) fess tash as a proportion of net asset value

2 Dividends pet share are the dividends in espect of the financial year ended 31 March 2021, An intenm dividend of 5.20p was paid in January 2021. A final dividend of

900D (2020 8.80p) will be paid on 4 August 2021 {a sharehoiders on the register on 18 fune 2071,
The shares wil be quoted ex-dividend on 17 june 2021

3. The NAV Totai Return for the year 15 calculated by reiavesting the dividends in the assets of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date Dividends are deerned
to be remvested on the ex-dividend date as this 15 the protocal used by the Campany's benchmark and other indices,

4 The Share Price Total Retutn 15 calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the shares of the Campany tiom the relevant ex-dividend date.

5 Ongoing Charges ase calculated in accordance with the AIC methodology The Ongoing Charges saties provided 1n the Company’s Key Information Document are

calculated in hine with the PRIIPs regulation which 1 different to the AiC methodology.
6. Considered o be an Aliemative Performante Measure as defined on page 98.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST



Historical Performance
For the years ended 31 March

0M 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 m

Performance for the year:
Total Return (%}

NAY® 154 -85 21.5 224 7283 8.2 8.0 B5  N -11.5 20.7
Benchmark® 5.2 -8.9 178 14.9 233 5.4 6.5 10.2 56 -14.0 15.9
sl'af?fnief’ N 12.6 -9.5 258 377 25 1.6 21 255 62  -168 8.3

Shareholders’ funds (£'m)

Total 670 588 684 809 1,010 1,065 1,8 1,256 1,328 1,136 1,326
Ordinary shares 531 470 684 809 1,010 1,065 118 1,256 1,328 1,136 1,326
Sigma shares®™ B M S - - - (SR S
Ordinary shares

Net revenue (pence per share)

Earnings 694 707 674 8.09 8.89 8.36 11.38 13.22 14.58 14.62 12.25
Dividends'® 6.00 46;,56_0 ) 7.00 745 7.70 5_335 w 10.50 12.20 13.5077 g1409 ) 14.20

NAV per share (pence) -l 18360 1525 25494 31872 33556 35242 395.64 418.54 A35§1_1 1797

Share price (pencel_r 17710 15450 186.30 24750 31050 29750 31450 382.50 39400 31750 392.50

indices of growth

Share pricet” 100 87 105 140 15 68 78 216 22 179 222
Net Asset Value® 100 89 104 123 154 162 w0 W91 202 173 202
Dwidend Net® 100 10 w14 128 139 WS 203 225 233 237
RPI 00 104 107 1O ™ m me 120 123 126 128
Benchmark® 100 8 9 105 126 130 134 144 M7 123 140

Figures have been prepared in accordance with IFRS.

(A The NAY Tota! Return tor each year is talculated by reinvesting the dividends in the assets of the Company fiom the relevant ex-dividead date Dividends are
deemed to be renvested at the ex-dividend date as this is the protocel used by the Company's benchmark and other indices. This 15 considered 10 be an Afternative
Performance Measure as defined on page 58.

(B) Benchmark index: composite index comprsing the FISE EPRA/NARET Developed Europe TR Index up 1o March 2013, and thereatter the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped Index. Source: Thames River Capital

(€} The Share Price Total Return is calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the shares of the Company from the relevant ex-dwidend dale
(D) The Sigma share class was launched in 2007 and Sigma shares were redesignated as Ordinary shares on 17 Decernber 2012,

(E} Dividends per share in the year to which their declaration relates and not the year they were paid.

(r) share prices only. These do not reflect dividends paid

{G) Capital only values. These do not reflect dividends paid.

{H) Pnice only value of the indices set outin (B) above.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 3

MIIAYIAD



i

Chairman’s Statement

Pavid Watson
Chairman

Whilst underlying earnings were initially
impacted by the pandemic, the message
from the vast majority of our invested
companies, which largely excludes
owners of retail property, has been a
considered and strong resumption in
dividends.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

INTRODUCTION

The stari of this reporting penod was very Cose 1o the
recent COVID-19 influernced nadir o global equily rarkets
nMarch 2020 Since then equity markets have been
deterrminediy focused on tre future rather than reflecting
an the more rmmediate economic data and humar
tragedy of the pandemic As a result, 1o akie 1o report
healthy reiums for the year wiin @ net asset value {"NAV")
tatal reiurn of 20 7o, well ahead of the benchmark total
return of 159% The shae price tolal return was even
sionger al 28§ 3% as the discoun’ rarowed over the year

Stocx markets fiave taker great comfoit from tre huge
amourt of cenira' hank shimulus and state aid for hotr
coiporates and mdividuals Since hovember 2070, this
sense of support has beer augrrented by ophimism
ailowang tne arnouncerents and subisecuent rolloy! of a
range of vacoine progremimes

The crsis has forced @ diamanc charga i the way we work,
consume and relax Cver the ast year our masage nert leam
has pondered not only (e pace of these cianges across 3
wnde 1ange of property seclars bul &isa ther sustamabihity

once the woild "everts to "tre rew orma!”

Ouer ire last quarter o e Imancal yed  under review
andnta the start ol tre 2wy ooe, we Nave seen very
SIAMate share price mowe ™e s g5 mivastans rol4ted
froir comparies offenng the sefely of secd e income
woweands ose offenng greater nsk. ericularty wrers tre
companies weie Fading at 22 discourts 1o therr assat
Alug yodr ~anagac’s report w1 examune 1 more Jetai
roys e portehie shouctie fas evntvad thragg b these

e aag i0@iors




REVENUE RESULTS AND DIVIDEND
Earnings for the vear were 12 250 per share, 10% luwe)
than the pnor year earmings of 14 62p

The headine eainings pel share figure (s shghtly deceptive,

earnings before tax were 24% lower than the previous yedr,

but a significant tax refund and some further prion penod
withholding tax recovenes 1educed the revenue Lax charge
from an effective 1ate of 71 3% 10 2020 Lo just 19% for the
financial year Lo March 2027 Further delails of this are set
outn the Manager’s Repart.

[71e Board has announced a finat dividend of 900D per
share, banging the full year dividend to 14 20p per share
(2020- 14 00p) an overall Increase of 4% on the prior year
dividend The Board 15 conscous of the income aspirations
of scme of our investor base and, althougn this dividenc
15 not fuly coverec, the Company has significant “evenue
reserves avaltable As lorg as the Beard has a reasorable
expeclation of income returning 1o previaus levels i the
medium term, the Board 15 happy to maintain a modest
‘evel of dividend progression

REVENUE OUTLOOK

within our partfoho, the manaqges anucipates income

for the year to March 7077 to be split into three broadiy
equal parts with one third suffeang a reduction and In
some cases significant culs or even suspensions, a third
with income returning to pre-pandemic levels, ang the
balance offening some level of Inccease We do not expedt
total Income levels to retyrn to pre-COVID-19 leveis wilhin
the current financial vear githough we do expect an
improvement relative to 2020/2°

Alter allowing for the prososed dividend, revenue ceseives
will stll amount to 12 18p per skare guving plenty of
cazacily for the board 1o supplement the dividead again

N 2021/22, providing a returm to pre-Covd levels ¢an
reascnably be antigpated in the mediam term

Ordinary Share Class Performance: Tatal Return over 10 yearss {rebased)

200 B Benchmark Total Return [l TR Property Share Price Total Return ™, TR Property Net Asset Value Total Return

Mar-10 Mar-1 Mar-12 Mar-13 Mar-14 Mar-15

Mar-16 Mar-17 Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-20 Mar-21

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Chairman’s Statement by o)

NET DEBT AND CURRENCIES
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Manager’s Report

LE

‘ Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Fund Manager

Capital is clearly seeking real assets.
There has been several recent instances
of private equity acquiring listed
properties companies. This will continue
if public companies are undervalued.
Such market dynamics provides us with
a strong valuation underpin.

38 TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

PERFORMANCE

The et Assel Vaiue totaf return for the year Lo 31 March
2021 wias 20 7%, ahead of the benchmark total return of
15 9% Al the interim stage, | reported that Contirental
European property companies had significantly
oulperformed their UK counterparls (relurns of 11 3%, v

2 ) The second kall saw the complete reverse The UK’
perormance mn e second hall was so strong that the

7 month pesformance of 1919 (in GBP) outperfoimed
Contiental Furope ot 18 7% {(In FUR)

The 1t impact of tre pandemic on Furopean real estate
equilies saw the bercimark fall 36% fom the ye-Covid
seak of b Febroary 1o the tough on 18 March 2020 Ou
firancial year 1serelore started cose o these depressed
eve s and the sieady recovery since then s reflected in
the heany figuies fan the year under revieyy However it
3 \.,-vorzl‘ nat mg that collecively the seclor remar=s really
154, Beiow e ore-Covid peak

This extrandinary year has c\e':w been ke ro athe are
Fe gull in erfor mance of the different reat esiate seclors
(ara therr respecive hsted comoawc—s) TeguUires e same
adjective The vear canr be peatly dwided mla pre g post

e yactne arnouncenent

From &grch to Oclober imvesions focused on ove g
sustairable, sandemic proof inczme such 45 residential,
up“-ma'ke's anc neailnca:e elangside logehics,
WATETOUSING and N usingl where I‘i‘ daderivig terants’
DJsIresses w remaired opes 21017 Mmany (3ses

pere rng (oRSy™er fanng se0iors sach as retar
3UTENS, 10IE1 300 iRIsUrE e <quﬂz*’ :
unie2ise of par Burcoearn “2at el
bespoke 5 oups ars over 12 7

2527 our logisac

DJATIES NI 24
a1 the m;h o

[ VAL e
rootar *.:.—?fnf bJ\H'I-” back 17t

e carutj-f’e,' ‘fam“-; Se07s STNkS 2¥poses o Thase



sectors bad been st andmg at large discounts given the
markel’s expectahan of further asset value declines and
they enmoyed significant price 1ecovery Stocks such as
Hammerson and Shaftesbury, who had both cained oul
emergency capial reises {more on this later), enjoyed
100% and 85% price appreciation from thenr respective
(pre-vaccine anrouncement) capital 1dise prices

Tha Trust was defensively positioned as we entered the
pandermic with overweights to European PRS (prvate
renled seclod) particularly in Germany, supermarkets

(UK and Nordics), healthcare (mainly UK) and loqistics /

industrial across both the UK anc Europe. These exposures

drove much of the relative outperformance from March to

hovember

tondon exposed stocks syffered particuiarly as office
workers nave nol returnad (we estumate office utilisation
rates at 025% vaisus a Continental aveiace of over 50%)
and ts corbied with the collapse i tounsm (both
domestic and mternational) has lemporanly bollowed out
odr global aly Our UK office exposure was concentraled
(1 decenyansec offices through <05 and Mokay vwhilst

we avoided Landor retall focused names such as Capeo
ard Shaftesbury s well as those businesses with shorl
occupational leases such as Workspace

As ne reliel / reopening / refiation” trade gathered
momertury, « closed our underweight exposure to
Earopear snopping centres, bought back irto some Cent-al
Loncon relail and renewed our exposure to affice markets
paiticulaily those aties vwith the shorter commute times
Essentiaiiy | was sl Sl““\,mq away from the largest two
conurhauons (Londor and Pans) whist agging (o smahes
ones such as Madnd ang Dublin and maintaining expas.Jre
to decentalised office seclars 19 the UK, Sweden and
Germany

The pam*-ﬂm\r Fas turned much onoats head” and inoul
carrer o7 tae egaity market 1t was the perfarmance ol
SwiIss property companies which wias much weaker than
Fistory would have predicted Traditiona™y a safe naver,
nese siocks aid notinval y recover from the March lows
with irvestors focused on ithe problematic relail exposure
of the largest nsled corpames We continue 1o be
underweight the group
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Another posilive surpnse has been in setl-storage which
reported very steady numbers through the worst of the
year Whilst our stock selection in the UK was correct
{Safestore total return +27% versus Big Yellow +14%), the
runaway sucgess was Shurquard, the Continental player
returning -48%, which we didn own In our defence, the
stock enjoyed stiong demand from index trackers as i
ertered varous henchmarks midyear

wnst of 2020 was an mderstandab\y sundued
perod for Maa corparate activily with ore particular
exceplion, Norweqian offices Eritra (where we were 3
top 20 sharehalder) was the subject of a bidding wa
beltweer two Swedish isted players, Castellum and
Samhallsbyggradsbolaget (also known as SBBY Whilst
neither successfully gained cantrol, the share price tofal
return was 57%, our most successful investment in the
penod

The portfolo has some geanng This was reduced 1n
February and March 2020 but has subsequertly returned
to pre-pandernic tevels Why have geanng in vatatile
umes? The Trust continues (o take advantage of

closed endeq stiuciure aad holds a aumber of lhiquid
small cap stocks Trhese wel-ran companies (even when
exposec to oulperforming subseclors) o'ten suffer from
limited irvestor atlention, benig deemed tog small As @
corsequende, n nsing marka's tney often underperform
their larger brethren (In market parlance hen ‘hela’ s less
than one) Adding some geanng helps compensate for
these lower beta names Our exgenience 1$ that aver ime
the anderlying property fundamentals will be recogmised
and.af not, then the market will take hem privae of
merge them tegether Our physical property exposuie also
sils oulsice our benchmark and additional geanng ensures
Ihat we are ro UFIdEF"—‘XDOSEG 10 equities versus our
benchmark qwen that a proportion of capral 15 investec
physical prope-t

OFFICES

Of all tne segmer:s of the cammeridal real estate
landscape, the futue demand for offices 1emains the
Fardest (o forecast The lwo andeniable consequences of
e pandermic, o this asset cless, has beer the realisalion
that employess of corporates of all sizes can work
remotely dor long nerodshif ieguired anc secandly that

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 9
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Manager’s Report " -

the next generation of ‘bestin ¢lass office accommaodation
will be utinsed very differently with tenanis having new
pronties Built into these demanes will be the overarching
need lor energy efliciency, carbon neutrality and
sustanabiity through the h'e cycle of the buillding

The Lake up figures for the last year (across the 15 major
alies we mornitor) offers itte comparalive value given the
nability for businesses 1o physically relocate v many of
these rmarkets from March 2020 Taking Loadon as a case
11 poirs, Savills -eportes thal Wesl Fag lake up lell fom
44mosg [Lan 2019 to Y 7moanr 2020 Office utilisation 1ales
through 2020 aird nto 2021 have vaned hagely A oroad
e of thumiby was that the ‘arge the aly (a1d the longe:
the average comimdie ame) tre owel the affice ulilisation
lale Gene aiy the smaller lies also hac higher ievels of
commuating by prvate lranspart ar whee workers were
gsirg overgrodre public ranspott Stanginavian and Swiss
Tities nawe seen elrost mormalised otilisatior rates wilst
London and Pans remar- sub 30% Logking farward, what
15 rportart 19 us 15 the amodnt of news space wihich was
stheduied o complete (corstruction was halted ‘ar ver
short penods in most markets) and wheiner there are
sIgns o demeanc as we move 1710 112 265" vacdng perod

LOOKING A0105s Lo one as 4 wrole, the comiinee #fact of
recucec 245N activily anc (onstruction comp-e 1ors ied
19 4r average of 6 94 (BN

Lo T00bos moredse in vacancy

data) Tris single stalisac cleary hices a wade range of
evels Lrsurusing

Pa.ts bave expanenced
#-2 Hut Dubhin
IRCEASING 1

LGICOM 30
3 h[}l*l '5’#- 0 neaily

...(d"a,

e histancz

FCANC, N A, USs PO TTe ance e

nsJlated ~ost merkets, ih modest fow

ey ar fora

202D g

Arcritecy e Anryal 1a, R
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a 27% dechine in planning applcations for buildings

over 20 stereys in 2020 wnen compared with 2019 Wwe
were surpnsed that the fall wasn't larger but 73% of all
applications were 1n the latter part of the year and hints at
developer canfidence regarding demanc for new buld

lnvestment demand has remained very sesilient alirost
regardless of shart-term weakness 1n occupational
markels Ihe weight of capital seeking rea assets s

a theme which will recur through this repart The fse

in the torg end of the curve as the reflato theme
gathers momertur 15 provirg very camdjmg for lixed
ncore stictures H|g.h. qually offices - offenng large iot
sizes - with secure income delivening 3 5-4% nel yiewd

ts attzactive versus negative yielding soveeigr bonds
Furiher up the risk cutve, oaporumsic capital alsa remains
vely athve and isted deveropment spedialists such as
Grea: Port and tstates anc Deswent Lordon have found 1l
hard to depioy canital amicst fierca compeiitian

The 2521 C3RF EMFA Pweslon tenbions Survey gnlg
Londe= as shli the most atnacve aiy for mvestmert
It Farope with an estimaled €40-45bn of giokel equity
loakiig to be depoyed into e marke: across all Lypes
hutldings This 1s tre highes: figure since the sumvey
siarting dacking demarc in 2012 Whu'st transacuion
wolames slowed last yedr, the h7st twa manths of 2021
{zradiionalny a quiel Lire) nave seen yolumes reach
£875m greater thar the same penodin 2019 FatL of the
london atrection 1s hat vields didnt como ess dunng
fhe Brexis ancarterly makag e aly oo Tuch cheaper
tran omes wg Baropeat angs Po >r sme FL-UK Trade 2nd

SO e LAUANGe CortUng, e e

2e2mied Phe mes ﬂ 100G el e ramsnt ta loge at ted

?,wd? w2 Essennzle, 17 fast mipnng marke!s e pJ 1508
bain cate St arksts knos




this and retail landlards acrass the globe have been
trading at very large discounts to e (i langer vahd)
last published figures

The woes of 1etail are well understood The pandemic
has accelerated tierds which were wel! established
Reopening ol ecenomies will see footfal return to
shopping centres bul the fevels af sustainable reais
remain the subject of market farces In the UK the loss
of a huge numbe: of well krown biands enther through
bankruptcy ar retreas bas 1esulted in average vacancy
levels 1N shopping centies reaching aver 15% (MSC! data)

This means the negotiation boot rermains fimly on the
terants foat and we predict a furiher 1% falts 10 rental
valies The ore area where there are clear sigrs of pnce

stanihisatior s in retzil warenousing Open at with ';\emy‘
of free patking. his type of retall asset sits well 12
omni-channe’ environmert where retailer maigims are
maximised trough click and coilect. Affordabiiity s the
eternal watchword and whilst there are some paiks wilh
very high rents (ofien ‘ashion retader lec) the majorily will
see modest dechnes i rental values Occupancy cost ratios
are also not ourdened by escalating service charges

Acioss Farope, the proidre 15 moie nuanced Valuers are
even male waservalive than their UK counterparts and
capiialisation 1ates are yel to move matenally In some
countnes, tetallers have been given huge ameunts of
government suppoit and as a result rental delinguency

15 gereraliy lower tharin the LK In acdiior, many
shoppirg centres are archoied Sy hypermarkels {(whicn
have remained openy and not department stores {a UK/
LS concept no longes 1 for puipose seyond a Randful

of tounst desiinations such as Selfndges and Ca:enes
tafayette) Thers have been lower levels of 1etailer
bankruplcy acrass Continental Europe and we put

this down to two factars ‘ess averrenting and te UK
1nselvency IPg\SIa ior On this [atier point. a “uge number
of UK “etailers have taken advantage of the Cva (company
voluntary admimisi-ation} to farce landiards {generaily 2
large creditor) (0 accept corporate reconstructions which
nduly damage then mterests AL ecant Hign Cauri ruling
invalying the overly indected 1elaller New ok, reirforced
this tenart fnendly legislalion
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Invesiors remain very arcumspect towards this asset class
Ieome nisecunty has tesulted i iavestons requinng mach
higher initial yields CERF estirate that UK pnime shopping
centre yields have moved from 4 5% Lo 7% i~ the last

5 years with poorer secondary sahemes In the high teens
ar Iiterally unsaleable Retal warehiousing kas hucked the
depressing trend at least from an investan perspeclive
Irvestors are increasingly confident that they are able

to measare tenant affordanility and this 15 the key to
determining praing In the [ast couple of months we have
seen campetiive bicding for @ number of retail warehouse
schemes, semething not seen since 2078

DISTRIBUTION AND INDUSTRIAL

UK sndusinal and logistics take up R 2 record 597m sq fi

in 2020 Whilss the pandemic suppressed dermand in many
olher parts of the property markel, 1t clearly simulated
logistics and business actvity whick utiised inaustnal
[poperly Amazon agam accounted for a sizeable (204)
portion of the actity ard 1t was this Xi segrmerd (250,000 -
s 1) which was the major beneficiary of the surging online
demaad The onhne share of relal sales 10se fom 192% 10
2075 to 279% 1 2420 hitand 3 aew hegh of 36.3% 1 January
2021 as we returnea Lo lockdowr This wili scae hack as we
renpern put the boost to onhine scale and efficiency 1s hee to
slay Suppiy has resporded but nas been more than matched
oy this ¢emand As a consequence, supply has fallen o
734m sq I cown 6% 01 the year and this Lghtening has
occlred 1n every size bracket,

Renzal growtn continues to mach on but there has been
a broadening of growlh rates across he reglons Greater
London ard the East Mid‘ands recorded growth of over
7o whilst average 1ates ac0ss the country at 3 9% Such
strong rental growth, the secure 1Income and the posilive
out'ook has diver both domestic and intemnationai buyers
lo pay ecotd prices for this sector whetner 11 1s last rue
urhar units, XL big boxes or terraces of well located
Irdusiia units Prime vields are 35 to 4% and even shart
Ircome 15 10t gelerning investors as evidenced h\, ::m sale
1 Brsiol distnbulion umt al 35% rime yield w
35 vears unexpired,

> health 1s evident across
10 BNP take up inceased

The same picture of rude
Continental Lurope According

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 11



12

Manager’s Report ..~ -

14% across the € laigest Enopean economies and vacarcy
‘ates dropped {o 5 5%, ther lowest and all against 2
packdrap of a sharp contraction i GOP Agan il was a
surge 1N e-commerce and home delivery which drove
demand. Pime yields ac ross Europe tighlened 25b2s 17
2020, maiching the UK wath 10 signs of decompressran
even as e fong enc of ll‘ﬂ curve nses Investment
dermand is ruly global with US and Astar institutional
capital comoenng with more domestic ;ong term capiias
all detenminec 1o particpate 10 ts structural shis

RESIDENTIAL

As expected the sector has remained nigh.y
duning the pandemic The meajoity of ourirvestmeris 3¢
i German ard Swedish housing nhL\e rerts are subect
to sale conuol The remainirg exposure 1s fincard a1d e
UK where renls a'e open-market Tre former ofler greate:
secnty with rems tied Lo 12dexation whi st the latter
oife s mote oppo a1ty o captare Mar<et growh Tut
with the comrersaraie nskif vacancy nises and mar<et
rents fall Ouneg the cisis the secunty of iIncome and wery
Mg occupancy ieveis resuied in ine sector retdiming s
poculanty Germat housing has expenenced orice J1ses 115
srtually alils sus-marees

resthert

As explemred 2arern Berlin remained e o4t 1er

the Siate of Bebrimposed ¢ S yea enl irees
(“Mietendecks ) The subsecuent Consutational Court ruling,
whicm con w"\r m-’]‘ “mt rent controls are celermired at the

Federal it we came st after e vear end 0
m\F—AgHI W2 f “ns f)u'(--ﬂ— 4r¢ tre share
prices of both

Phoerix Sor

ME Tar st

ALTERNATIVES
ThIS 70U 2000MHasses saClors

(supermakaty, mea thrars o8 -gniqaeln the {7515 ard

TR FROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

those which have not (student accommodation. hotels}
Share anice performarce was an ampafied refleclion of

107 oniy the underlying property pesfarmance but also

the dramatic shift ininvestor sertument Self starage
share prces have traditonally performed poarly in

SIWING @CONOTIC CONAILIONS as e Income 15 considersae
short termr and volatile However the pandermic has
focused investors’ mirds on the emerging strength of

this sectorwhere 3 small group of operators (irostly

isted companies) nave the finanaal muse e lo dominate
the price companson websites Adoter emerging trend
135 been the increasing business Js: 1gL o’ a preduct
raditionally seen as 1ne domam af pnvate custamers.
3usingsses Fawe seen the ments of immediate, hassle free
access to short oi longe: ten storage The supply ciair
distuplion duriig (e sandemic neightered the need for
space 45 e mantra became 3 little more Just 17 case ard
A Ll less st 1 ume” Our self SToragP group retuned
=d6a om ll e fow point (18:F Aarch 2020) o lwe end

of Octaner However, from hovember 2020 1o the erd of
Saich 2027 ey neve codlectively meturned just +479;
Aclassir eqar 1p e al 3 switchin sepament as invesions
el aveay from the ‘Lovic reative *mup into
celue naes whicn hac underperiormed a~d aoked
vary Ched) on istone melacs

WIrners'

¢ SUDSECLON we 2xDenences e

COmp eie reverse Student aLLom nocaucr businesses
coltapse ¢ meome and U ite {aur only

dnding rents which wa

LL‘ deoleted ther ap e The

f’v stucents Ligugh the iast

ho compiels malilily ‘0 many

yomacted 1 estio”

3

exposJdre) 2d the fe d i ref

correct PR S[raleg\a
|

w.—'f-am :

- bervean 1ih

SELTINE:
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GOpENING 07 fernaT,

begimimg of fosembe

e koo af e

[ -z
SIS S0 dhy




Incomne REIT raised & teial of £490m in three separate
transactions troudh the year and now ligs 4 markel

tap of over £900m Cbus also raised capraf (SEK

900m) I two anches to make further acquisitions The
farger supermarket operators have beer able to attract
customers through ther anline network which the hard
discounters {Lidl Aldy are not able 1o offer Volumes

and maigins will normalise pest the pancemic bul these
aperators have had the opportunity 1o prove the resiience
of their amni-channel model which utihses last mile
distibutior from then network of stores 1t1s ane of the
few parts of the retall landscape where physicat stores are
truly integral to the aniine journey

DEBT AND EQUITY MARKETS

Property companies iemaeied busy on debt refinanargs
throughout the pandemic and the huge amaurt of ceatral
bank support and government sumuius ensured a healthy,
liquid market where pncirg did not weakenr According o
EPRA, €15 2bn was raised 10 2019 at an average coupon of
189 and 2020 saw €15 6bn at 3 cost of 16% These figuies
are not diractly comparable as the rux of debt olfenirgs 1
gach penad was different 2ut they are a clear indicalor as to
the health and pnce stabilivy 10 the debt markets German
resicenlial companies were again busy with Yonovia raising
€2 5bnn four iransactions borrowing 10-yeal marney at 1%
tater i Oclober, Geana, Lutope’s laigest office REIT raised
C200m 0 a 2034 term band ar 0 86%

Fa:ly in the crisis. we saw 4 rumber o slrong businesses
tiading at premiems saise equity capital far oppartunistic
expansion 1his was P sectars witn ciear yrgerhying
demand, namely ngalincare (Assdra, Aedifica, Primasy
Health Properies), self-starage (Big Yellow), -ogqistics/
mdustnal {Londondetne, Segro, YGP ), supermarkels
{(Supermarket Income REIT, Tihus) and German 1esidential
{Vonovia, ADQ Properties. LFG) The Autamn saw
QPPOILAMSHC rases 10 Sweden ard honway (Balder.
Klovern and Norwegian Properlies) a region which had
experierced low levels of lockdown resinchons More
recently 1 February and March this year we saw repewed
activity in ine UK, as tne vacane 1ollout improved
senument, with raises from Target Healthcare, LXI Ttax
LJrobox and Supermarke! Income RET again. Conlineatal
Edropean raises in 2021 nave sofar heen confined 1o
healthcare (Cofirimmo) and student accommodauan (Xior)
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Post the sumimer we saw the beginning of an expected
surge of more defensive raises as companies finally
came under cashflow and valuation pressure In the end
it was just a hardhul of retail focused names who hag
seen mismanaging ther balance sheets long before

the pandermic Hammerson's £600m raise effectively
recapitabised the Balance sheet with a 24 for T nghls issue
accomnanied by the (previously announced) departure of
the CEO completing the overdue C-suite shuflle of Chan,
CEO and CFO .n late October, Shaftesbury annoJnced a
£300m placing and open offer tooxng back their uming
was spectacularly unfortunate as the announcement of the
first vacoires came less than a fortnight later

These game changing announcements iImmediately
aitered expectations and there 1s nowhe e Hetter o
llustrate the port than tne corporate saga at Unisail-
Rodamco-Westhield (URW). LRW had announcad a €9bn
‘Reset’ plan comprising €3 Shn caprial 1aise. dividend
cancellatton and a pianned €4bn af disposais A group

of activsst sharehaolders iead by eon Bressler (the (EQ

of Unthail from 1992 to 2006} launched a campaigh (o
oppose these AGM proposals and launch an alieinalive
strateqy which aid not include & deeply discounted capital
raise They proposed the sale of the US (ex Westlield)
portfalio and a retur to ther ioats as an owoer of

prme Eurnpean shopping centres Then Lrming was
lortunate, with the 10th Novemier AGK coming jus:
after the vacane annodancement and the improvement ir
Investo; sentiment even for deeply indebled businesses
Essentia’ly convinang investors that they didn’l need

10 put gooc meney after bad” and that the seli help
strategy would succeed They were successtul in therr
campaign and shareholders voied agast the ‘Reset’
pan. This ted to te depariuie of the Chairmen. (€O

and CFG and :ne prorotion of existung senior managers
to the Board The share price, which had troughed at

€35 per share, subseguently doubled amidst the ¢losing
of shoit osttions This corporate tale neatly encassuletes
tne diamatic change ir investor serliment (and picng
of sreviously anloved businesses) which we saw from
November onwards

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY - PROPERTY SHARES

Torraver (purchases and sales divided by two lotalleg
F468m equating o 36% of the average ret assets avel
the peniod. This was beoadly in ime with last year’s

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 13
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Manager’s Report v n .

We increased the capadity on our 1C3C loan facilily
the year anc the remaining loans were renewed at
existing levels We did see smallincieases on maqirs
an some renewals We also looked at the polenual (o
lake cut new or extend our longer-term debt Our Euro
denomunated ioan note 15 due fof repaymentin 2024 and
the Sterling note 1n 2031, aowever the ‘lexibility of e
short- term facilities 1s vatuable 1 more volatie mar<ets
and has certainly worked well ' us i the curent year

during

e continue 1o explore new oplians n g Tarkels

OUTLOOK

As economies emeige ory the gno of the pandemic
Investons heave (ocused on assessirg whetner the damage
{ar growtn) was temporary, lorger lasing of permanent
Real estate mveslo’s are no exceptior and 11e -ange

of premiums / discounts 1o net asse valdes ot histec
comoanies ghhghis the hreadth of expectations 3cross
the zropery speciru™ Ta difficuisy 15 that there 15 7o
precedent for the orofile of recovery 0 terant cemeand
across 50 muce of this asset class Clearly 2xisting
structural shifts have beer acceienated and news ores have

emerged wrich may Lm)xx&_‘ noe sermenent than the
markets Comently expect of this urce tainty leads Js 1o
focus o0 income sast ﬂlr‘ﬂhl\i i those ra<ets whee -

if demand coes return - 5UL’L;|‘,‘ 15 (-:msua-wed

enacl cematd s hard o gauge

HNENCING 2Ny Ime D“,_ mrke:’

Wk sl
fiom a bemgn

TLOM 45581 s AES TE
iIH(UIWG‘ﬁWHEt\S
et

RO

20D

o gsed groa
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fecerab vy resulting 12 tocal cives gething more corrol
over 1ents However the renl freeze in Berlin {over the
last 18 months) resultec in a reduction in the rurrter of
avadable apartments as well a5 a slowing in the pace o
new apariment delivery We teust (hat common sense
wii prevall over poiitical dogima Eisewhere, un
ncome streams are evident in supermarkets and in
parts af the nealthcaie markel Alongside index-lin<eg
sustairabihity we will also mainiain exposure Lo the
g eatest growlh ODDOI"J'H[IGS The stuctural shifts in
otai sehaviour are siiongoing Fvolutionin the speed
o‘ delvery and post pandemic supply cham dynarics
will dive growth across the lagistics andscape fram 'big
box 1o “asl mile” We will conhinue to own Lhe developers
sbere we see 1nceases 1n e value of lardoarks as well
as giowing development margirs 1nvesior demand for the
end product shows no sign of ahaling

dervalied

Ofice markels wilt remain volatile Busiresses will spend
tre working oul therr requirerments in a 2ost pandemic
*.'-.«‘()'11! in '.amun ara colaboration will dive office Usag
Tases that can be fulfifed witnout physical inte-action vl
be trnelabled for remoie workirg A ~ew balance will
develoe with oae suse fire certa m- e remium beng
attached Lo oestn class rewly hailt space wvith complete
erylio inetal cedentizls Devel )p»‘s vl respond 1o
this '”’mand and w e exoect an acceleatior 7 bulldings
sengidenutied for refursishmen: gatie” thar oreviously

el mgei Ozsolescerce of the existing affice stoc< will

Jre
Zde

TOUNET

17508 @ wrmnges s amben g
el thi of 2o e and delds
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Portfolio

Distribution of Investments
as at 31 March

2021 Ftrq) 2020 2020
o A £'000 % £000 %
UK Securities
- quoted 395,644 28.3 352,188 30.4
UK Investment Properties 83,0Mm 5.9 54,510 81
UK Total 478,715 342 446698 385
Continental Europe Securities
- quoted 921,801 65.3 708597 611
Investments held at fair value 1,400,516 100.0 1,155,295 99.6
~ CFO (creditor)/debtos’ (141) - 8,698 07
- TRS creditor? - (3,808 (0.3}
Total Investment Positions 1400375 1000 1,160,185 100.0
Investment Exposure
as at 31 March
piirg 2021 2020 2020
£'000 %o £000 %
UK Securities
- quoted 395,644 25.6 352,188 289
- CFD exposure? 45,411 29 32,257 2.6
~ TRS exposure’ - - 6,598 0.5
UK favestment Properties 83,071 55 94,510 78
l.lil( Tatal 524,156 34.0 485,553 398
Continental Europe Securities
- quoted 921,801 59.5 708,597 58.2
- CFD exposuse? 100,560 6.5 24,41 2.0
Total investment exposure’ 158517 1000 1218621 1000
Portfolio Summary
as at 31 March
2020 2012 2018 2017
£'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
Total investments £,401  £,155m  £1299m  EL36m  £1,145m
Net assets £1,326 £1,136m £1,328m £1,256m £1,118m
UK quoted property shases 28% 3% 33% 3% 29%
Overseas quoted property shares 66% 61% 59% 62% 63%
Direct property (externally valued) 6% 8% B% 7% 8%
Net Currency Exposures
as at 31 March
2020 2020
Company Benchmatk
o . % S
GBP o a0 268
EUR 53.0 531
CHF 6.7 6.6 79 19
SEK 12.9 129 1.0 1.3
NOK 13 13 U 0.9
1 Net unreahsed (loss)/gain on CFD contiacts held as balance sheet (creditar)/debtor.
2 Met unreahised loss on fotal return swap {1RS} contract held as balance sheet creditor
3 Gross value of CFD pasitions
4 Gross value of TRS position.
5 Total investments illustiating market exposure including the gross vaiue of CFD and TRS positions.

B UK Securities

B UK Peoperty
Continental Europe

94.5%

I Equities
B UK Property

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

17

n
-
g
9
"
2
[a]
Fod
m
-
Q
=
e




18

Investment Portfolio by Country

as at 31 March 2021

Austria
CAImmobilien

Belgium

warehousing and Distribution de Pauw
Aedifica

Cofinimmo

vGpP

Xior

Care Property

Montea

Intervest Offices & Warehouses
Wereldhave

Finland
Kojamo
Citycon

France
Argan
Gecina
Covivio
Klépierre
Alarea

Germany
Vonovia

LEG

Deutsche Wohnen
Aroundtown

VI8 Vermoegen
TAG Immobilien
Alstria

Ireland
Hibernia REIT
irish Residential Properties

Netherlands
Eufocommercial Properties
Unibail-Rodamco-Westfield
NSI

Norway
Entra

Spain
Arima Real estate
Mertin _

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUSY

9,092

9092

2477
16,502
13,677
8,070
5,926
4,841
2,329
1,923
247

78,286

17,500
2170

53,987
24,036
13,457
10,364
1,351
103,195

145,982
63,904
54,499
39,306
37,980
33,294
8,811

25,077
14,499
4,099
43,675

6199
16199 _

1,102
19,901
41,003

Market
value
%
0.6 Sweden
T 06 Kungsleden
T 7 wihlborgs
Cibus
1.8 Fabege
12 Castellum
1.0 Fastighets Balder
0.6 Nyfasa
04 Catena
03 Samhalls
0.2 Pandox
01
T 56 Switzerland
R
12
0.2 United Kingdom
14 SEGRO
Derwent London
Safestore Holdings
39 Landsec
17 Stenprop
1.0 Phoenix
0.7 Unite Group
| Sirius
74 Picton
(LS Holdings
Londonmetric Property
104 McKay Securities
46 Secure Income REIT
39 Supermarket Income REIT
28 Tritax Eurobox
27 PRS REIT
2.4 Assura
0.6 Target Healthcare
04 Primary Health Properties
27.8 Alrato Capital
Capital & Regional
Capitat & Counties
15
_.._.b2 T
17, Direct Property
CFD Positions
1.8 {included in current liabilities)
;03 Total Investment Positions
31 Companies shown by country of listing
_12
12
15
14
2.9

36,061
23,390
18,201
17,594
16,805
16,216
12,008
8,933
3,737
2,690
155,635

41,999

Market
value

n99

60,357
33,584
32193
31,327
30,477
25,213
25,143
22,241
21,330
20,077
19,903
18,104
15,551
9,614
7,634
6,189
5194
4,418
3,848
1,468
1,062
717
395,644

83,07

(141)

1,400,375

43
24
23
22
2.2
18
18
16
15
1.4
1.4
13
11
07
0.6
0.4
04
03
03
01
a1
01

T3

5.8
0.0

100.0



Twelve Largest Equity Investments

VONOVIA

1. VONOVIA (GERMANY)

shareholding value  £146.0m (£144.4m)

% of investment

portoliot 9.4% {11.8%)
% of equity owned 0.5% (0.7%)
Share price €55.70 (€44.86)

31 march JEEARSETG)
e 2021 I

SEGRO

2. SEGRO (UK)

31 March JERETG
s} 2020

Shareholding valye £67.8m  (£38.7m)

% of investment

portioliat 4%  {3.2%)
% of equity owned 0.6%  (0.5%)
Share price 933.0p  (764.0p)

LEG
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3. LEG (GERMANY)

31 March
2020

éﬁ;rehoiding value  £63.9m (£75.3m)
% of investment

portfoliot 4% {6.2%)
% of equity owned 0.9% (1.2%)
Share price €112.2  (€1027)

Vonovia is a2 German listed residential
company and the largest real estate
company in Continental Europe by market
capitalization.

At the end of 2020, the company owned
a portfolio of EURS6.8bn split between
Germany {84%), Sweden (11%) and
Austria (5%). Vonovia has developed a
large in-house craftsman organization
which allows the company to run a
strategy focusing on modernizing its
portfalio. The company is involved in the
whole value chain of the residential sector
via its rental business (81% of group
EBITDA), its value-add branch (energy

and multimedia refated services, 8%),

its third-party development business

{6%) and its recurring sales program
{5%). Finally, the residential sector is
subject to strict regulations in Germany

in particular. Vonavia's management has
been particularly pro-active with public
authorities, complying with regulations
and assuming a social role which should
allow them to benefit from critical political
goodwill in the future. In 2020, Vonovia
delivered again sirong results in absolute
and relative terms. The company delivered
a +17% total accounting return {computed
as the growth in NAV + dividend paid over
the year) against +14% on average for the
main listed residential peers. The like for
like rental growth at +3.1% was resilient
and one of the highest in the residential
sector despite the impact of the Berlin
rental freeze which implied a negative
rental adjustment in November 2020, The
total shareholder return singe listing in
July 2013 has been +314%.

Notes

Segro has become the largest UK REIT by
markel cap, and is the largest operator
of logistics and industrial property listed
in the UK, with a total portfolio of £13bn
(split 53% in the UK, 47% in Continental
Europe, with 66% urban warehouses,
32% big boxes and 2% other uses). In
the UK, the group is mainly exposed to
Greater Londen industrial and logistics.
Rental growth in these markets has
been extremely strong as there remains
an acute supply-demand imbatance,
fuelled by tenants’ requirements to

deal with the growth in e-commerce.

In Eurape, Germany and France are the
group’s largest markets with italy third;
these markets have a lower, but still
positive, rental growth outlook {and are
geographically less space-constrained)
but continue to see yield compression
as investors have paid keener yields for
access to strong income. The logistics
sector has proved particularly resilient
during the COVID crisis, with high

rent collection. S5egro has extensive
development expasure that it manages
to largely pre-let and develop at yields
significantly in excess of investment
values {¢.6-7% yleld on cost vs. an EPRA
net initial yield of 3.8% at £Y20}. wWe
expect this to drive both earnings and
NAV growth, as well as high sharehoilder
total returns. The five-year total
shareholder return has been 177%.

LEG is a German residential company
focused on the economically strong
regien of North Rhine-Westphalia. it is
one of the largest real estate companies
in Germany with maore than 144,000 units
under management and a combined
value of €14.6bn. tn addition to the
strong focus on NRW, the company

is exploring opportunities on B and €
focations in adjacent states with the view
to leverage their market access as well
as their existing platform still within strict
and conservative financial criteria. The
company has a distinct advantage to be
less exposed to requiatery risk than peers
with a Berlin exposure and to benefit
from a relatively high share of state
subsidised tenants (25% of the total).
The very low average rent per sqm at
EURS.96 as well as the relatively low value
per sqm of EUR,1503 make the company
particularly well suited to weather any
potential macre-economic shock. In
addition, the company has shown over
the years a conservative management

on the liabilities side which continued to
be the case in 2020 with a LTV of 37.6%
{maximum target set at 43% for 2021),

an average debt maturity of 7.4 years (8.1
years in 2019) and 2 net debt to adjusted
EBITDA of 11.8x. In 2020, LEG delivered

a strong total accounting return of 20%
ahead of the sector average at 14%. The
tive-year total shareholder return has
been +106%.

> ihe percentege of rvestmert portfong posiliors sel oot zbove ncude exposures thiowgh {HG for both the ndivicue pesitens and the portfo’ic
»ihe ryvestiment Portfoho by Country pes tons sel 50t on page 18 are the phys cal Fald ngs only ircluded ir the o westments he ¢ at far vaiue o the Baarce sheet fhe
210t of lass post ens or the CFD confiacts (e aol the investirent exposure) die g s¢ sbown on page "8 ard are inc uced Ir the Bgidrce Sheet 2 debtors ar creditars

n fhe Culient zssets
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Twelve Largest EQuity Investments - -

DEUTSCHE
B WOHNEN

4. DEUTSCHE WOHNEN

MARGAN

5. ARGAN (FRANCE)

(GERMANY)
31 March
o 2020
Sharehalding value £54.5m (£36.4m)
% of investment
portfoliot 3.5% {3.0%)
% of equity owned 0.5% {0.3%)
Share price  €39.78 {€34.71)

31 March
. 2020

gecina

6. GECENA (FRANCE)

31 Maich
2020

Shareholding value £54.0m  (£46.8mm)
% of investment

portfoliot 35%  (38%)
% of equity owned 3.5% (3.5%)
Shate price €304  (€676)

Shareholding vaiue £53.9m  (E47.5m)
% of investent

portfoliot 3.5% (3.9%}
% of equity owned 0.7% {0.6%)
Share price €74 (€120.71)

Deutsche Wohnen is Germany’s second
largest residential company with the bulk
of its exposure to Greater Berlin (76%

of the total portfolio Fv). The company
awns a high-quality porttolio consisting of
more than 155,000 units with a cambined
value of €26bn. In addition to the rental
business, the company is present in the
Mursing and Assisted Living business
which around represented 12% of the
Group EBITDA in 2020 (target to get to
15% in the medium-term).The company
benefits from its development exposure
with a total investment cost of EUR6.9bn
(27% of GAV) split between build-to-hald
{EUR4.3bn, 62% of the pipeline) and build-
to-sell (EUR2.6bn, 38% of the pipeline).
In a context of the implementatian of

the rental freeze in Berlin, the company
showed a resilient financiat performance
in 2020 with a total accounting return of
14% in line with German residential peers,
The Greater Berlin portfolic was valued

at EUR2,853 per sqm on average which
leaves significant upside potential in the
future. As expected, post FY20 results we
had the paositive unequivocal decision
from the court that the rental freeze

was anti-constitutional and therefore
cancelled. The five-year total shareholder
return has been +62%.
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Argan is a French company, created in
2000 by Jean-Caude Le 1an, which has
been listed since 2007, The objective

of the company has been to build a
portfolio of premium logistic assets which
quarantee a stable and high occupancy
rate at around 106%. The company is
vertically integrated and has full control
of the entire value chain by identifying
future needs of prospective and current
tenants and developing assets on their
behalf. Therefore, Argan is able to capture
the developer margin while having little
to no risk on the letting side. In 2020,

the portfolio value amounted to EUR3bn
(100% exposed to France, 27% exposed to
Greater Paris region, 16% to the North of
Hrance and 13% around Lyon),

The company deilivered solid 2020 results
with an EPRA NRV per share up 19%

YoY and a DPS up 11%. The funding of

the company is based an a conservative
mix of 90% amortizable mortgage loans
with an average maturity of 8 years

and 10% of bonds. The relatively low
dividend payout at below 50% allows the
company to retain cash and reinvest in
new development projects while repaying
debts. The management of the company
has been assumed by its founder Jean-
Claude Le Lan who owns alongside family
members 40% of the share capital which
is a strong guarantee of alignment. The
five-year total shareholder return has
been +307%
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Gecina is the largest office landlord in
Europe with a portfolio of more than
£14bn focused almost exclusively on

the Paris region (97% of the totat office
value) and with a high share in Paris city
(60% of the total office value). It owns
also a portfolio of €3.6bn of residential
assets (of which EUR367m in student
hausing} predominantly located in

the Paris region. Finaily, the company
owns a portfolio of exclusive high

street retail assets for a value of €1.6bn
located in Paris city. The management is
capitalizing on a development pipeline
of more than €3.5bn (17% of GAV) o be
delivered in the next five years. This is a
continuation of the total return strategy
which has been implemented by the
company over the last couple of years:
in essence, redeveloping assets where
the management sees value creation
potential and disposing mature assets
to crystalize capital gains. Since the end
ot 2014, the company has delivered 30
projects and generated EUR1.Tbn of value
creation (EUR1S per share), In 2020, the
company showed resilience with 99% rent
collection, stable portfolio valuation and
Like for like rentaf growth of 2.3%. The
financial position of the company is very
solid with an LTV at 35.6% and an average
debt maturity of 7.1 years.

The five-year shareholder total return has
been +21.6%.
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KLEPIERRE

7. KLEPIERRE {(FRANCE)

safestore
8. SAFESTORE (UK)

31 March
200

M 31 March
o 2020
Shareholding value £51.3m (Nil}
okt S
% of equity owned 1.0% (0%)
Share price €19.89  (€17.57)

ShareHerdinig value £44.0m (E27.9m)
% of investment

porttoliot 2.8%  (2.3%)
% of equity owned 2.6% (1.5%)
Share price 796p (641p)

PISIP

Swiss Property

9. PSP (SWITZERLAND)

31 March
— 2020
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Shareholding value £42.0m (Em)
% of investment

portfolio? 2.7% (2.3%)
% of equity owned 1.0% (0.6%)
Share price €115.20 (€120.70)

Klepierre is a European shopping

center operator, managing around 149
centers with a total portfolio valuation
of EUR22bn. The main exposures are

in France/Belgium (39% of total), Italy
{18%), Scandinavia (17%) and tberia
(10%). The company, like the rest of
shopping center owners, was impacted
by the COVID crisis in 2020 and therefore
reported an EPS down 27% YoY and an
EPRA NTA per share down 15% YoY. Cn

a relative basis, the company benefits
from its focus on Continenatal Europe
where shapping centers are anchored
by food retailers contrary to UK or US
centers anchored by department stores
which have been undergoing significant
challenges (partly driven by online
competition). The financial position of
the company is also more solid than its
direct peers with an LTV of 41.4% and

a net debt to EBITDA ratic of 10.8x. The
board benefits from the experience of
David Simon {Chairman of the Supervisory
Board), Chairman and CEO of Simon
Property Group which owns a 21%
stake in Kleppierre. The five-year total
shareholder return has been -34%.

Notes

Safestore is the UK's largest self-storage
operator, owning ¢.125 UK stores,
weighted towards tonden and the South
East (c.60%). In addition the company has
a large footprint in the Paris market and
has recently been expanding into new
European cities (through both JV structures
and outright ownership) taking footholds
in Holland, Spain and Belgium. Safestore
has a best in class operating platform
which, along with peer Big Yellow, allows
it to dominate the UK storage market,
particulariy in terms of online search.

The company has driven consistent
earnings growth both organically (through
like-for-like occupancy and rate growth,
opening new developments) and through
acquisitions, a trend we expect to
continue aver the medium term; the self-
storage market has proved remarkably
resilient during the COVID-19 pandemic.
The five-year total sharehaclder return has
been 172%.

PSP Swiss Property is one of Switzerland’s
leading real estate companies owning
properties valued at around CHF8.6bn.
These are mainly office and business
premises in prime lecations in
Switzerland’s key ecanomic centers.
Zurich represents 51% of the company’s
exposure (Geneva at 14%). Vacancy rate
has consistently trended downward from
a level at 8.5% in 2018 to an historic

low of 3.0% at FY20. The company
reported solid resuits in 2020 with EPS
{excl revaiuation) stable and NAV per
share growing by 3%. The company will
benefit from a development pipeline
adding EUR34m of rents (11% of current)
in the next three years. The pipeline is
mostly exposed to Zurich {85% of total
investment) and has a current pre-let
ratic of 77%. The financial profile of the
company is very conservative with an LTV
of 35%, average cost of debt of 0.47% and
a loan maturity of 5.5 years. The five-year
total shareholder return has been 48%.
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Twelve Largest Equity Investments 270

Q.&AROUNDTOWN

10. AROUNDTOWN {GERMANY)

31 March
2020

Shareholding value  £39.3m  (£20.3m)
% of investment

portfoliof 2.5% {1.7%)
% of equity owned 0.5% (0.3%)
Share price €6.07  (€4.55)

VIB Vermaogen AG

11. VIB VERMOEGEN {(GERMANY)

EINEIGE 31 March
201 2020

DERWENT
LONDON

12. DERWENT LONDON (UK)

31 March
2020

shareholding value £38.0m (£22.9m)
% of investment

portfolio? 5% (19%)
% of equity owned 5.5% (4.1%)
Share price €29.25 (€22.80)

Aroundtown is a diversified German-
based property company that owns a
EUR24.5bn porttolio, it has a diversified
commercial portfolio with exposure to
office {60% of the commercial porttolio),
Hotels {28%), Retail (9%} and Logistics
(3%). The majority of its exposure is

in Germany and the Netherlands (86%
together). The company is also exposed
to German Residential (14% of total GAV)
through its 39% holding in Grand City. The
portfolio has grown significantly since
Aroundtewn was listed in 2015, through a
series of deals, in particular, the takeover
completed in early 2020 of listed German
peer TLG Immobilien. Mr Yakir Gabay
(advisary board deputy Chairman) who
founded the company, stili owns a 10%
stake in the company via its vehicle Avisco
Group (down from 27% pre TLG deal). In
2020, the company closed EUR2.3bn of
disposals at a +3% margin to book value.
This year, the campany will continue to
streamline the portfolio with a disposal
pipeline of EUR500m while buying

back shares for a maximum amount of
EUR500m. The five-year total sharehalder
return has been 58%.
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Shareholding value £37.6m (Nil)
% of investment

porifoliot 2.4% (D)
% of equity owned 1.0% (0%)
share price 3228p {3270p)

VIB is 3 German company developing,
buying and holding commercial
properties, primarily in the high-growth
regions of Southern Germany. The
comnpany pursues a develap or buy

and hold strategy aiming at growing

its earning base while maintaining a

solid financial structure. The real estate
portfolio {EUR1.4bn) includes logistics and
light industrial properties (70% of total
rents), garden centers and DIY stores
(1%}, grocery and discounters (7.5%). The
company benefits from a higher yielding
portfolio than peers at 6.8% tmplying

a superior EPS yield and more potential
for yield compression and therefore NAV
growth in a mid to long-term horizon. The
vacancy rate has averaged 1.26% over the
{ast five years. Between 2016 and 2020,
FFO per share increased by 41%, NAV per
share increased by 42% and DPS increased
by 36%. in 2620, the company maintained
a solid momentum with EPS growing by
+3% and NAV per share growing by 9%.
The five-year total shareholder return has
been 93%.

Derwent London is a London Office

owner and developer, with a £5.4bn
portfolio covering ¢.5.5m sq ft, focused
primarily in the West End and “tech belt”
(Old Street, Clerkenwell etc.) areas of
Lendon. 2620 has been a difficult year

for office landlords following the impact
of COVID-19, which both brought the
transaction market and occupier market
to 3 hait, and left ongoing uncertainty
over future office use as the necessity and
popularity of working from home grew.
We believe the role of the office remains
important however, and think that
Derwent Londan is the best placed London
Office landiord to weather the COVID-19
starm given ) its very defensive balance
sheet (LTV 18%), b} the ongoing spread
between prime office yields in London
and other European cities (c.100bp), which
we believe will support valuations even
as ERVs soften and c) the company’s high
quality development capabilities which
continue to create value as schemes like
Soho Place, The Featherstone Building and
19-35 Baker Street complete. The five-year
total shareholder return has been 18%.




Investment Properties
as at 31 March 2021

Spread of Direct Portfolio by Capital Value (%}

as at 31 mMarch 2021

west End of London
Inner London®
South west

Total

Retail Industrial
42.9% -
1.6% 31.2%
- 9.2%

44 5% 40.4%

‘Inner London defined as inside the Nerth and Sceuth Circular,

Lease Lengths within the Direct Property Portfolio

as at 31 March 2021

0 to 5 yeais
5to 10 years
10 to 15 years
15 to 20 years
20+ years

Contracted Rent
as at 31 March

Gross rental income

24% Year 1
17% Years 2-5
53% Years 5+
0%
..8%

VALUE IN EXCESS OF £30 MILLION

Ferrier Street Industrial Estate,
Wandsworth, London SW18

The Colonnades, Bishops Bridge
Road, Lendon W2

Mixed Use

3
@
-
, 5
Residential 3
and 2
Ground Rents Other g
14.5% 0.6% 58.0% 3
- - 32.8%
o . ..
14.5% 0.6% L 100._0_“19_
£3,000,000
£10,000,000
__ £19,000,000

VALUE LESS THAN £10 MILLION

10 Centre, Gloucester Business
Park, Gloucester GL3

Industrial

Sector Sector Industrial Sector

Tenure Freehold S —fgﬁure Freehold wI-es'wre Freehoid
Size (sqft) 64,000 Size (sq ff) 36,000 size (sqft) 63000
principal  Waitrose Ltd, Graham & Green, E’rincin:;\rlw Kougar Tool Hire Ltd Principal Infusion GB
tenants Happy Larnb Hot Pot, tenants Page Lacquer tenants

1Rebel, Specsavers

The property comprises a large mixed-
use block in Bayswater, constructed
in the mid-1970s. The site extends to
approximately 2 acres on the north
east corner of the junction of Bishops
Bridge Road and Porchester Road,
close to Bayswater tube station and
the Whiteleys Shopping Centre. The
commercial element was extended
and refurbished in 2015 with a new
20 year lease being agreed with
Waitrose.

Lockdown Baker

Site of just over an acre, 50

metres from Wandsworth Town
railway station in an area that is
predominantly residential. The estate
comprises 16 small industrial units
generally let to a mix of small to
medium-sized private companies.
Planning permissicn granted in
December 2019 for a mixed-use
employment led redevelopment.

The 10 Centre comprises six industrial
units accupied by twoe tenants and sits
an a 4.5-acre site. Gloucester Business
Park is located to the east of Junction
11A of the M5 and one mile to the
east of Gloucester City Centre. The
property also has easy access to the
A417 providing good links to the M4
via junction 15.
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Investment Objective and Benchmark

The Company's Objective is to maximise shareholders’ total return
by investing in the shares and securities of property companies
and property related businesses internationally and also in
investment property located in the UK.

The benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Euiope
Capped Net Total Return index in Sterling. The index, calculated
by FTSE, is free-float based and as at 31 March 2021 had 105
constituent companies. The index limits exposure to any one
company to 10% and reweights the other constituents pro-rata.
The benchmark website www.epra.com contains further details
about the index and performance.

Business Model

The Cempany’s business model follows that of an externally managed
investment trust,

The Company has no employees. Its wholly non-executive Board of Directors
retains responsibility for corporate strategy; corporate governance; risk and
control assessment; the overall investment and dividend policies; setting Hmits
on gearing and asset allocation and monitoring investment performance.

The Board has appointed BMO Investment Business Limited as the Alternative
Investment fund Manager ("AIFM”} with portfolic management delegated to
Thames River Capital LLP. Marcus Phayre-Mudge acts as Fund Manager to the
Company on behalf of Thames River Capital LLP and Alban Lhonneur is Deputy
Fund Manager. George Gay is the Direct Property Manager and Joanne Elliott the
finance Manager. They are supported by a team of equity and portfolio analysts.

Further information in relation to the Beard and the arrangements under the
Investrment Management Agreement can be found in the Report of the Directors
on pages 41to 43.

In accordance with the Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive
("AIEMD"), BNP Paribas has been appointed as Depositary to the Company.
BNP Paribas also provide custodial and administration services to the Company.
Company secretarial services are provided by Link Company Matters.

The specific terms of the Investrnent Management Agreement are set out on
pages 53 and 54.
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Strateqy and Investment Palicies
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Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager i meeting the Trust's objective against
the following Key Perfarmance [ndicators ("KPIs™):

Pt Board monitoring and outcome

Net Asset Value Total Return relative to the benchmark

The Direclors reqard the out-performance of the - The Board reviews the performance 1in detail at each

Company's nel asset value total return in performarce meeting and discusses the resulls and outlook with the

In companson with the benchmark as heing an overall Manager

measure of valse delivered to the shareholders’ aver the

lorger-term, Oulcome

1year Syea:s

MNAV Total Returt (Apnualised) 207% 7%
genchma'k Tota Return {Arrualised) 15.9%  4.3%

NAV Totgl Returr 5 Calculeted by 1e- aivestirg the covicencs o the asyets ard
the Compary from the e evart ex dvicerd care Dividerds are ceemed 16 ke
re-investec or tne ex ¢ v derds date lor the beirchimarc

Delivering a reliable dividend which is growing over the lenger term

The annapal objective of the Company s a total retun « Tie Boaid reviews statements on income recerved Lo dae

anjecive, towever the Fund Manager also aims 1o andncome forecasts at each meeting
de'nvar g renable deaidend vath crowt over the lorger
term Outcome
tyear 5years
CoToaund Arnaa Drige~d Growlh’ 14%  112%

Comoaound Anrual RPI 15% 2.6%

PUhefeg oy cencar 'ne e we es faicen by the rina diacesa e the
penod raser o the sower of 1 owvcec oy 'te ruinber of years e the seres

The Discount or Premium at which the Company’s shares trade compared with Net Asset Value

N

Arver of the share orice gistoJnt o pemium Lo the Ne: 155U
stirert tust over e longe-

#Ils expetialiur of investment 2erformance 1s a ke - The Boerd takes powers at each AGH 0 buy-back and
o )

Jige ot 37 anve

fhere perinds whes the discount can widen The accition Lo the shott arg 1onge -0 discount ¢F premgm
Boaro is auare af the vulnerabiity of 2 sedlorsoecilist 0 NAY 10 assess wneinet aclion wedld se beneflan to

4

At e crange of Inyeston senimen (varts a

ar e ocenacs b gadet market gnee L, aro re

Parucarar alle vieo 15 paid 1o ne
ment the potenng ampact of 20
©ne innchty of the snares and

avETine 'prger lerm

sor e SO Uy heck A0 Ol

Outcome

1year 5 years

P

IS ETNE 10.2% 6.3%

Tata ~umber o svaies renyoaged Nil 150,000

“Average cay cscount threugholt the peroc of share pree 1o
NAY woth o ncome Source 3 oorberg
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KPI
Level of Ongoing Charges

The Board 1s conscious of expenses and aims 1o deliver a
balance Detween excellent service ang costs

The AIC definition of Ongoing Charges includes any direct
prapefty costs inaddition to the management fees and
al other expenses incuned in running a publicly fistec
compaiy. As no other mvestment tusts 1ola part of their
partfolio I direct properly (they either kold 100% of therr
portfalio as properly secunties o: as direct property}, in
addition lo Ongaing Charges as defined by the AIC, this
statistic 1s shown without diect praperty costs (o allow

a clearer compansen of averall administralion costs with
other fuads investing in secunties

The Gioard monitors the Dagoing Charges, 11 Comparson
to a range of other Investment Trusts of sirulas size. both
ofoperty sectar specighsts ana other sector speaahsts

Board monitoring and cutcome

Lxpenses are budgeted [or each fmanaal year and the
Board reviews requlal 1epaits on actual and forecast
gxpenses throughout the year

w
hut}
&
b
m
o
(2]
=
m
2
o
o
=1

Outcome
5 years

1year

Ongoing charges excluding

0.65%
serformance fees

0.62%

0.65%
Ongoing charges excluding performance

639
fees and Direct Propeity Cosls 063%

The ongomg charges are compelilive when compared Lo
the peer groun

Investment Trust Status

The Company must continue to operaie N order to meet
the requirements lor Section 1158 of the Corporation Tax
At 2010

The Bodrd reviews [inancial informaton and forecasts at
each meeting which set out the equirements puthned in
section 1158

lhe Directars beileve hat the conditiors and ongoing
requirements have been metn espect of the year 1o
31 Marcn 2021 and that the Company wili continue 1o
meet the requirements.

the KPls are considered o be Alternatuve Performance Measures &5 defined laler in the Annual Report
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Principal and Emerging Risks and Uncertainties

In delivenng fong-lerm returas ta shaieholders, the Board mast also idenufy and monitor the risks thai have been taken
in order o achieva that return The Board has mcluded below details of the punapal and emesqing risks and uncertainties
facing the Company and the appropriate measuses taken i order to mitigate these ks as far as practicacle

e Board aiso considers new and emelging risks adding approprate monitonag 3nd mingaion measu es accordingly

The impact of the COVID-39 pandemic, the iesponse of financial markets, the unxnaws duratior of the pandemic and
ongoing impact on economies arsund the world together with operational changes 1n respoase 1 governmenl guidelines
continues to increase some of the nisks sted below i companson with prior years

Risk \dentified Board monitoring and mitigation

Share price performs poorly in comparison to the underlying NAV

The shaies of the Company ase histed on the London - The Board montors the level of discount of premium at
Stock Fxmangc and the share prce 15 determired ny wiinch the shares are lrading over the shoil and longer-
supply and demand The shares may trace at 2 discount term

ar premia to the Campany’s Lmd@ﬂymg NAV and this
ciscodnt or prermium mav fuctuate over ime

The Boaid encourages engagement with e shareqoldears
The Boad receives 1e00is at e2ch meeling on the activity
of t1e Compary’s brokeis, PR agent and meetngs and
zyents attended by e Fund I\-\ﬂﬂ;—?g:,w

The Company's shmr‘-s are avallable th-augh the 3M0
share sehewres and e Company pariiapates it the actie
wumm of these s MT 105 The shares 2 e 2lsa wadely

varable or open & cutecture pfa'.!orms and ¢ar be neld
urrmlf traunh the Company s segistia

- The Board taxes 1he pawers 10 Juy-back a2d o 155ue
shares al each AGwW

Poor investment performance of the portfolio relative to the benchmark

The Company s partfolio s aciely Tanaged naddton  « Tre Marager s or yective 15 to oatperform the bercimark
fo investmant sec. ii=s the Compamy 3 50 1Invests in - 1ily eviews the Company s lorg-term
cornmeTal propety anc acorcingiy. e pottfolio m Lalegy and imvestiment guaidelines and the Manage

not foliowe aor ouoafare the etuin of e eﬁtfma‘k reletive POSIUCTS Against Mese
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Risk Identified

Market risk

Both share pnices and exchange rates may move rapidly
and adversely impact the value of the Company’s
portfoho

Although the portfolio 1s diversified at10ss a number of
ceographical regions, the irvestinent mandate 1s focused
or a single seclos ana therelore the portfolie will be
sensitive towards the propersy secton as well 4s global
equity markets more geneiaily

Propeily companies aie subject o many factors which
can adversely aflect thei mvestiment performance, these
inciude the general ecenomic and financial environment
1 which thew tenants operaie, terest rates, availability
of mwesiment and gevelopment finance and requlations
1ss0eG by governments and authorties

Aihough we have now exited the European Union the
structure of our future reiationship wath Continental
Europe 15 still evolving and there could be an impact on
accupanor across each sector

The COVID-19 giobal pandermic dominated the findancia:
year This 1as changed the wdy we hve and wolk,
creaung urprecedentad uncertamly iegarding the impac
on ecancrues and droperty makets arund the woric
bothin the short and ionger term

Any strepgthening or weakening of Sterling will have

a direct impact as a prooodtion of our Balance Sheel s
he d 10 non-GBP dencminated curreraies. The currency
exposure s maintained 10 hne with the benchmark and
will Change over time As at 31 March 2023, 72 *% of tne
Trust's exposute lies 1o cunencies other than GBP

Board monitoring and mitigation

Ihe Board recerves ara considers a reqular report flom
the Manager delalling asset allocation, investmen!
detisians, currency expasures, aeanng levels and ralionale
mrelation to the prevailing markel conditions

The report considers the potential impact of Brext and the
tanagers response N posioning the portfalio

The report corsiders the current and potertial fulue
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the oagomng
impiication for the property market and valuations overal!
and by each sectar

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

29

"]
-
S
=
m
@
[}
=
m
°
=}
=
=1




Principal Risks and Uncertainties continyed

Risk tdentified Board monitoring and mitigation

The Company is unable to maintain dividend growth

Lower earnings in the underlying portfoso putting - The Board 1eceves and considers requiar Income
pressure an the Company’s ability o grow the dividend lorecasts

could result from a number of factors
Income lorecast sersilivity (o changes in FX rates 15 also

lower earnings and distnbuiions in myvestes momitored
Loimpanies Companies I some property seclors
continue to be negatively 1mpacted by the COVD-19
pandemic. Companies IN some sectors cancelled or
reduced dividends dunng the last financial year a5 a
precautionary measure 1o protect their halance sheets
i the short terme Althogugh most have returmed to
paying dividenrds, some are at a lower level than
previgusly and otheis are continuing to vathhold
dnadends,

The Comuany Nas substantiai revenue reserves whick can
be diawn upon when reguired

The Board will continue to monitor the 1mpact of COVID-19
and the long term imphcanans for income generation

prolonged vacanaes in the direct oroperty portfolo
and lease or iental reaggotiations as a esult of
COVID-14:

strengtheing Sterling reducing the value of overseas
dividend receipts in Stering tarms The Company

£as seer a matella naease in e level of earungs
i recert years A sigmiicant factorin this was t1e
weake™1ng of Stethng following e Brexrt deasion
sterhng strergtnensd in the last quattar of the
finarcial vear 1his may (0PUNLe or 1everse again

i the near aor mediom tesn as the langer rerm
implicaiions of Brexit and the COVID-19 panderc and
the impadt on the UK and EJropear eccnamies e
uacerstood Strergthesing of Sterling would lead w4

fall 17 ea3ngs,
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Risk identified Board monitoring and mitigation
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Accounting and operational risks

Disruplion o Tailure of syslems and processes < Ihied party service providers pmduw penodic renorts Lo
urderpinning the services provided by third parties and e Board on then control envi onmenls and business
lte nis that these suppliess provide a sub-standard CONUNUALIBN PIOVISIONS O mgu\ew basis
58 VILE

e Managemert Engagement Comimittee considlers the
The imaac of the CUVIL-TY pancernic and the uerfmlm nce of eacn of the service providers on a reguliar
aperainna: 1esponse from the manager and sevice sasis apd corsiders ther ongoing apooIntment and terms
providers has beer dosely monnored end condilions

The Custacian and Lenosilony are respenstbie for the
safequarding of assels In the evenl of a 1055 of assets
the Depasiory mus: return assels ol ardertcal tyae
or correspond:rg amount uiless anie 1o demaonsirate
that the ioss was the 1esylt of a7 evert beyond tneir
reasananle control

sMoritonrg e cualty anc ureliress of serqce as

service providers respord 1o COVIB-19 requlations erd

guaidelires 1n parucular with vacespread =eme sworking

ar¢ consideratior of e cUrabmt\, ol the: arratgemenls

Kiary 0rganisations are now plenrg to ncorporate

wore working into their aperational straciare as @
‘marent feature

Financial risks

The Cormpany s meestment activilies exaose it 1o a - Dotars of these as<s togetter with the poices for
variely of fineradl nsks wmch induce counterparty nanaging hese nsks are found e the Notes Lo The
credit sk, gy nsk and e veluation of firanaal Firancia Stalements i the full Annad <enors 3nd
siraments Ay Lepect af the COVID-19 sanderic nas Accounls

heer conside e

Loss of investment Trust Status

The Compary has peen acceplad by B <evenue & - The Icvestmanl ganager momioss the mvester:
Customs as anrvestment tiust, supject to cortnang port’o 1o income and proposed divicerd levels Lo evsure
to neet the ralevant ehgibilily corcilions As such tre thal tre srovisions of CM 2012 aie not weacied The
Compary 15 exemnpt fio 0 capital gains tax an f1e profits results are 2port2d to e Board 3t each meeung

L
524 frw.)m e sale of 1mvesiments

The 1rcome forecasts are reviewved oy 1he Company 5 tax

Any breacn of the relevar:s ehgitnily (oo (U-J|-‘ aduisor througr the yvea w0 alse renorts 1o e Bodnd
sad 1o the Company losing irvestment st statgs and or the y:dr—er:d 1A% nosian and renarty on (1A 2010
Being subject 1o carporation tax on capital gams lemse[! Lorpuarce

wilhin e Company s portiolio
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continyed

Risk Identified Board monitoring and mitigation

legal, requlatory and reporting risks

Failure to comply with the London Stock Exchange
Listing Rules and Disc osule Guidance and Transparency
‘Ules, farure to meel e requirements under the
Alternative Investment Funds Directive, the provisions
of the Companies Act 2005 and other UK, European
and overseas legisiation affecting UK companies
Fallure to meel the required accountng standards or
mMake apprepndte disclosures in the Intenm and Annual
Reports

The Board receives reqular requlatory updates from
the Manager, Company Secretary, legal advisors and
the Auditors The Bearc considers these reports and
recommendations ard takes action accordingly

The Board recewes an annual report and update fiom the
Depository

ntemnal checklists and review procedures are in place at
service providers

Inappropriate use of gearing

Cearng, either through the ose of bark debt or through
e gse of denvalives may be utihsed from time to time
Whilst the use of geanng s inended Lo enhance the NAY
013l return. 1t wili have the opposite effect when the
recarn of the Company s invesument portfolio 1s negatve
orwhere the cost of debt 1s higher Lhan the rzture from
the portiolio

The Board receives reqular eparts from ine Manager or
e -eve s of geanrg in the portialio These die considerec
against the geanng s setin the Investment Guidelines
and also 1 the cotext of curent market condibiors and
serumerl Ihe cost of deh s monitored and 4 halance
sodght betwween term. cost and “lexibity

Personnel changes at Investment Manager

05y 0f portloho manaqges oo other key staff

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

The Chairman conducls reqular meetings with the Fuird
ilanage ment (2am

The fee basis proiecs 1he core nfrastruciure and depth
and quality tesodrces Tie fee struciure INCentivises
nutperfarmance an¢1s fundarrenta 1n the atility 1o etan
ke staff



Viability Statement

Iy ﬂ((r)'dance with provision 31 of the UK Corporate
Governance Code whicn requires the Company 1o assess
the wmrmls of the Company over the fonger lerm, the
Darectors have gesessed e proszecs of e Company
ove: Lhe mmu*g five years Tris penod 1s used by the
Boare dunng the stietegic plarning process and the Board
consider this penod of o re asdropnale for a business of
our natare and size

114 dssessimenrt takes accoun: of the Compary s cunen:
205107 ard he poilcles and processes 1or managing the
DOAcipar and eme ging /15«5 s8° odt on pages 28 1o 37 and
the Company's aCility 10 Contimue 10 ope ation ard meei 1ts
lasiities as ihey fall due over the pennd of assessment

IN Maxing t1s siatement 17e Boadd cainegd oJl a robust
assessment af the principal and emerging nsks facing the
Company. wrcluding those that right threaten its business
madel. fulare performance. solvency and iguidity

ir 12ackng then conclusiors the Cireclors Fave eviewed
five-year forecass for the Compary wit sensitivily

amlp; 50 anumber ol assumalions, investee o pany
Cviderd growth, irterest e foreign exchiange 1ate, |

Lax
At anid esset va ue (_]I{)‘v'v".h

in the assessment of the viability of the Company
the Directors have noted that:

S nvestment strategy

The Compaty as alo .
Ay in rzadily reansable,

urder e ryests
Pub ey hsted secunie
banawiags

Ol the current ooctfolie, 509 conld be homdatad witmin
frve trading days and 65% witbes 10 Lading days

wceed curier:
a.e

On a Group basis, Corent assels @
Laseies al the Balerce Sheet G

The Compacy mvests i el estaie e aled companies
woich an dreal eslate assels, erd mwesls e cormergal
Pesiale diectly These vestimienls provice casn

cereply e e donn of dridesds ang ereelingome

The Campany is ahie Lo take advantage of 1ls closed-
ended lnvesiment Trast stiuctaie ang ab'e to held 2
proportion of s portfohoin tess quid direc prapetly

with a view 10 Imq lerm autper farrarce

AL the Belance Sheet Date the Company had
£35 million Ul]d.'ﬂ\n.-m on |15 revo vIng 1oan faalines

Tne structure has 2lse enabled the Company to
secure lorg-term fnanang LUR 50 milhen 1odin aotes
jssued 1n 2078 are due Lo nature at par in 20246 and
GBP15 million Ioan nates 1ssued on the same date a'e
dug to mature at parin 203

The impact of COVID-15 ar the UK and European
cormmerclan property markels remains a consideratior
This resulted in a recucton e dividend recaipts from

mweslee companies in e year w 31 March 2327
sOMe Companies witholding ar regaaing dv-sndends
rajenty of comparies nave reluned 1o payng
3D’Js a‘though some al 'ower levels than sefoe
e pandemic As a resJult animprovement In 1core
15 atlapated 10 the forthcoming year The longe
termmpdct or some seciors 1s stilt difficutt to assess,
However the comaany has oo exposuse o frese

SeCos

[

The dued stosery pordfoho has Heen ,-weH pasitioned
Ir ceszect of liU‘Jil "9 s and retiar coseCuon o
dale nas been 1onust y lanied exposy

1o retani and some smalles U((upmw m the i OSJIl:lllo-,r
seclorn however, avelal the expected dropin income
rom the direct portioio 1 2020/ 21 was not matenal
anc lievnise 15 1ot expectas 1o ean e forthoeming
YEAr

We Fave ve

The expenses of the Company are predictable 2nd
Todesin compa r;m with the assets Regular and
robust moritonng of revenue and expenditure forecasts
at urcertaken thraughous the year The Company
could suf'er a reduchion in 2arings of 25+ ard syil e

aule o mest 1 iabiiies o5 they feil doe

TR FROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Viability Statement continued

The Company has ;o employees 2nd consequently
does not nave redundancy or other employmen:
related habilities or responsinilities

The Company retairs utle to its assets neld hy e
Custodian which are subject o further safequards
imposed or the Depositary

Theimpact of 3rexit and (GVID-19 have been
considered interms of the patenual effect o Sterling
72% of the porfo o s exnosed o curencies other thar
Sterhng

The following assumptions have been made in
assessing the longer-term viability:

2egl Fsiate will coniue 1o be aminvestiable sectar of
Internatiaral sioc arkels ard ieyvestors wi'i contirue
[0 wWISh 10 Nave exposure o that secta

Cosed-ended Investrent Trusts wild conhirue 10 e
wantes by investors and regulation o7 tax legis alien
wili nol charge o ar exient (o meke the structare
Jrariacve 1T compealiscn 10 otheinvesiment

DTS

The pertomance of tre Comzany vl centinge o be
satsfacioy Should the cerformance he less tnar (e
Hoard geems 1 be salis’actony, 10 hes e approsiate
200eIs 10 Cepiace e nvestment Mdiager

The Baard has concluded that the Company will be
able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities
as they fall due over the coming five years. The
Company’s business model, capital structure and
strategy have enabled the Company to operate

over many decades, and the Board expects this to
continue into the future.
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Corporate Responsibility

Approach

Environmental, Socal and Governance ("ESG™) factors

can present hoth opportunities and thieats o the
perfoimance we aim o deliver o our sharehoiders The
Board 15 therefore commutlec 1o Laking o responsible
appraach on £SG matters This covers the (ompany's Gwr
responsoities on governdree darid repotting and, he mosi
matenal way in which the Company can have an impaci,
trougn responsille ownership of the jnvestments that age
made on 1ts behalf by I's Mandge:

As a long-term inveslor, govercance and sustamabilily
considerations have ahways beer embedded n our
Manaager's Irvesiment Process ESG fsk assessments
and considerations are integrated Inlo the delalled
furdamerial invesiment researct and anaiysis that lakas
place on any potentialinvestmer: before 1l 1s considered
for nclusion e the portfelro and continges on ar ongoing
basis for all nvestments heid

Trus apofoach s e wi the gelirior of a1 Articie
& Fung under the FUS Susiainabie finance Disclosure
Requialinrs. Winilst this us currently Luropean ror UK
reculatinn it s aoretheiess a widely ahbizeg dennimion

Thee are two ‘undarenta: corsiderations to inwesiment
i property compates the 2ssets themselves 210 herr
management the Marager seeks (o invest 1t susiairanle
assets which are managed by quaity Tezm‘-% na well
coverned corporate structure &s & resyls there has
b?@n a long-starcirg anc strong culue Of stewa dshin
1 the Marage s investment appooact The Marager
beleves thal engagiag wiin Comparies 1s sest in the
drstnstance ratver than simpry divestng ar excuding
vesument opporturiies However there are instarces
where governance maties have dnven a decision rot o
IMvesT It d Ccorrpany As one of the argesl teams Investng
In Pan-Furnpean real estale 2quities, our Manager reets
Wit a sigrificant sumber of the management teams of
mvestee and solentia’ 1wvestes companies each yeas and
nas a «ohust record of engagement wih ar agerda af
educing risk. improving sedformerce and ercouraging
nest practice Whnst lkely aa e evaled number reflecting
the impac: of Coma j, over e cose ol the yea” our
maragemen AT pahicpaec n 180 rdradual o qmup
Teehings win camparies 4.1 thar maagement eaTs

Corpoate Guvernance dis closure rer quireTerts nave
meredsad anspalenry erormously i recent yes

and eablec mioimed eagagement, witl socal and

s

emplovment nractices also gaining increased focus and
disclosdre Fnvilonmental measures are now rapidyy
coming to the fore and with wicer disdlosure requirements
being placed upon our Investee companies, as a result the
Kanagers able 1o scrubimse more 2asily olher measures
such as cimate change and sastamabiiy polices and
oulcornes

Company Corporate Governance and Reporting
The Board also recognises tne impartance of 1
Company’s own Gavernarce and disclosdres Tne
Companys tonphiance with the revised AIC Code of
Corporaie Goverance 15 cetalled in the Corporate
Governance Statement on page 44 of this Aanual Reboit

he

Linger Section 414 of the Companies Act 2006 there 15 the
requirement to ue[a|l Imfoimation aboul employee and
Furan ngnts, ircluding infoimation ahout any poicies
i has 17 relztion to these malters and effecliveness

of these polines As the Trust 2as no e voloyees, this
requirenent does not apply The Com pa\\ 1S 100 wIthim
‘he scope of the LK Raderm Slavery Act 2015 becausz 1l
has not exceeded the turrover hreshoid Wd 15 therefoie
not obliged to make a slavery and human trafficking
styement The Directors are salishied _ha‘. to the best of
then knowledge, the Companys prrape. suppliers, whicn
are lsled or page 108 comply with the pravasions of the
UK stodern Slavery Act 26755

The Goad canently comanses three mae Dieclars and
twg female Direcors 1 aciviiies of the Normimation
Committee 10 2lation to the noard charges are 1elered
to1n the Nomimation Commitiee Report on pages 51 &1 -d
52 Tne Baards creersity policy 1s outared i mare detas

in the Corporate Governance epost The Mandger nes an
equa\ opportumty policy which s set out an its website
W Bmo o

Governance of Investee Companies and Exercise of
Voting Power

The Boasc has appioved o corparale govermance woling
pOley ich, i oats opirion, accords wath currert best
pracice whust mamntaining a pomary ‘ocus on fmanaat
[eins

ltached ip e Dor"’n:m
celeyated o the ‘-/'.mx pracheahle,
sharehoidings were volad o @l corpany meatings
Sl manaa vean ir accotdarce with BWOGAM s
w0 CO1porate gu e nance pohaes This ersures that
a strang, consistent appiodch 15 faken o proxy vohne

The 2xefclse o woting ngh!

has bee; Wik
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As car he see i the chart above, the fund’s portfono
welghited carbon inlensity was broadly ir fime with thal of
the enchmark, whilst significantly lower than the wider

qiobal equity irdex Thes reflects the fact that lor property,

this 15 'arg “\\ weasuimg the irmpact of angoing emissions
fram run-ing a sulding whereas the wider irgex cludes
operating companies with manufactunng capabihities and
the need to distinule goods worldwide,

For the property sector, the focus s currently an the
energy efficercy of buldings once heg are occupled,
hut we expect in ime more attentian will he paid to

the carhon emitied 0 get IPQ Them buill ard eventually
disrantied wich accounts for a large proporton of e
huilding’s emissions over (s I|[espdn

The message 15 tnal tusas stll an area where b s difficult
to make ful'y nformed decisions [he assessments [-om
the varrus data b oviders reach different conciusions

25 1hey do ot ad score 10 a consistent way We expec
hlk I improve a3 change but owill be a ,ourey D
Karagel 1s dedicating 2 lot ol esource o the anaysis
Of re information avallable and a'so has the perefit

of 17e knawledge of BWMOs award wanning Respoasibe
rm—‘ﬂmeﬂ Tearm As data Coverace Imprayves, our
HLJF' wii 10t be able Lo engage wiin aur mvesies
COMDaries or enuronmentel matiers ard repart 1o oul

§TEI(E‘?“.OJ-’_IE‘I’S inmore (’Jepﬁ

Direct Property Portfolio

The Management team recognises iFe impotarce of
sustarnability in cor busimess and 10 ihe direct soperty
assets wouch we 1nvest in, holg ang manage on behalf of
QUT IN¥2stors  froperty 1mpacts Jpoa (he erviionment,

g health ard wellneing of accupiers, ane the
commuinilies inwhich they are situated Speaific 1ssaes
ielevant to naysicel propeity investment porticho include,
ion example, -asponsipie ard sustainabe2 refurbishime 1:
srachces, efigent use of 1esaurces (rougnout ten
ppershon, and cesign and services 10 support the health

Beng o' cocapiers ang acel commuanilies

Environmental Audits are conducted on ali our builldings
pnor to purchase The Company will take remedial
action or en‘orce tenanl obhigations to do so wherever
appropriate I~ maraging Fnviionmental, Socal and
Governance 1ssues across the direct poitfoho - ow
Managel engagas with occupiers, extermnal maragers anc
supphiers  As a responsible steward of the Company s
assels, our Manager 1s commitied 1o umproving
sustanabilily charactenstics through mlerventons that are
carefully planned and executed
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Cur Manager has sum"g, direct relationskips with
occuplers and s cormmitled to working wath them to
develop Lhe data, measurement toois and resources Lo
set and achigve | neaﬂmg fal sustainabihty targels for the
assets i the sordalg As part of this, and warkirg with

he poifolio ploperly maragers, @ Sustaimani'ity 2o4admap
IS bemg implemerted which largets siodiversity et gain
ac-oss the part‘olo by 2025, improving energy, water and

ste efficency, Liansiioning o 100% renewable ener

aﬂd duucipg graenbouse gas erssions in ling wilh
Cimaie scence

3y order ¢f the Board

David Watson
Cranman

3 Jure 20920
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DAVID WATSON
Chairman

Appointed:
April 2012

Experience:

David became Chairman foliowing
the retirement of Hugh Seaborn on
28 July 2020. Since 30 September
2018 David had served as the Board's
Senior Independent Director when he
simultaneously handed Chairmanship
of the Audit Cormmittee to Tim, a
position he was appointed to on 1
january 2013. He spent 9 years as
Finance Director of M&G Group ple,
where he was a director of four
equity investment trusts, and more
recently at Aviva plc as Chief Finance
officer of Aviva General insurance.
He is a Chartered Accountant and

has had a distinguished career in the
Financial Services fndustry,

skills and Contribution to the Board:
Throughout his executive career, David
has accumulated relevant skills in
finance, audit and risk management
and experience in the investrnent
industry. His experience as SID and
chair in 2 number of boards have built
significant experience in shareholder
and investor engagement.

Other Appointments:

David is currently Chairman of
Aegon Asset Management UK plc
and he is a Director and Chairs the
Audit Committee at the Prudential
Assurance Company.
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KATE BOLSOVER
Non-Executive Director

Appointed:
October 2019

Experience:

Kate previously worked for Cazenave
Group and J.F. Morgan Cazenave
between 1995 and 2005 where she
was Managing Oirector of the mutua!
fund business, and latterly director of
Corporate Communications. Prior to
this, she worked extensively in the
investment fund industry and was
managing Director of Baring’s mutual
fund group. Kate was also previously
a non-executive director of jPMorgan
American investrnent Trust pic until
2016, Senior Independent Director of
Montanare UK Smaller Companies
Trust until 2079 and Chairman and
Trustee of Tomorrow’s People until
2017,

Skills and Contribution to the Board:
From her executive experience, Kate
contributes significant and relevant
skills of the investment industry to
the Trust. Kate's role in various boards
also gives her the relevant experience
in investor and shareholder
engagement.

Other Appointments:
Kate is currently Chairman of

Fidelity Asian values PLC and Senior
Independent Director of Invesco Bond
Income Plus Limited. She is also a
non-executive Director of Baillie
Giffard & Ca Ltd.

SARAH-JANE CURTIS
Non-Executive Director

Appointed:
January 2020

Expefience:

Sarah-Jane is a Member of the Royal
institution of Chartered Surveyors.
Sarah-jane was previously Business
Director at Bicester Village for Value
Retail. Before this, Sarah-Jane was
Director, Covent Garden for Capital
and Counties PLC. She has also
worked for Grosvenor for 24 years
inclueding as Lendon Estate Director
{retail/Residential) and Fund Manager
for LiverpaglONE.

Skills and Contribution to the Board:
Sarah-Jane has gained extensive
experience during her varied

career, particularly in the retail, and
experience sectors and for Fund and
Investment management activities.

Other Appointments:

Sarah-Jane is currently Property
Director of Bicester Motion as well as
a consultant to value Retail PLC.



S5IMON MARRISON
senioi Independent Director

Appointed:
September 2011

Experience:
Simon jeined the Board of the
Company on 28 September 2011 and
became Senior Independent Director
on 28th July 2020. He has over 30
years’ experience in the European
property investment industry. He is
currently senior advisor for European
Real Estate at KKR (Kohlberg Kravis
Roberts). Prior to this he spent 19 years
at Lasalle investrment Management
where he was European CEO for 12
years with responsibility for a portfolio
of over €20 billion across Europe.
Simon has been based in Paris since
1990 having started his career in
London. Until 1997 he was 3 partner
at Healey & Baker (now Cushman &
Wakefield) and from 1997 to 2001 he
was at Rodamco where he became
Country Manager for France. He joined
LasSalle in 2001 as Managing Director
tor Continental Europe.

skills and Contribution to the Board:
Simon brings in a wealth of
experience, particularly in the
European propefty market. He has
gained leadership and management
skills in his executive roles and
relevant skills in investment
management.

Other Appointments:

Senior advisor for Eurcpean Real Estate
at KKR (Kohtberg Kravis Reberts)

Al ciractors ereondeneicent of e manager And are memhers o the Aucr Commiiee
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TiM GILLBANKS
Chairman of the Audit Committee

Appointed:
Jjapuary 2018

Experience:
Tim is a Chastered Accountant, with
30 years’ experience in the financial
services and investment industry.
Most recently he spent 13 years at
Columbia Threadneedle tnvestments,
initially as Chief Financial Officer, then
Chief Operating Officer and finally as
interim Chief Executive Officer.

skills and Contribution to the Board:
Tim brings a wide experience,
particularly in financial services

and investment management. His
previous financial experience during
his executive career informs him in
his role as the Chairman of the Audit
Committee.

Other Appointments:

Tim is currently a Non-Executive
Director for Henderson Global
Investors Limited and Henderson
Group Holdings Asset Management
Limited. He is also Vice-Chair of the
Board of Trustees of Blood Cancer UK.
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MARCUS PHAYRE-MUDGE

Marcus Phayre-Mudge, Fund Manager, joined the
Management team for the Company at Henderson Global
investors in January 1997, initially managing the Company's
direct property portfolio and Jatterly focusing on real estate
equities, managing a number of UK and Pan European real
estate equity funds in addition to activities in the Trust.
Marcus moved to Thames River Capital in October 2004
where he is also fund manager of Thames River Property
Growth & Income Fund Limited. Priot to joining Hendersen,
Marcus was an investment surveyor at Knight Frank

(1990) and was made an Associate Partner in the fund
management division (1995). He qualified as a Chartered
Surveyor in 1992 and has a BSc (Hons) in Land Management
from Reading University.

e

P/ S

GEORGE GAY

Direct Property Fund Manager since 2008. He joined Thames
River Capital in 2005 as assistant direct property manager
and qualified as a Chartered Surveyor in 2006. George was
previously at niche City investment agent, Morgan Pepper
where as an investment graduate he gained considerable
industry experience. He has an MA in Property valuation and
Law from City University.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

JO ELLIOTT

Jo Eliott, Finance Manager, has been Finance Manager
since 1995, first at Henderson Global Investors then, since
January 2005, at Thames River Capital, when she joined
as CFO for the property team. She jeined Henderson
Global Investors in 1995, where she most recently held
the position of Director of Property, Finance & Qperations,
Europe. Previously she was Corporate Finance Manager
with London and Edinburgh Trust plc and prior to that was
an investment/treasury analyst with Heron Corporation
plc. Jo has a BS¢ (Hons) in Zoology from the University af
Nottingham and qualified as a Chartered Accountant with
Ernst & Young in 1988. Jo is a Non-Executive Director and
Audit Committee Chair of Polar Capital Global Financials
Trust plc.

ALBAN LHONNEUR

Alban Lthonneur, Deputy Fund Manager, joined Thames
River Capital in August 2008. He was previously at Citigroup
Global Markets as an Equity Research analyst focusing on
Continental European Real Estate. Prior to that he was at
Societe Generale Securities, where he focused on transport
equity research. He has a BSc in Business and Management
from the £5C Toulouse including one year at the Brunel
University, London. He also attended CERAM Nice High
Business School. In 2005 he obtained a post-graduate
Specialised Master in Finance in 2005 from ESCP-EAP.
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STATUS

The Company 1s an nvestment con
Section 833 of the Companies Act

an invastmet st in accordance with Section 1158 o° the
Corzoralior fax Ac: 2010

The Compary has a single share ¢!
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& Customs tngl the Company Pas been cccepled as
treent tust for accouriing perods
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COMMENCITG on ar alter T AP 2012
Comnany conuinaing to meet (he ehgiility condilors of
Secun 158 Corsorannn Tax Al 2010 and the ongoing
reqirenents for apnroved companies in Chaptar 3

of Part 2 Investment Trust (Asoioy
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
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to be the Key Perfarmance indicatais on pages 26 and 27
The Charman's Staemen: and the Mardger's Report qive
full details and anasysis of the results for the year

SHARE CAPITAL AND BUY-BALK ACTIVITY
Al 31 March 2027 e Company had 317,350,980
(2020 317350.980) Ordinary shares in 1ssue

LLtho AGRL IR 2020 the Direclors wiie yivin power 1o
Iu\# back 47570971 Grdinary shares Sinee this AGR Lhe
Grectors have nat baughl hack ary Ordinary shawes at
the nomina value of 25p each undes this authonly Ihe
outstanding authonity 1s therefore 47570911 shares
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This suthority will expie al the 2027 AGM . The Campany
will seek (o iesew the power to maike market purchases
of Ordinary shaes at tms vedi s AGM

Since 1Agn- 2027 %0 the date o* this report, the Compary
has mace no marke: zuchases fof cancellalion The Boaig
1as not set a spectfic ciscount at which shares wil be
eourcnasec

MANAGEMENT ARRAMGEMENTS AND FELS
Detalls of 1Fe inanagement avargemesils and fees are
set out 1 the Repotl of tre Maragement Engagamant
Commitiee beginning an page 53 Tolai fees pand
o the Managerir aty oae year (Maragement znc
Performarce Fees) may nol exceed 499% o' Group
Equity shareholders” Funds. Total ‘ees sayable for the
vear (0 31 March 2021 armount fo 1 2% (2020 0 84%) ol
Group Eauity Shareholde s Funds Incuded in this we ¢
perfurmarce fees earned 11 the year ended 31 Maich 202°
o' £9.639000 (7020 £2.683.000)

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND [FRS
Ihe Group ard Corpany financial statements for the yeal
2pded 37 March 21321 have neer presared on a goitg
carcert basis i accordance with ntermationa Financis
Rezoruing Stardards CGFRS), wehich comanse standards and
nterpretalicrs appoved by the riariatioral Accauntg
Slancards Board (1A58) logether wm'“ INLeroretaliors
ol the Interational Accounting Standa-ds 3=d Standing
Literpratations ommeise aporoved by the nlerraliona:
ALCOUT LG Standaids Committes (JASC) hat seman i
Hact, Lo Lhe extant thal they nave bees odoplea oy e
Lurased 1 Brion ang as regatss the Gious ard Lompaiy
financia statements, 2y appiec 10 accarcancs with the
provisions of e Lo nsemes At 207

The accourung polices ae sel oul i vgie 119 the
Finarcia, Statements on pages 73 1w 77
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Reppry of the Directors

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
T7e Campany’s FInancial nstraments (ompasa its
insestment aoriole, cast palarces, barrowangs anc
aebrors and creditors that anse Criecty, from its operations
sich as sa:es ang puiCIases av emnent, profi

i lass batances an denvalrye 1nslramens and accrued
income ard expensas Toe finanaal nsk mandagement
ohjectives and policies ansing from its firancia:
instruments ang exposure of the Lompaty o nis< are
disclosed in note 11 10 the iInanaa’ staierments

Maling se

GUING CONCERN

The Girectors assessmers af tre longer-te'm wiability of
he Compary 15 sel ot an pages 33 ard 34

i1 assessiag Going Corcers, e Bo2d ras mede 3 detaned
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AlFAY and Portfohe #anager reparls end quatte:ly conliol

r2porls Key nsks have heerdentfied ana controbs put i
place tomit Iqﬂir them, includi g those nol directly the
resoonsibinty of the ARVt or Paritcha Mearager 1he <y
lsks are exc:\nmcd i more ceall 1 e Shategic '%mm'
0% pages 28 to 32

The efiectiveness of eect Lhird ety providers internal
Contrass §s assessed 03 3 conunuing sasis by the Corrphance
and Risk deparlments of the AiFtA and Portfolio &anager

e Admimstrator and the Company Secretary Each
Tntns (15 it Systan of inlaraal contros, and the Board
and Audy. Comnmittee recelve reguias reports flom e

[ne contral systems are desigred 1o provide ua:onank, but
not ahsolute, assurance aganst matenal misstatemeat o
‘uss airC to merage, rathe than ebmirate, nsk of lallure o
arrieve obeclives

As the Corpany hes o employess and (15 coelaticnal
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Commities does Not consicen 1L necessary 'or tha Compay
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Kew nisks icdenutied by the Auditors are corsidered by the
Audit Commitlee Lo ensure robustinterral contiols and
monitonng procedures are 1 place in respect of these
nsks g ¢l ongeing basis

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETIMG {THL "AGW )
The G0 waill be held on 27 ,uly 2027 a1 2.30pm a4 1he Royal

Autamobile Cub, 89791 Pall Mai, - ordan SW1Y SHS The hNolice

of AGN s seloul un sages 100 3ne 30 1he full textof the
resolutions and an explanation of @ach s contained i the
Notice ol AGM and explanalory rotes on pages 104 10107

MATERIAT INTERESTS

There were 7o cantracts subsssting during of at the eng

al the year in which a director of the Company 1s 01 was
matenally interested and which 15 or was significant in
relalion to e Company s business ™o Director has a
convact of service wath the Coraeny Farther detans
regarchng the appoiniment fefters can be found or page 52

DONATIONS
fhe Compary mads ro ochiical o chartable donabians
dunre the vear {2020 £rilj

LISTING RULE DHSCLOSLRE

Tae Compary corirms tnat there 4.2 ro tems which

reqaiie disciosdie unde: T15u0g Ru'e 94 4% 10 respect of
ferch 2027

the

iy :
Subject 1 applml £ sl
shares Tay e psued wath sacnghss ard rastnctions as
e Comrpany me
15 70 such resolunan o so e as it does not make spedic
provision) as the Board may denide Subect to the Arhices,
the Companies ACP 2004 and otfer sha-enoiders nghts,
unissued shares are ai the disuosal of the Board

pyn Araeron
vy AT

Al g genzry. mesting of the Campany, wner vollg s
nderaken by way oF 2 poil, gach sharz afods its awner

0ne yole

Aost T 0 Yt

No meher shal be entited 1o otz af e h3s been

sl e resinclior nobee (as delined in tre Aricles)
s lplure o pmwde the Company wath infarmation
conce g nteests n tse shaes cequired o be
provided umdﬁ Hwe Companies Act 2006

P D
frs vt #unn,

Volss aie exercisable at the gene-el meenrg of e Com,ay

In respect ol whne the huseress ]EH‘-L/J voleC Upon 15 DEIng

at. Jl@s are oleer sharehoicers nights,

v by oidina v esolulior decide, o (if there

heard Votes may be exarosed inpersor, by sxy, o in
relation to colporale rmembers, by commorate representatives

The Arucles provide a deachne for submission o proxy
forms of not less than 48 hours {(or such shorter time
as the Board may deten-une) befoie the meaung (not
excluding non-working deys)

feanstei of Sharas

Ay shares i ine Comoany may be heid 10 uncertificatad

form ard, subect to the Articles, ele to ancertificated snares

may be transferred by means of a 1elevan: system. Subjec:
the Asticies, ainy merber may transfes ali or any of s

certificated shares by an instument of transfer ir any usua)

form o any other form which e Board may approve

Mgmficant Votng Rights

Al 31 March 2021, no snareholders held aver 34 of woling
nghts an a discretionary basis However, ot 37 March 2021
the “ol'owing sharencldess retd over 3% of e votirg
ghts an a non-cisceetionasy Basls

Shareholder ‘

Brewid Dalphin Ltd - M.1%
Retail Investors - UK 8.9%
Interactive Investor Share Dealing Services 7.4%
Rathbone Investrment Management Ltd 51%
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management Ltd 51%
Quilter Cheviot Investment Management Ltd 3.9%
Investec Wealth & Investment Ltd 3.8%
(harlesw Stanlgy Group plc 3.0%

yee above tof urber rtonnation of the vo' 1 g 1 ghts of Sidiesy shieres
Since 37 March 2027 1w the cae of this repoit, the
Company hos ol bheepinfarmed af any nobable chasces
wAr resoect 10 the Jrdinary skares

aomnes of Asvaoaian
The Corpany’s AT @5 of Assotatior may only oe
arendad by a specizl esoulion ot a Genera’ Meelg of

e siarerolcers

necdments 1o e Artic 25 of ASS0CIauon Wit e
sraposed at the 2027 AGM and further details a2 set ol

-

on page 10e 1o Ty

C‘\:r\;;;y'su TRS R PR )
tull details are given e the Corsorae Goverra e Reporl
1osages 4d 1o 50 The Corporete Govarnance RE‘QO"C forms

Daf! ot tus Directons” Repar:
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T2 3oa¢ ol Brrectois s accoantable to shareholaass for

the governance of the Company's affars

This statement describes hoyw the snnop es of the 201
edrion of UK {arporate Gavernance Lode (e (ow“
1ssdect by the Finanazl Resorting Courcl (the FRL™

2018 have been appied 1o tre affans of the Coh.pam The
Code can be viewed ol w1 org uk

Applicatian of the AIC {ode s Pringdpies
1V applying e pncigie of the Coce, the Diectods
have 350 taken account of the 2019 Cade o Corporale
Governance published oy the AIC he "AIL Lode ) of which
the Comparny 15 @ IT"’IHDGY The AIC Coce esiablishes tne
framevworc of best pracuce speaficaily for the Boards of
insestmant Uus. companies Furrermore the AlC Code
"as fuli “F‘du sement of the 20, swbich means tal AL
embes wno 2pot against the AL (oce, @
mest ther J'rlILJJUODj Jirdier lhe Code and e
lsTiosuTe eguiremenis conterred 1m the Lshirg R es
AIC Coce can be wiewed v TR (0K

0ar @

The Direclorn beleve that durg the senoc Jider 12new
e have complied with e mare prinoples ane relesat
Srovisions of e (oce, imsolar as they anp sy i ie

COre ™y s BUSITESS, drC wn 1

SR PR B PR
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Campusitian anag iadepeinivnge of the S
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Tae goard sunscibes 1o e view expressed 10 {Fe AIC
Code that lang-serving Directars should rot he praver.ed
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recuces tus of her abilty o actingependenty Tae
Board’s paicy o lerure s thal continuey 2o expeneancs
add sigrificerly o e stiergt of the Boord aithough
the Bog d believes in the ments of ar oagoing and
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Do xSty
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“ecognises 12 Jeefl
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DIRECTORS

The Chianman 1s M wWatson and the Seriof Indepencent
Director 1s M Marson A Watson succeeded M Seabom
as Chaman when he relned fiom the Board of Cueclol
following the AGM on 28 July 2020 M1 Marmison succeedead
M Watsor ey the Seron Independent Director on this

dale The Dwrectors’ biographies. on pages 38 and 39,
demonstrate the breadth of investment, commercial and
professional expenerce relevant o their posiiens as
Drectors of the Company

DIrectors’ retirernent oy rotaticn and re-election
to the Articles of Asscaiation 'n accordance with U
an directors will De subject 1o annaa 1e-e ecion

15 subjec!
* Code,

Mis Bolsove:, Ms Caras, Mr Gillban<s, Mr darnsor,
MowWalson \wH all retire at the forthcorming AGAH 10
accoldance with the Cace and. being elgible, will offer
tremnselves for re-elecior All Direciors ate recarged as
peing free ol any con‘icts of interast and ro issues in
espect of incepencence anse The Boad has concludad
that all Cireciors corunue to make va-uabie contnizutians

BOARD MEEFINGS

Tie rumber oF meeungs of the Board arg Comimi
indrvidual Directars, are shawre below

David Watson
Tim Gillbanks
Simon Marrison
Kate Bolsover
Sarah-Jane Curtis

I adeiig o

represer thenterests af the Company, arc

The Boaris tesponsibe for
Dy 12 Bozd al me2hipgs acarst a fFarewors wwc“
he 2raaged s egared [he 3oaid nas g formal so

(aeygused F 00 eatings, ncuding state
LOMIS {j’“'l NG, 55l alocalion, share

eduie

tees hele du

fmmel Board and Commiiee meetings, the Directors glso attend a numbe” of nfamal o
1o discuss ooerational matkets ¢ succession o anrirg

fe efiecve slewarcship of the Company's all
nas been
of matters speafica v 1eseryed for
s Tanacemet
price discount coriracts, mveshiment poicy,

and beleve that they remamn independent in chasacler

Al Judgement

Directors are not compensated by the Company for loss of
office 10 an event of a takeover bid

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established an Audil Committee,
Momination Commelee and a Aanagement Engw]t nen
Committee. which also carnes out the funciions of
a Remuneration Commuttee All the Duectors of the
Company are non-execubive ard sedve on eack Commutles
af the 3oard it has heen the Company s policy 10

include all Directars or all Comrutiees This encourages
unity, clear communication and grevents duplication of
discussion between the Boere and the fommitiees

H
E

The roles ard respoasibilities af eact Com™ustee are set
out on he irdividua’ Cammitise reports which follow Facn
Comrutiee nas witten terms o reference which cleariy
define 115 responsibiliies ard duttes These car be found
o the Compay's websiie, are av a\\ah on equest and
Wil also be avallable far Dspec[mﬂ at the AGH

e year  nder review and the attencance of

urmag

neetngs o

Ay Cestan stratagic 1ssues are monitorad

el Adabonal meeurgs may

Hs decision. wouch are
BP0, e

| rEslicions

Alh the Sanao

agleer

SULC S, Gapkian Al

linapce, 1< nyestimer

performanee, carparale govemands and Beand nembershio and apooiniments

1% order by e aable hem o discharge then -ﬂ’pamm s, 2b Diectos aave Lt and timely access o retevanl mta malor
Al ach meeting ‘m:) Goaid reviews the Lampany s investment pe-formance «nd comsicers finznaal analyses ard olber
feparls of an upt onal =ature The 30270 monitors compilance with the Compary's objectives ard s responsible for

21ng asse! a’-om 1or and mvestment and gearmq imts wethie wiich the Pm'fowu mmﬂgm nas discret
el sorttoho, w

thus suoeryises the Tanagement of the mvestr

tion to act ard

tuch s contractuzlly de egaiec ‘o the Portioio Manage!
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{atparate Governgine Repart

The Board has responsioihity for the approval of
Ivesiments i unquoled investments and any
mvestrents in funds marayec of advised by the Poiticlo
Manager 1 has alse acopted 4 procedure io Directors,
mthe fu therance of ther duties, o lake rdependen:
professional advice at the expease o' the Company

COMFPLITTS OF IMTERENY
nhne with the Compainies Art 2005, the Board has the
Hower 10 autharnss
anse ard roose suct imuts o corditions as 11 thinks it A
reqsier of patential conthicrs s mantamed and 1s reviesyad at
eyely Board meelng Lo eastre ali detais are kepl up-lo-gate
Aporoenaie authonselon il he saught priorn o the
appointmert of any new Giacior o0 ary naw conf icls a7se

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLOERS

Sareroicer ielabons are green § o,
the alFt 3ad the Poiluho Marager T2 pime \edl
b werich the Compeny cor e tes with share o de 5

neual Resorts whuch ar— 10

ooovies sharehodens \;|:h & clpal Uedersiardiag of vie

15 7rough the e an
Corrpany s acaties arc e resulls Tus iformauon 1s
oy the dary caledichior 0F Ine het Assel

Sary s Oudirany shares whict s 2anusned

sApsleepted o

Vaide of tme Cars

an ihe Londo Stock Exchange

e Campany s
wlth @ manth

TEIDEn (0 [Z)E‘i“"1€“

ag iAns 1J| COparTeys

e AT SPatene cons wasTImg T i
advancs of the AL, o

St contact e

WTe, arg mer do S TR I I e
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any potential conflicts of nterest that reay

Investmer: Jojecive and he ps to ensure that ali decisions
are made in a resporsib-e aad susianabe way

Loon appointment Direclo's” are g ovided with & detalled
induction outhning ther- duties, legatly and requlatory
a Directo” of a LK pubhc hrered comuany ang continue 1o
requarly receve relevant lechnicdl Jodates and training
Under theiretter of appoinimen: the Dizeclors also have
Aucess Lo e advice and services of te Company Secretary,
and when deemed necessary, the Directors have the
apporiunity Lo seel irdependent professiwonal advice i the
‘uttheranes of therr duties as a directon 3! the Cormpany’s
expense The Company 2as a schedu e m’ Matters Reserved
for the Boare whicn clearly descnioes the Boaid’s duties
ANG resp0rsIBites @ addingr, ;nere are also the Termg

ol Refererces ol e Boeros Committees which authng

e esgosibiilies that ate delegated from the Board

Tre Tesms of References oe reviewed at l2ast annua
consiter

e
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Shareholders

Shareholder support 15
essential to the existence of
the Company and delivery
of long term strategy of the
busitiess.

The Manager

Holding the Company’s

shares offers investors a

liquid investment vehicle
through which they can obtain
exposure to the Company’s
diversified portfolio. The
Investment Manager's
performance is critical for

the Company to successfully
dehiver its investment strategy
and meet its ohjective.

The Company has over 3,000 Shareholders, incfuding institutional and retail investors. The
Board is committed to maintaining open channels of communication and to engage with
Shareholders in 3 manner they find most meaningful in order to gain an understanding of
their views. These include the channels below:

Annual General Meeting - the Company welcomes and encourages attendance and
participation from Sharehotders at its AGM. Shareholders have the appartunity to meet the
Directors and Manager and to address questions to them directly, The Manager attends the
AGM and provides a presentation an the Company’s performance and the future outlook. The
Company values any feedback and questions it may receive from Shareholders ahead of and
during the AGM and takes action or makes changes, when and as appropriate.
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Publications - The annual and half year reports are made available on the website
and sent to sharehelders. These publicatiens provide information on the Company and
its portfolic of investments and a better understanding of the Trust's financial position.
This is supplemented by daily publication of the NAY on the Stock Exchange and
monthly factsheets on the Company’s website. The Company is open to feecback from
sharehalders to improve its publications.

Shareholder meetings - The Manager meets with sharehaolders pericdicaliy and often and
feedback is shared with the Board.

Working with the Brokers - The Manager and Brokers work together to maintain dialogue
with shareholders and prospective investors at scheduled meetings. The Board is provided
with regular updates at meetings and outside meetings it required.

shareholder concerns - in the event that Shareholders wish to raise issues or concerns

with the Board, they are welcome te do so at any time by wniting to the Chairman at the
registered office. The Senior independent Director is also available to Shareholders if they
have concerns that contact through the normal channel of the Chairman has failed to resolve

Maintaining a close and constructive working relationship with the Manager is crucial, as
the Board and the Manager both aim to continue to achieve consistent, long-term returns in
line with the Company’s investment objective. Important components in the collabaration
with the Manager, representative of the Company’s culture include those listed below.

Encouraging open, honest and collaborative discussions at all tevels, allowing time and
space for original and innovative thinking.

Ensuring that the irmpact on the Manager is fully considered and understood before any
business decision is made.

Ensuring that any patential conflicts of interest are avoided or managed effectively.

The Board holds detailed discussions with the Manager on all key strategic and operational
topics on an ongoing basis. In addition, the Chairrnan reqularly meets with the Manager to
ensure a close dialogue is maintained.
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Cotporale Govertance Bepoant
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External Service Providers, particularly the Company Secretary, the Administrator, the Registrar and the
Deposntory and the Broker

A range of advisers enables
the Company to function as
an investment trust and a
censtituent of the FTSE 250 to
ensure it meets its relevant
obligations.

The Board maintains reqular contact with its key external providers and receives reguiar

reporting from them through the Board and committee meetings, as well as outside of
the regular meeting cycle. Their advice, as well as their needs and views are routinely
taken into account. The Managerment Engagement Committee formally assesses their
performance, fees and continuing appointment at least annually to ensure that the

key service providers continue to function at an acceptable level and are appropriately
remunerated to deliver the expectaed level of service. The Audit Committee reviews and
evaluates the control environments in place at each service providef as appropriate.

Lenders

Availability of funding and
liquidity are crucial to the
Company's ability to take
advantage of investment
oppertunities as they arise.
Regulatoss

The Company can only
operate with the approval
of its requlators who have
a legitimate interest in how
the Company operates in
the market and treats its
shareholders.

The Board needs to demaonstrate to lenders that it is a2 well-managed bustness capabie of
consistently delivering long-term returns.

The Board reqularly considers how it meets vasious regulatory and statutofy obllgaﬂons and
folows veluntary and best-practice quidance, including how any governance decisions it
makes can have an impact on its stakehaldess, both in the shorter and in the longer-term.

lnvestee Compames

Portfollo companies are
ultimately shareholders
assets and the Board
recagnises the importance

of good stewardship and
communication with investee
companies in meeting the
Company’s investment
objective and strategy.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

The Manager communlcates regularly with portfolio companies and is an engaged

shareholder (on behalf of the Company).

The Board maonitors the Manager’s stewardship arrangements and receives regular feedback
on meetings with the management of pertfolio companies and voting at their general
meetings.




dividends. The Board recognises ihe impoitance of dividends
to sharehotders and after catelul reviewy of the Company's
revenue forecasts and reserves together with the investment
outlook with the Manager, the Board decidad that,
notwithstanding the exceptional marxet canditions, it would
draw an the revenue reserve Lo suppuit the dnadend

PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT

Ouning the year the Doard continued to focus on the
performance of the Manager 1n achieving the Company's
investment ohjective within an dappropriate nsk framewaork
Following the emergence of the COVIDA19 pandemic in March
2020, the focus widened Lo corsider the potential impact of
COVID-19 on the Company (ircluding portioha actnaty, nsks and
opportumties, geaning, revenue farecasts and the operations
of other thid party providers) lo ensure that the portfolia had
sufficient resilience togethes witk: the Company's operational
siruclure to meel the unprecedented arcumstances

DIRECTORATE

The Board's policy on tenure was reviewed during the

year The stabilily of the Board dunng one of the maost
challenging penods was considerad important particularty
as appointments had been made W the Board in October
2019 and January 2020 Therefore, no changes were made
to the Board composition dunng the financal year However,
the Board 15 mindful of the importance of having a switable
succession plan espedally as David Watson has served on
the Board since 2072 ang Siman tarmmsen singe 2071

CULTURE AND BUSINESS LONDUCT

The Board 15 1n agreement Lhal having a good corporate
cullure, partcularly 17 1ts engagement with the Manager,
shareholders and other key stakeholders vall aid defivery
of 1ts long term strategy The Board promates a culture
ol openness, 1n hne with this purpese thiough cngoing
engagement with its service providers and the Manager

The Directors agree that establishing and mantaining

a healthy corporate culture within the Board and 1n 1ts
interaction wath the Meanager, Shareholders and other
stakehalders vall support the delivery of its purpose, values
and strategy The Board seeks to pomote a culture of
openness, debate and inlegnty th-ough angaing dialogue
and engagement with its service providers, prinapaily the
Manager The Board slives to ensure thal s culture 15 1n
ane with the Company s purpase, values and strategy.

The Compdny has a numaer of po'ices and proceduies
mplace o assist with maintaining a culiure of good

governance including those reiating to diversity,

Duwectars’ conflicts of interest and Directors” dealings in

the Company’s shares The Board assesses and monilors
comphance with these policies as well as the general
culture of the Board reqularly through Board meetings and
in particular dunng the annual evaluation process which s
underlaken by each Director (for more mformation see he
Board evaluation sechion on page 57)

The Board seeks 1o appoint the best possible service
providers and evaluates thewr service on a regular basis
as described on page 53 The Board considers the cultuie
of the Manager and other service providers, including
their policies, practices and behaviour, through reqular
reporting from these stakehaolders and in particular dunng
the annual review ol the performance and conbinuing
appointment of all service providers,
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EMPLOYEE, SOUTIAL iMPACT AND WIDER
COMMUNITY

the Board recognises Lhe requiremert under the Companies
Act 2006 to detall information aboul human nghts,
employees and community 1ssues, inctuding information
about any pahices it has in relation to these mallers and
lhe effectiveness of these policies These requirements,
practically, are not applicable ta the Company as 1t has no
employees, all the Directors are on-executive and 1t has
oulsourced all operational lunctiors i third-party service
providers Theretore, the Cornpany nas not reported furthe
in respect of these provisions

DIRECTORS INDEMNITY

Directors” and Cfficers” hability 1nsurance cover 1 15
place in respect of the Diectors The Company s Articles
ol Association provide, subject Lo the provisians of UK
tegislation, an indemumity for Doeciors in respect of Costs
wihich they may incur selating o the defence of any
proceedings prought aganst them ansing out of theu
positions as Cirectors, o which they are acquitted ol
judgernent s giverin therr favour by the court,

To the extent permitted by law and by the Company s
articles of Associatiod, the Company has entered into
deeds of indemnity 'or the benefit of each Direclor of
the Company i respect of habiliues which may atiach to
thern in thenr capacity as Dueclors of the Company These
pravisions, which are gualifying third party indemnity
provisions as defined by section 234 ol the Companies
AcL 2006, were introduced in janJary 2007 and currently
remain in force
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{arparate Governance Repart o'

DIRECTORS  STATEMENT AS TO DiSCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION TQ AUDITORS

The Duectors who were members of the Board at Lthe time
of approving the Diectors’ report are histed on pages 38
and 3% Having made enquines of fellow directors and of
the Company's audilors, each ol these Directors confimes
thet

to the best of each Director’s know'edge and heuel,
there ts no informatian {that 1s, nformation needed by
the Company’'s auditors In connection with preparng
their report) of which the Company's auditars are
unaware, and

each Duectar has taken al' the steps a Directar might
reasanably be expecied to have taken o be aware of
relevant audit information and to estabash that tre
Compary's auditors are aware of that information

This information s gven and shouid be interpreted 1n
accoidance with the provisions of Section 438 of the
Companies Act 2006

3y orde of the Boad

David Witson
Chairman

3 june 202°
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Report of the Nomination Committee

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Charrman- Mr watson

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES

Review the Board and s Committees and make
recommendations 10 relation to structure, size and
camposition, the balance of knowledqge, expenence
and skill ranges,

Consider successior planmng and leaure policy and
oversee the development of a diverse pipeline,

Cansider the re-election of Directors, and
Review the outcome of the board evaiuation process.

The Nomination Committee meels at least an an annual
basis, and more frequently as and when required and last
mel in March 2021

ACTIVITY DURING THE YEAR

The Commuttee discussed succession planning of the
Board, the tenure and diversity pohoes.

The Commitiee annually reviews the size and structure

of the Board and will continue Lo review successian
planning and further iecimtment and lake inlo account the
recommendations ol external Board evaluations.

BOARD EVALUATION

Following the ergagement of Tim Stephenson of
Stephenson & Co, 1o faaltate an independent evaluation
of the effectiveness of the Board, its commeitees and
the perfarmance of each director for the year ended

31 March 2020 The annual evalualion for the year ended
31 March 2021 was camed aul by the Campany This
took the form of questionnaires followed by discussions
toidenufy the effectiveness of the Board's actvities,
Including its Commuttees

Tne Chairman alsa reviewed with each Director then
indradual performance, contribution and comliment
The appraisai of the Charrman foilowed the saime format
and was led by Simor Marrisar. The results ol the
evaluation process were presented to and considered by
the Board. There were nao stgmificart actions ansing from
the evaluatior process and It was agreed tnat the curren:
composition of the Board and 1ts Committees reflected a
suitable mix of skills and experierce. and that the Boarg
as ¢ whole the indridual Dnectors and ils Comrittees
wele funchioning effectively

Alter careful consideralion, particuarly of the Board's Policy
Governing Board Members’ Tenure and Reappaintment, all
of the direciors, will be alfening themselves for re-eiection
at the larthcoming AGM IL1s considered that each of them
merit re-election hy sharehalders. Fuither information on

each directors’ skills and their contnbution to the Board are
ou:hned in tne directors” biographies on pages 38 and 3%

In accordance with the provisions of the Code. it 1s the
intention of the Board to engage an external faahtator 1o
assist with the performance evaluation every three years
and the next exlernal evaluation will be carned out for
the year ended 31 March 2023 The Board will continue to
complete aninternal board evaluation annually within the
INlervening years.

BOARD'S POLICY ON TENURE

In ine with the update of the Code 1n 2018, the AIC has
updated its Cade of Corporate Governance in 2019 The AIC
recommended. under Provision 24, a different approach to
fenure In relalion to Investment Companies, considering
how they differ ta chairs of operating compames, where
the Board does not have a chief executive The Board look
into consideration the approach and intraduced the Policy
Governing Beard Members' Tenure and Reappointment’
This policy outhnes the Company’s approach to tenure and
ieappointment of non-executive directors It bighlights the
Board's belief that the value brought through continuity
and expenience of Directors with longer perods of service
15 10t only desirable, but essential In an investment
company The Board did nol feei that 1t would be
appropnale io set o speafic tenure hmit for indwidua:
Directors a1 the Chairman of the Board or 1ts commuttees
Instedd, the Board will seek Lo recruit a new Cirector an
average every lhree years so as regularly to bnng the
challenge of fresh thinking into (he Beard's discussions.
ensunng that or each occasion thal the Board enters into
nevs investment commitments, al feast half the Beard
members have duect personal expenence of negobating
previgus commitiments with the Manager

DIRECTORS' TRAINING

When a new Director is appointad, he/fshe 1s olfered
training to st therr needs Directors are alse piovided
wItT key information on the Company's activities on

a reqular basis, including requlatary and statutory
requirements and nte-na* controis Changes affecting
Cirectors’ responsibilities are advised ta the Board as they
anse Diectors ensure that they are updated onieguialary,
statutory and industry matters
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Report of the Management Engagerment ommitiec

MANAGEMENT ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE

o

KEY RESPONSIBILIFIES

TR ITRRNEN IR | B AT TR
I e i
[ ‘ ! ! ENTR PR TI |
Sy e
SIS [T i st d i

cothotthe et

R TR SN N TR PO IATI SN P IS [T TE R SN TRSTT LSRN o

vt ed e r el et Poattal g e

N AT BT noe ol N T IR PR O
TR I R [P O B A NN R TN

cthe s it o IR RN TR LSRR AN B

A E R TS S EEN OTTS BN (PRI VRS PR Y

ol TN S|

T S R PRIt S FER MR PR FLO
sl thad g o s e

Dot Lorepte sl ot

pceadeis v Ldees el

‘B
3
m
£
=

]
=
[=]
L]

MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS AND TELS
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MAMAGEMENT FEES he used for olfsel purposes arly and therefore cannot
have the effect of creating a fee in a year whee 4 fee
would not atherwise be payable or increasing the fee
In that year Al 37 March 2077 there 1s a carry forward of
outperformance of 18% (2020 18%)

The fee for the perod under review was 3 fixed fee of
£3,745,000 plus an ad valoremn fee of 0 20% pa based an
the net asset value {delermined ir accordance with the
AIC method of valuation) on the last day of March, June,

> S 5 Ahle 3[4 =) . .
september and December, payable quarlely in advance NG fee will be payabie unless the adjusted nel assels

The fee arrangements have been reviewed by the Boa-d outperfarm the hurdle rate. after taking 1no account

for the year to 31 March 2022 and the Tixed element of the  @NY acCumulated percentage underperformance
fee and the ad valorem rate vall remain unchanged brought forward at the beginmng of the nanual year
Performance fees eained in the year ended 31 March

The Board continues 1o consider that the fee structure 2021 were £9.659000 (2020 £2,683,000) Total fees
aligns the interests of the sharehclder and the Managet as paid to the Manager in any one yea: (Managemen: and
weil as being highly competitive Performance Fees) may nol exceed 4 99% of Group Equily
Shareholders” Funds Total fees payabie for the year to 37
The fee arrangements will continue Lo be reviewsed on an March 2021 amount 1o 1.2% (2020 0 8%) of Group Equily

arnual basis shareholders’ Funds,

PERFORMANCE FEES DEPOSITARY ARRANGEMENTS AND FEES

In acdition to the management fees, the Board has agreed

1o pay the Manager pe-lormance related fees in respect of — BNP Panibas was appainted as Depositary on 14 july 2014

an accounting peniod if certain performance objectives are 1N accordarce with the AIFMD The Depositary s

acileves responsibilities include cash monitonng, segregation ard
safe keeping af the Compary’s finaraal instruments, an

A performance fee s payable if the totai return of adusted  manstoning the Company's <o ﬂpllaﬁce with invesiment

aet assels (Ejfli‘! deduction of ali Base Maragement and EVErage egurerments The Depositary receives
Fees and other expenses), as defined 12 the IMA, at for its services a fee of 20 basis points per arnJm on

31 aarch each year U‘JTDE”UWS the tata return of the tre firsl £750 rullion of the Company's assets, 14 basis
Company’s beacimark olus 1% (the "hurd e rate”), this poInts per annuim on assels above £150 milion and
cutperformance (expressed as a percentage) 1s known belaw £500 million and 075 basis poi~is on assels above
as the "ercentage oulpe ‘ormarce” Any fee payable £500 N,

will be rhe AT OLN. nq valent to the adjusted net assels

At 31 Marcy eact year nuluohed by the percentage REVIEW OF THIRD PARTY PROYVIDERS FEES
autperformarce, thcn Tutupled by 15% The maximum Custody and Adminsration Services are provided b‘.»’
performance fee payable fom 2 penind 1s capped at 15% BNP Paribas and Company Secretanal Semwices by |

of the adjusted el assels Hawever 1f he acjus.ed Company Mallers The fees for these services are cha ge
net assets at the enc of eny denod are less than at the cinectly (o the Compary and are contained within
beginring of tre Denad, the maximum performance fee afver admiist-ative expenses disclased in notes to the
payabe w22 mited 1o 1% of the adjustad et assets accounts

I" tne tolal “elurn of shareaclders funds for any

performance oer od 15 l2ss then the Sercamaik for the
reevent peiormance penod, such Jmsrpcu ‘ormance
exoressec as a perceniage) wil he cared i z

TJwure perfarmance pennds 3 une 20271

David Watson

I”any ‘e exceess e 2D, 3UCh EXCess Derer Manie

(2xzressed as a percenrage) wi'l be cemec for Larg 307

applied o offse 1lage underpefarmarce

It faure parforrence oenocs n e evelihe he

Dﬁ'ﬂ(hf“a'k 15 eaceaded oui tFe hurdie 1s ~ot, 1mal
Jpertfonimg-ee of the heachmerk can bo‘ 2d 10 a'fsat

pas. o future gnderoe-formance These armoun's G4
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

INTRODUCTION

The Board has prepared lhis report and the Birectars’
Remuneraton Policy, in accordance with the requirements
of Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium Sized Companies
and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Requlations 2013 An
ordinary resotution far the approval of this report will be
put to the members at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

The law requires the Company’s Auditors, KPMG LR

to audit certain of the disclosures provided Where
disclosures have heen audited, they are indicaled as such,
The Auditer's opinion is included in the ‘Independemnt
Auditor’s Report’

ANNUAL STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF
THE COMMITTEE

The MEC met n March 2027 and considered the results
and feedback from the board evaluation alengside
ather factors The MEC also considered the frequency of
remuneration increases ‘or the Trust, feedback from the
market and investers on the level of frequency and the
current impact of the outbrear of (oronavirus (COVID-19)

Following the MEC meeting in March 2021, 1t was agreed
that the curent level ol reemuneration for the Board of the
Trust remamned appiopiiale 1t was also agreed Lhat the
Non-executive Dieclor's fee would remain at £35,000 per
annurn wilh effec from T Apnl 20271 1t was further agreed
that the Directors holding the iole of the Audit Committee
Chairman and Senior Independent Director would continue
to recerve an additional £5,900 1o reflect the increase
their responsibilties. Moreover, 1L was agreed that the
Chairman’s remuneration would iemair at £70,000

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company's policy 15 that the fees payable (o the
Directoss snould refiec: the bme spent oy the Boarg an
the Company's alfans and the responsibihities barre by the
Direclors and should be sufficient o erable candidates o
high calibie to be recited The palicy 1s for the Charrman
of the Board, the chairman of the Audit Comnmittee anc
the Senior Independen: Diectol 1o He paid higher fees

than the other Direclors 1n recegnitien of their more
onerous toles This policy was approved by the members
at the 2020 AGM, and the Drreclors” intention 1s that this
will conlinue for the year ending 31 March 2023

The Directors are remunerated in the form of ‘ees,
payable monthly in afrears, to the Directar persanally ol
to a third parly specihied by that Director There are 10
long-term incentive schemes, sharo option schemes o
pension airangements and Lhe fees are not specthically
related to the Direclors’ performance, either mdividually or
collectively

Ihe Baard consists entiiely of Non-execubive Directors,
who are appointed with the expeclation that they wilf
serve for a period of three veals. Directors’” apoointments
are reviewed lormally every thiee years thereafter by lhe
Board as a whale None of the Disectors have a contracl
of service and a Otrector may resign By nolice 1IN wiiting
lo the Board at any time, here are no notice periods The
terms of their appoimiment are delailed in a letter ta them
when they join the Board As the Directors do not have
service contracls, the Company does nol have a3 paicy on
lermination payments

There 1s no nolice penod and no payments {or loss of
office were made dunng the penod The Company’s
Articles of Association currently it the total aggiegale
fees payable lo the Board to £300,000 per annum

Snaretalders views i1 respect of Direciors remunasation
are communicated at the Company's AGM and are taen
into account 1 formulating the Oirectors remuneration
poiicy Al the tast AGM, aver 99 6% of shareholders voled
for the -esolution approving the Directors Remunreration
Repoil (D 4% agamst) Al the 2020 AGM, over 99% voled
for the resolution aperoving the Directors’ Remuneration
Palicy (0 4% against), showirg sigraficant shareholder
SuDport

The componenls of the remaneration package for
hor-executive Directors, which are compnsed in the
Directors’ remuneration pahcy of the (ompany are sel gut
below, with a description and approach o determinalion
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Fixed Fees ' Addmonal Fees | Expenses Fees Other

The aggregate lirnit for the Additional fees may be paid  The Directors are > entitled Board membess are not

Fees for the Board as a whole to any Director who fulfils the  to be paid all reasonable eligible for bonuses, pension
is £300,000 per annum, in rale of the Chairman, who expenses properly incurred benefits, share options,
accordance to the Articles of  chairs any committee of the by them attending meetings  long-term incentive schemed
Association, which is divided  Board or who is appointed with shareholders or othes or other non-cash benefits or
between the Directors as as the Senior Independent Directors or otherwise taxable expenses.

they may deem appropriate.  Director. in connection with the

Annual fees are set to These fees will be set djscharge of their duties as

reflect the experience of at a competitive level ta Directars.

each board member and reflect experience and time

time commitment required commitment,
by Board members to carry

out their duties and is

determined with reference to

the appointment of Directors

of similar investment

companies.

ANMUAL REMUNERATION REPQRT

For the vear ended 31 faaich 2027, Direclors’ [ees were 2aic at the annual rates of Chairman £70,000 (2020 £70,000)
and ail other directors: £35.000 (2020 £35000) An addiional £5.00015 paid per annum for each of the 1odes of HUdF'
Committee Chairman and Serior tndependent Directoi The actual amourts paid Lo the Directors dunng the fmancial
under review are as shown belowy

AMOUNT OF EACH DIRECTOR'S EMOLUMENTS (AUDITED)

The fees ayabie in respect of eacn of the Birectors who served duning the iingnaial year were as tollows

31 March 2020

£

David watson®! 40,000
Simon Marrisgn‘® 35,000
Tim Gillbanks 40,600
Kate Bolsover 17,500
Sarah-Jane Curtis 6,372
Hugh-Seaborn® 70,000
Total 208,872
Al “2eg are at a fved rate and there s no vanaole reinunegtion Fws = pro-rated wrere 3 charge fakes pdce Sunng
a T’tﬂ:ma year 1er ] url\,ments o third parses inc aded 1 the fee gur tfﬂ ah\; 3bove Trere are no
furtner ‘zes 1o disciose as the Lompany hes 1o emaloye2s, chiel 2xecuine

Appo rtes os fha e or 8 L, 2920

APRG TR AL S0 oL FOezer Cer T Distln no gy Ly 2L

culreg 23 Che o mer O 28 L v 2020
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Directars’ Remuneration Report <ovtpoed!

COMPANY PERFORMANCE

The graph below compares, lor the len years ended

31 Maich 2027, the percentage change over each pernod

m the share price totat return to shareholders compared

1o the share prnice total return of benchmark, which the
Board considers to be the mosl appropriate benchmark

for Investment perfarmance measurement pUIpOses. AN
explanation of the performance of the Company 15 qiven i
the Chairman's Statement and Manager’s Report

performance Graph - Share Price Total Return for
Ordinary Share Class
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Il R Pioperty Share Price Total Return ¥ Benchmark fotal Return

Share Price Tote Return assum ng nvestment of £1.008 or 37 March 2011 anc
envestment of ¢ 1 d v cencs {excludirg dealing expenses, (Scuice Thdines
River Capital;

denchmark fota Returr assuming 1olicna,investime tinto the index of £1,008 on
3" Mdich 2071 (Souice Tharmes R ves Cap tal)

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN SHARES {AUDITED)

The interests of the Dnectors in the sha-es of the
Company, at the begiming and at the end of the year, ar
date of appointment, i later, were as follows

Ordinary shares of 25 pence

BT X il 31 March 2020
David Watson 36,083 35,692
Simaon Marrison 43,367 42,326
Tim Gillbanks - -
Kate Bolsover 2,360 2,360

Saiah-Jane Curtis - -

Sice 31 March 2027 Lo the date of this reoort, Lthere have
seen no subsequent cnanges to the Gireclors’interests |0
the shares of the Compdry

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay

20 2020
£'000 £000 Change
Dividends paid 44,429 43,794 1.4%
11.0%

Directors’ fees 232 209

Five year change comparison
Over the last five years, Directors’ pay has increased as sel
out in the table below:

2011 2016

£000 £'000 Change
Chairman 70,000 70,000 0%
Audit Committee
Chairman 40,000 35,000 14.3%
Senior independent
Director 40,000 35,000 14.3%
Director 35,000 30,000 16.7%

For and an behalf of the Board

David Watson

3june 2021
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Report of the Audit Committee

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Chairman- Mr Gillbanks

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES

- Review the internal financial and non-finangial controls,

- Review reports from key thrd party service providers,

Consider and recommend 1o the Board foi approvai the
contents of the dral: Intenm and Annual Reports

Review accounting policies and significant financial

feporting judgements,

-+ Monitor, together with the Manager, the Company's
comphance witn finaraal reporting and requlatory
requirements;

- The review and subsequent propoesal 1o 1he Board of
tnentenm and final dividends, and

- Conrsidenng the impact of providing non-audit services
the external Auditor's independence and objectvity

Representatives of the Manager's intena audit and
compharce departments may atlend these commitiee
megtngs at the Comruttee Chanman's request

Representatves of the Company's Auditor attend the
Commuilee meehirgs at which the draft Irtenm and
Arnual Repor and Accounts are ‘eviewed. and are given
the opportuntty 1o speak to the Committee mambers
withaul the presence of the epresentaives of the

Maracer

The Boerd recognises the teguirement for the Audit
Commuiltes as & whole o Fave competence fetevant
to the sector and al least one member with recent and
.’ﬂIP\-ant fimancial expernience The Chasrman 2rd Mr
fatsor are (har mled Accountants with extensive and
recert expernence 1n tre finanaal Senvices 1adJdstry The
oines Termibers of he* Comruttee nave a combinanar of
srooeity, imandal, irvest—ent 3°C DusmeEss expeience
216 pOsIoNs Nels roughoat ther cateers

ACTIVITY DURING THE YEAR

Danng the

Corsideraun™ of the Risk “ien ary changes o te

<2000 0

\*Dac.n'.'- EOHEL

TIgGano”
E=laal=Tugkxtel
el Eollte
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1isks andaincigsion m the Risk ap i appropriate This
has included consideration of the engoing COVID-19
pandemic and impacl acoss a range of 11sk categories,

The Group's Inteinel Controls and consideration of the
Reports thereon,

The ISAL/AAF and SSAETS reports o ther equivalent
from BmO and BNP Parnbas,

whether the Company snould have its pwn internal
audit function,

The txieinal Audiior's Planming Memaorandum setting
out the scope of the annual aueht and propased key
areas of ‘ocus,

the teports fror the Auditors concerning therr audil

af the Financal Statements of the Company and
(omd eratian of Significant 1ssues i relation o the
Finanoal Stalements,

e appopnateness of, and any changes to, the
accounling pohaes of the Company, inclading the
reasonableness of any judgements required by such
policies,

The viabilily Statement ard conside-atior of the
preparation of the Finaraal Statemens on a Going
Concern E%—sws ta<ing account of forwa g ooking Ince ne
foiecas re liquidity o the Mvesimert portcio and

deDI ;J

The “rencial and other disclosures in the finarcal
Slaleme:ua,

Theanformation presentad in e Inleim and Arnual
REDOTS 10 assess whether taker as g whole, the
Repoits are fan, haianced and unde siardable and the
inforreatior presented wil eranle the sharenoiders o
255255 e (armaary 5 posion, Jerforn2ree, business
mode! and strategy,

Tre pergmence 0° e 2dema 2udins, o appio. s
e aanit fees anc consiger the assessmert of
Ingepede e,

[rereies and SUDSRGUS 1 LTopnsai o he 83030 of

et o ang fina deadends, ard




Report of the Audit Lommittee covr o

INTERNAL CONTROES AND MANAGEMENT OF
RISK

The Board has overall responsibitity for the Group's system
al Internal Controls and for reviewing then elfectiveness.
Key 115ks 1dentified by the Auditors are considered by the
Audil Committee to ensure thal obust internal cantrols
and monitonng procedwes m respecl of these are in place
an an angoing basis Further delails can be found on

page 28 (o 32

The Audit Commitiee received and considerad repoits on
Internal Controls from the key service providers No areas
of concern were highhghted,

The Company’s Risk Map was considered to 1dentify any
new risks and whether any adjustments were reguired to
existing risks, and the controls and mitigation measures
in place in respect of these nisks The impact of COVID-19,
the response of finanaial maikets, the ongong impact

on economies around the waorld and operational changes
made by our service providers i response Lo goverrment
guidelines wete considered and the nsk map adjusted
accordingly

Based on the processes and controls in place within the
BMO Greup and other significant service providers, the
Board has concurred that there 1s ro current need for the
Company 1o nave a dedicated internal audit funchon

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES IN RELATION 70O THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Committee has considered tris report and finanaial
sialements and the Vianility Statement on pages 33

and 34. The Committee consicered the Auditor’s
assessment of nsk of matenal misstatemant and reviewed
the interral controls 10 place 1n respect of the key areas
identified and the pracess by which the Board memtors
each of the procedures to give the Committee camiorl

an these nisks on an ongoing basis These nsks are also
highhghted in the Company’s Risk Map

Carrying amount of listed investments (Group
and Parent Company) - The Gioup’s invastments are
priced for the daily NAY by BNP Panbas The quoted
assets ae pniced by the Admimstrator’s Global Pniang
Platiarm which uses indeperdent external pnarg
sodurees The contiol process surrounaing this s sel
out 11 the BNP Fanbas AAF G1/06 Internal Controls
Report and testing by the reporting accountant for the
period reported to 31 December 2020 did not reveal
any significant exceptions The quatterly control repor:
to the Board from BNP Panbas covenng the period up

1o 31 March 2027 had no sigimficant issues to report
In addition the Manager esiimales the NAV usimng
an alternative pricing source on a daily basis as an
Independent check

The Auditars agreed 100% ol the listed investmenls
of the portfoho to externatly quoted pnces and
independently recerved third party confirmations from
nvestment custodions and found the carrying value of
listed investments ta be acceplable

valuation of Direct Property Investments {Group
and Parent Company) - The physical property
portfelhio 1s valued every six manths by professional
Independent valuers

Knight Frank LLP valee the portfolo on the basis of
Fair value in accordance with the RICS Yaluation -
Professional Standards ¥PS4 (1.5) Fair Value and YPGA
1 Valuations for Inctusion in Financial Statements,
which apply the defimtion of Fair ¥alue adopted by
Ihe Internationat Ninancial Reporting Standards. IFRS 13
defines Fair Value as.

“The amount for which an asset could be exchanged, a
hability settfed or an equity instrument granted could
he exchanged, between knowledgeable, willing parties
0 an arm's length transaction”

In undertaking their valualion of each property, Knight
Frank make thesr assessment an the Basis of a collation
and analysis of appropniate comparable investments,
rental and sale transachions, logether with evidence

of demand vathin the vicimty of each property. This
information is then apphed (o the properiies, taking
nto account size, focation, terms, covenant and other
matenal factois.

The hoard has reviewed reports from the Manager and
the external valuer and detenmined the valuation lo he
reasonable

The Auditors have set out their delailed lesting and
procedures in respect of the Direct property valuation
and concluded that they lound the Compary's valuation
of invesiment properties (o be acceplable

There has been nothirg broaght (o the Commiliees
attention in respect of the iinanoial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2027, which was matenat or significant or
that the Committee felt should be brought to sharehalders’
attention

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST




AUDITOR ASSESSMENT AND INDEPENDENCE Following each audit, the Committee reviews the audit
PHoCess and consrdews Its effectiveness and the quality

ol the services provided ta the Company Within this
process, the Committee takes into consideration then

owa assessment, the self-evaluation of the auditor and
the Audil Qualily Review Report produced by the FRCin
order lo momtar the progress of the Auditor's performance
comparabie wilh 1ls peer and the targets set by the FRC

The Company's exlemnal auditor, KPMG LLP was
appointed as the Company’'s auditors at the 2016 AGM
The Commiltee expecls to repeal a lender process no
later than 2026 1n respect of the audit for the foilowing
31 March year end, In ine with the iatest Lorporate
Goveinance provisions

Gurning the yvear, KPMG presented the:r Audit Plan for The review following the completion of the 2020 Audit
the year end at the intenm Comimuttee meeting and the concluded that the Commuttee was satisfied with the
Committee considered the audit process and fee proposal Audttors effectiveness and perfoimance

The Commuttee also reviewed KPMG's independence
pelicies and procedures including quahily assuranrce The Commuttee fell thal KPMG had :un an effective

oiocedures It was considered that these palicies are fi and elfficient audit process with approprate challenge

fol purpose and the Directors are satisfied that KPMG are subsequently. 4 resolulion 1o re-appoint KPMG LLP as

independent the Company s Auditor will be put 1o shareholders at the
[orthcoming AGA.

Total fees pavable to the Audilor i respect of the audit far

the year to 31 March 2021 were £80,000 (7020: £80,0003,

which were approved by the Audit Committze Tim Gillbanks

The Corrmitiee has approved and wnpiemented a pohicy
on Ihe engagement of the Aaditor 1o supply ren-auds: 3 June 2021
services, taking into account the recommendations of
he Au()ummg Practices Boasd with a view (o ensunng
ihat the exlemnesl auditor does not provide non-audit
services H have the potential 1o IMpan ol appear 1o
impair the independence of their audit role In addiiar,
the Comrmiltee reviewed the actions putin place by the
Auditor o ensd-e there was a clear separation between
audil and adwisory services The Commillee does nol
Seileve there to be any impediment 1o the Auditor’s
objectivity and independence

bz

The “ees for non-aadit services {of the year to 31 March
2021 were ml (2020 L)

Fali detar s of e Aacitor's fees ate providec i note 6 1o
the stcounts on page 79

Tre Boerc noted (hal A7 Kehy, 1@ (urent past=en was
appoined .forr'wez 17 year-end audit ac will connpug
as partner ori Ul :hc conclusior of ¢
auni A man will renlace S Kel
for the 2022 veer-erd audin wir terch
SApe ence m re finance Serees s20io”

ert T st Comparies

aalé
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilitias in relation to the

Group financial statements

The directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual
Report, the Strateqic Repart, the Directors Repoit and the
financial statements in accordance with agphcable law and
tequlations

Company law 1equnes the directors Lo prepare Group
and Parenl Company financial slalements for eacn
inanaial year Under that law Lhey are required to
prepare the Group hnanaial stalements in accordance
witn international accounting standards in conformity
with the requierments of the Companies Act 2006 and
applicable law and have elecled lo prepare the Parent
Company financal staterrents on the same basts.
addition the Group inancial statements are required under
the UK Disclosure Guidance and fransparency Rules to
be prepared In accordance with International Fiancial
Reporting Standards adapted pursuant to Regulation {EC}
Nao 1606/2002 351t applies it the European Union

Under company law the directors must rot appiave the
financiai statements unless they are satisfied that they
qive a trde and farr view of the state of affans of the
Group and Parent Company and of the Group’s profit or
loss for that peniad. In prepanng each of the Group and
Parent Company financial statemerts, the directors are
required to.

select suitable accounting oohcies and then appsy them
consistently,

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable,
relevant and relable,

state whether they have heen prepared In accardance
with inlernalianal accounting standards in conformity
wilh the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and,
as regards the groap linaacial statements, Internalionai
Financial Reporting Standa:ds adopted pursuant to
Requlation (EC) No 1606/2002 as 1t apphes m the
Furopean Umon,

assess the Group and Parert Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as aspicable,
matters related 1o going concern, and

use [ne going corcern basis of accounting unless they
aither intend 1o ngwidate the Group or the Parent
Company or to cease aperatiors, of have no realistic
aternative hut to do so.

the directors are responsible for keeping adeguate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explair
the Parent Company's transactions and disclose with
reasonable accusacy at any tme Lhe fimancral positicn

of the Parent Company and enable them to ensure that

s financial statements comply with the Companies Acl
2006 They are respensible for such 1nternal contiol as
(hey determine 15 pecessary to enable the preparation
of inancial statements that are free from matenal
misstatemnent, whether due to fraud or error, and have
genetal responsibity for taking such steps as are
reasonably open Lo them to safequard the assets of
the Group and Lo prevent and detect fraud and other
Ieguiantes

Under apphcable law and requlations, the directors are
also respensible for preparing & Strategic Report, Dnectors’
Report, Direclors’ Remuneration Repoit and Corporate
Governance Stalement that complies with that law and
those requlations

The directors are responsible far the maintenance and
inlegnity of the corparate and fimancial information
indluded on the Company’s website, Legislation in the
UK governing the preparation and disseminaticn of
financial staternents may difer from leqislation in other
Juisdictions

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMEMT GF THE DIRECTORS
IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

Fach of the directors confirms that to the best of then
knowiedge

the financial slatements. prepared in accordance with
the applicahle sel of accounting standards, give a Lrue
and fair view of the assets, habihties, financal position
and profit or loss of the Group and Parent Company and
the undertakings included i the consohdation taken as
a whole, and

I1e strategic report includes a fam review of 1he
development and performance of the business and the
position of the issuer and the undertakirgs included

in the consohidation taken as a whole, together with a
description of the pnonapal nsks and uncertamnties that
they face

Tae Directors consider the arnual report and accounts,
taken as a whole, 1s fan, halanced and understancable
and provides the infarmation necessary for sharehoiders
ta assess the group's position anc performance. business
model and strategy

By order of the Board

David Watson

3 june 2021
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KPMG

Independent auditor’s report

to the members of TR Propeity Investment Trust plc

1. OUR OPINION IS UNMODIFIED

We have audiled the financial statements of TR Property
Investment Trust Ple (“the Company ™) for the vear ended
31 Maich 2027 which comprise the Group Statement of
Comprehensive Income, Group and Compary Statements
of Changes n Equity, Group and Company Balance Sheets,
Group and Company Cash Flow Statements and the related
netes, including the accounting pohces ir note 1

in our apinien:

- The finanaal statements give a true and fair views of
he slate of the Lompnny 5 affairs as at 31 March 2021
ard ol he Groups return o the year then ended,

The Group financial stetemen:s have heen property
prepared In accordance with Uk-adopled irterational

ACCoun Iﬂg standarc :S,

The Parent Company finaraal stelements have neen
oropery preparad 0 accardance with Uk-adopted
inzer1alionat accounting standards and as apphed in
accordance with the prowvisions of the Comaanes Act
2006, and

— The finanaal statements have been preparec In
accordance with the requirernents of the Companies
Act 2005 and, as f'ega:’r‘-s he Group hinanca!
siafements, Arlicie £ o° {m2 JAS Reguralion o e
apphcasle

extent

2. KEY AUDLT MATTERS:

Keoy audit —atiers g2
ﬁ“c‘ma! siateme

1ose maners that, 1m our pfOfa’fSS\07
a~danc ude the most sigrificar: 2
frauryiderafies oy s induding those winich ~ac tn
23G.JC85 10 ine arcdirecing the ofots of the

{uncranged fom 20200 17 d‘—"r'—cesmb oer ob adgr s1g
AT <ey aurht srocedutes 13

2orzed ey e e addresse
soery for the curoose of our audit mr
icdenal to that ooinar,

At

* A n.\' {ay

A rarclal slaiemer:

!H';rrL
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2ddress trose Tartars and, as required for oub o nt

a~d onr resyits are bas

and e do 0t Lo

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Inlernatianal
Standards on Auditing (UK) (1Sas (UK)") and applicable
tave Our responsibiities are described below We believe
thal the audit evidence we have ohtained 1s a sufficent
and appropnate basis Tor cur opimon Our audit opinion 15
consistent with our repart to the audit commities

_

Materiality: £14.9m {2020:£12.5m)

Financial statements 19% {2020: 1%) of Total Assets

as a whole

Key audit matters vs 2020

Recurring risks Valuation of direct
property investments o
Carrying amount of listed
investments i

We were first apoointed as auditor by the Directors on

2 Novembe: 2016 The period of total unipterrupted
encagement 1s ‘oo e 5 finanaa- years ended 31 Marcn
2027 we have [ullilled our e:hical responsibilities

under, ard we remain irdependent of the Company in
accordarce with, U< ethical reguirements including the
F2C Ethical Slandard s appaed to histed puklic interest
entities No nod-eudit services prohibited by thar stardare
were pravided

INCLUDING CUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT

3 judgernent, were of Most signiicence in the aude of the
ad 15¢s 07 h

reatest effect an

£

malznal misstatemen
b overall aude sira;

went ear We surtmanse be g 1ne <e“, aJcil raties
rificance, 1r armvig AL ol i 3217167 anove, together v
e51 8IS, our fesuts o INnse

sy undeaken in e coriexs of, and

T fnermm g oar ouines 1reteor, ani
sendrae apion on these maters
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Valuation of direct
pioperty investments

{Group and Parent
Company)

(ra31 millon,
2020: £94 5 muilion)

Refer to pages 58 1o 60
{(Audil Committee Report),
page 74 and 75 {accounting
palicy}, and note 10 on
pages 82 to 85 (financial
disclosures)

The risk

Subjective valuation:

5 6% (20207 59} of the Group's
total assets (by value) are heldin

mvestment properties

The fairvalue of cach property
requires significant estimation,

In particular with fegard Lo
the key estimated 1ental
value and yield assumpuons
The key assumplions will be

impactad by a number of factors
including quality and conchtion

ot the building and tenant
covenant strength.

The effect of thes2 matters
15 that. as part of our nsk
d55e55Ment, we determined

that the waluation of investment
properties has a high degree of
vith @
pulental range of reasonasle

estimdtion uncertamtsy,

cutcomes greater than aur
matenality for e financial
statemenls as a whole The

financial statenents (note 10)
disclose the sensiivily estimated

by the Gioup

Our response

Wwe perfoimed the detailed tests betow rather than
seekang 10 rely on controls, because the nature

of the balance is such that we would expect lo
ahtain audit evidence prmanly hough the detaled
procedules described:

Our procedures included

— Assessing valuer’s credentials: Using our own
property valuation speciaiist we evaluated the
compelence, expenence and independence af the
external valuer,

— Tests of Detail: Ve compared the mformaticn
pravided hy the Group to s extemnal property
vaiuet fof a sample of properties, such as rental
mcome and tenancy data to supperting dotuments
ncluding lease agreements,

— Methodology choice: \We held discussions with
the Group's external propert, valuer to determine
the valuation methodology used we included our
o) property valuation specialist 1o 35515t us N
critically assessing the resnlts of the valuers report
by checkng that the svaigations were In accordarce
with the RICS Valuation Professional Standards
the Red Book” and IFRS and that the methodology
adopted #as appropndale by reference o
arceptable L aluation practice,

— Benchmarking assumptions: :h the
Jssistance of our own property valuation specialist,
we neli discassions with the Group's external
pinperty valuer to understand maovernsnts i
property values For a sample of oropeites, we
assessed the key assumptions used by the valuer
upon which the valuations are based, ncluding
those relaung o estimatet rental value and yield.
by making & companssn 1o our own understanding
of the market and to industry benchmarks,

— Assessing transparency: e also cansiderad the
adeqguacy of the Ginups disclosures abaut the derree
of ashimation and sersitiat, o key assumption made
when valing the diredt propert, insestments

Our results:

— e found the valuation of nestment properhies 1o
b acceplable (2923 acceplahi)

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST



The risk

Carrying amount of listed Low risk, high value:

investments
(Group and Parent)

(£1.3174 millian;
2020 £1.060 1 milhon)

Refer to pages 53 10 60
(Audit Commuttee Repor),
page 75 (accounting policy)
and note 10 an pages 82
to 85 (financial discosures)

3. QUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY AND AN
OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF OUR ALOIT

tatenalty for the fnancal statements as a whole was

The Group’s portfolin of nquoled
lev el Tinvesiments makes up
B8 2ve (2020 84 vy of the
Gooups total assets {b-; vaile)
and s one of the ke drivers of

results We conot ronsM@- these

Investmerts o be at a nigh risk
of signihicant miusstatement, or
to be subject to a signilcant
level of judgement because
they campise iquid. quoted
mnvestmants Howveeyver due 1o
then matenaht n the context
of the financial staternents 4s a
viole, they, are consideled (o
oe one of tie ateas swhich had
the qreatest etfert on our oyerll
audit stratgy and allocation

af resogices in plonmmeg and
completing our audit

Qur response

We performed the delailed tests below rather than
seeking to rely on controels, because the nature of

the balance 15 such that detaled testing (s determined
to be the most effective manner of abtaiming

audit evidence

Jur orocedures included

— Test of detail: ~qrecinyg the valuation of 100%.0°
leviel 1 histed investmenrts in the portfalio to
externally quoted prices, and

Enquiry of custodians: Agreeing 1004y of e
1hsted investment haoldings 1a the porml\“ 0
independently recered thid party confirmations
from investment custodians

£

Our results

— we found the carrving amount of nsred
IP'V-L’SIIT‘.U ity 10 be accoptanle (2020 accestabis)

he expected 1o Influence the Company’s memaers’
assessmiel of the ‘nancial performance o the Comuany

We agreed 1o report 10 the Audit Comrmiltee dany conecled or

] 4G VA0 75 o 3 o Wy ~foro g
sel al £14 9 (2020 £125m). cetermined wilh reference ancorrected dentified missiaterents t.)((_:_zdll"(j £3 75

10 a benchmaik o! total assets, of which i enresants

0% (7020 10%)

Matenality for the Patent Company financa stalenerts as
awhaie was al £ 1 (202012 0m) determiced as 0 9%
of the lotal assers of the pareni company (2020 (9%

1= ing s our aadit methodology, our procedures on
naradual account 2alances and aisclosures weig derformed

{2020 £033m) i addition o other identifed risstatements

Lhat warrarted renorting an quailtative grounds

1o a lower thieshol, pesformarce maleniality, so as to reduce

10 2n accentable evel the nsk that ndracually immatena

nisstaterrents in indradual account balances acd up o @ Tawna:
amount 2c:0ss the irancial stalements as 4 whoe Performarce

malertality wuas set at 75% (2079

financa satereits 45 3
£54my o U“e Grouz erd 10 5m
forrpar, e

returts o contradt Ofdm'ef-:ﬂ.c-:s 0
oIS

shoe cogld feasorahl,

~wystatements of lesser a—
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apphed this percent
SECOIMErCe "atena:n. couse
icating ar eley ater euel of 1sk

f0ainca At Tens 2s

75%) of matenality “oi e
how, wich ecuaies o E111m {2020
(2020 £9207) ‘or the Pzren:
age i ur Celerinauor ol
LEOIC TOH RN ANy 1alaTs

e

(AR

Gur aadit of the Combany was Urdetaken (o the
mdlenaily leve spedfied above and was periorme
single aucit team

The audit team performed the agdit ot the Group as it was
a single aggregated set ol firanaal information This approach

charged from the pror year The audit of the Group was

performed Jsing the Group matenaily levet set out above

Totaf Assets Group Materiality
£1.491m (2020: £1,256m} £14 9 (2020 £12 5m)
£14.9m

Wrtoe finarcia
staterrerts matenaity
12020. £12 5m

£14.1m

Parent Corrpary
Matenality
12020: £12 Qrr|

£0.75m Misstaterrerts
reporied te the auait
comrmitiee (2020

£Q0 63y
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3. GOING CONCERN

The Direclors have prepaied the iinanoal statements on
the going concern basis as they do net intend Lo hguidate
the Group or Company or to cease 1ls operations, and

as they have concluded that the Group or Company's
financial position means thal this s realistic, They have
alsa concluded that there aie no matenal uncertainties
that could have cast sigmificant doubt over 1ts abilty to
cantinue as a going concern for at feast a year from the
date of approval of the finanoai staternents ("the going
concern period”)

We used our knowledge of the Group, its industry, and the
general economic environment te identify the inherent
risks Lo 1ts business madel and analysed how those nsks
might affect the Group or Company’s financial resources

or ability to conlinue operations over the going concern
period. The nsks that we considered mast likely to
adversely affecl the Group or Company's available fimancial
resources and 1ts ability to operate over this pericd were:

— Iheimpact of a significant reduction in the valuation
of nvestments and the implications for the Group or
Company’s debt covenants,

— The hgudity of the investment portiohio and i1s ability
to meet the habiibies of the Group as and when they
fall due, and

— The operational resilience of key service organisations

e considered whether these nsks cousd plausibly atfect
the hquidity 1 the gaing concern penod by assessing the
degree of downside assumption thal, indmadually and
cotlecuvely, could result 1n a higuidity 15508, taking Into
account the Group of Company’s currert and projected
cash and hquid investment gositien (and the resuits of
then reverse stiess testing).

we considered whelher the going concern disclosure in
note 1 1o the inanaal statements gives a full and accurate
gescriphion of the Diectors” assessment of going concerr,
including the identfied nsks and related sersilivities

Our conclusions based on this wark

— We consider Lhat [ke Duectors” use of the qoing
concern basis of accounting v the preparalior of the
financial statements 1s appropnate,

We have notidentified, and concur with the Direciors’
assessment that there 15 not, 3 matenal uncestainty
related 1o events or conditions that, individually o
collectively. may cast sigmhcant doubt on the Group or

Company’s abilily la continue as a going concern for
the going concern period;

— We have nothing matenial to add or draw attenlion to
in relation to the Duectors” stalement in note 1o the
financial statements on the use of the going concern
basis of accounting with no matenial uncestainties that
may cast sigmlicant doubt over the Group or Company's
use of that basis for the gaing concern periad. and
we found the going concern disclasure i note 1to he
acceptable; and

&
o .
[
m
=
-3
2
“
m

— The relaled statement under the Listing Rules set out
on pages 41 and 42 «s malenally consistent with the
financial statemenis and our audit knowledge

However, as we cannot predict all future events or
conditions and as subsequent events may result n
outcomes that are mconsistent with judgements thal
were reasonable at the ime they were made, the
above conclusicns are not a quarantee that the Group o
Company will conlinue in operation

5. FRAUD AND BREACHES OF LAWS AND
REGULATIONS - ABILITY TO DETECT

identifying and 1esponding La nsks of material
misstaternent due Lo fraud

To identify risks of matenal misstalement due to lraud
(“fraud nsks™y we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incertive or pressure o commil fraud
of provide an opportunity to commit fraud Our nisk
assessment procedures included

— Enquinng of Directors as to the Group's bigh-level
polives and procedures to prevent and detect fraud, as
weil as whether they hiave knowledge of any actual,
suspected or asleged fraud,

— Assessing the segregation of duties in place between
the Directors. the Administrator and the Group's
Investment ianager, and

— Reading Board and Audit Committee minutes

As required by auditing standaids, we perform procedures
w0 address the nsk of management averads of conlrols,
In particular to the nsk that management may be in

a postion to meke inappropnale accounting enties

we evaluated the desigr and implementation of the
controls over jourral entnes and other adjustments and
made mguines of the Adrinistratar about inappropriate
ar unusual activity relating Lo the processing of journal
entnes and other adjustments We substantively tested afl

u'\
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malenal post-closing entnes and, based on the results of
oul nsk assessment procedures and understanding of the
process, including the segregalion of dulies between Lhe
Directors and the Adsimistiatos, no further high-nisk journal
entnes of other adpsiments were wdenbilied

On this audit we have rebulted Lhe fraud sk ielated

[0 revenue recognitinn because the reverue 1s non
judgemental and straghtforward, with nmited opportumiy
far manipulation we did nal 1dentify any significant
unusuat transactions or additionai fraud nsks

Identifying and responding to risis of materiai
misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and
regulations

we denhhied areas of laws and 1eguiations that could
reasonably be expected to have a matenal effect on the finangal
staterments from our general commeraial and sector experence
and l-rough discussion with the Directors, the lwestmen:
Manager anc the Admmistratar (as sequired by auditing
standards) and discussed with the Directors the policies and
araceduies iegarding compliance v s and requlations

The poiental effect of these laws and fegurations on the
financial statemenrts vaties considerably

Firstly, the Company 15 sub;eCt 0 idws and equlations

thal directly affect the financial siaterents ircluding
firarcial recorting leguslation (4ncluding iefatad companies
ieglslalh:)r), disinbutable profits legislation, and 1ts
quahfreeinn as an investment Trust uncer UK taxatior
leqisiation, a7y wieach of which could lead to the Group
losing vanous deductions and exemptions -om UK
corporalion tax, and we assessed e extent of comahance
with these laws ang requlations as part of cur procecures
on the related finanaal statement ittems

Secancly, the Group 1s sabect to maty other lgws and
regulations where the consequences o ner-compharce
could Pave a matenal effec: on amounts or disc'osties
17 :he financiar stalerrents, [or instznce thiodgh the
imcosition of fines o M-nJaJuﬂ Wederafed the fo oy
ae2s as those ™pst h<ely to have suc an ef
datz protection. bnbery ang corrapion
17 aspects of compary legis atior
aoga narare of the Group’s actres
Sacring 373%dards armet he m2gairad
audy e In, TOT-OME IANCE AN 1nese

SO Cies
ia,,5 ard reglatiors to engdny of “Fe Grecoss and 1ha

ecl mone;,
guCeE g,
s'atin~ and
QST Y

anc s lags

foirn

Admimisiraar and in
coesponcenie, I #
rEgualinns 15 Nt
LOURSPONdRNCe 20 AUcH
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Context of the ability of the audit to detact fraud or
breaches of law or regulation

Owing 1o the inherent hmilations of an audit, there 1s an
unavoidable nisk that we may not have uQTE‘CTcd s0me
matznal musstalements i the kinanaal stalements, even
though we have properly planned and peiionmed oul
aucitin accordance with audiing standasds. For example,
the further removed non-compliance wilh laws and
requlelions 1s from and transacuons reflected
In the finanaal statements, the less ikely the inherently
limited procedures required by audiling standards would
identify it

the events

In addition. as with any audit, there remained a higher risk
of non-detechinn of fraud, as these may nvowe collusior,
forgery, mtentiznal omissions, misrepresentations, or the
avernde of irternal controls Our audit procedures are
designed io detect matenal messtatement We are not
responsible for preventing non-complhiance or fraud and
cannot ne expecied la detect non-comphanee with all
jaws ana -equlations

5. WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT ON THE OTHER
INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The Directors are responsible for the ather information
presented in the Arnual Report together wath the financal
statements Ou- comion on the finaraal stalements does
0! cover the other informanion and, accardingly, we do
100 2xpress an 2udit onon or, except as exphiatly staled

selow, any fonm of assurance conclusion thersaon

Car resopansibinty 15 to read the ather informahor and.

I COING 50, corswder whether based or our inaraal
statements audit work, e information theren s
rmatenary misstatec o incansistent with t~e financial
Staternents o our audit ~owledge Based solely on that
work we nave rotcenified matenal misstatements i e
other information.

Strategit repoft and Dwer’ar, report
Basec soley or pu work on the ot-er nformalion
wo Pave cgnice e matsng missidlererts in e

Strateqic resart and ;e B ecias enal,




Independent auditor's repart ot e

Directors’ remuneration report

In out apinion the part of the Direcioss’ Remuneratian
Reporl o be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006

Disciosures of emerging and piincipal risis and
longer-term viability

we are required (o perform procedures 1o identify whether
there s a matenal inconsisiency hetween the Directors’
disclosures in respect of eme-ging and princizal nsks and
the viabilily stalement, and the financia: statements and
our audit knowledge

Based ou those procedures, we have nolhing matenal to
add or draw attention to in relation Lo

— the Duectors  confirmation within the Viabiity Statemenl
an pages 33 and 34 that they have carned out a robust
assessment of the emerging and prnapal asks faang the
Group, including those that would threaten 1ts business
modet, future performance, solvency and liguidity,

the Principal Risks and Uncertamnties disclosures
describing these nisks and how emerging nsks are
wdentified, and explaming how they are being managed
and mitigated: and

the Drreclors” explanation in the Viabilily Statement of
how they have assessed the prospects of the Company.
over what penod they have done so and why Lhey
considerad that penod to be appropriate, and their
slalement as to whether they nave a reasonable
expectation that the Group will be able to continue

i operation and meet its habities as they fall due
aver the penod of therr assessment. including any
related disclosures drawing atiention to any necessary
qualificalions of assumpticns

We are also requied Lo review the Viability Statement, set
out on pages 33 and 34 undet the Listing Rules Based on
the above procedures, we Rave concluded that the above
disclosures are materially consistent with the finaraal
staterments and our audit knowledge.

Our wark 1s mited o assessing these matters in the
context of onfy the <nowiedqe acquired duning our
financal statenents audit As we cannot oredict ail fulure
events or candilions and as subsequer:t everis may

result 1IN outcomes that are mcorsistent wilh judgements
thal were reasonable at the ume they wele made, the
absence of anything 1o report o1 these statements 15 not a
guaranrtes as to the Company's fonger-ter viabilily

Corporate governance disclosures

We are sequired te perform pracedures to identify whether
there 1s a materal inconsistency between the Direclors’
corporate governance disclosures and the financial
stalements and our audit knowledge

Based on those procedures we have concluded that each
of the following 15 matenally consistent with the financial
statoments and cur audit knowledge

— lhe Directors’ slatement that they consider that the
annual repart and financial statements taken as a
whole 1s fai, balanced and understandable, and
piovides the information necessary far shareholders to
assess the Group's position and performance, bysimess
model and strategy,

— the section af the annuat reporl descnbing the work of
the Audit Commutiee, including the significant 1ssues
thal the audil committee considered in relatior to
the financial staterrenls, and how these 1ssues were
addressed, and

— e section of the annual report that descrnibes
the review of the effectiveness of the Group’s nsk
management ard intermal contiol systems

We are requrred o review the part of Corporale
Governance Stalement relating (o the Group's comphance
with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
specified by the Listing Rules far cur review We have
nothing to report in this respect

7. WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT ON THE GTHER
MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO
REPORT BY EXCEPTIGN

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required Lo report
to you sl m our opinien

- adequate accourung records have not been kept, ol
returns adequate for our Audit have nol been receved
from branches not visited by us, or

— the financial stalements and the sart of the Dieclors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are rotin
agreement with the accounting records and retarns, or

— cortamn discosures of Duecto 5" rerruaeration specihed
by law are not mace, ar

— we haye nol receped all the information and
explanations we require lof cur audit

We have nothing to report 11 these respecis
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8. RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES

Directors’ responsibilities

As explainad moie fully in therr statement set out on
page 61, the Directors aie responsible for the preparauon
of the finarua staiements ncluding being satisfred thal
they qive a true and fair view, such internal conliol as
they determine 1s necessary to enable the preparation

of finanaal statements that are free from matenal
misstaiement, whether due Lo fraud or efror, assessing
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as apphcable, matters related to going concern:
and using the going tontein hasis of accounting unless
they either intend to hauidate the Compary or lo cease
operations, ol have 10 realistic allemative but to do so

Auditor’s responsibiiities

Ous objectives a1 Lo oblan reasonable assarance about
whether the financie: statements as a whale are free liom
maienal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to 135U our opINIoN I ar duditor § feport Reasonanle
assuiance 15 a high tevel of assurance. but does not
guarartes that an audil conducted 17 accordance with ISAs
(UK) wirl always detecl @ matenal misstatement when 11
exists Missttemerts can anse from fraud or error anc are
considered matenal i, indradually or 10 agoregate, they
could reasonably e axpectad to in“uence the economic
deasiors of users tzken on the basis of the fira~aal
slaterrents

Atuller descption of aui responsibiities 15 arovided on
the FRCs websaite at
woany fro org uk/auditorsresporsibilizies

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

9. THE PURPOSE OF OUR AUDIT WORK AND TO
WHOM WE OWE OUR RESPONSIBILITIES

This repart 1s made solely 1o the Group's members, as

a bady. i accordance with Chapter 3 of Pait 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 and the teims of our engagement by
the Company Our audit work has been undertaken so that
we might stale to the Graua’s members those matlers we
are required 1o slate o thermin an auditor’s report and for
ro other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept o1 assume “esponsihility to anyone other
then the Group and the Groups members, as a hody, for
our audit work, for this repaort, or for the opimans we have
formedt

Richard Kelty (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Saltire Court

15 Canada Square

Lordon

£14 5GL
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Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 March 2021

Notes

Income

Investment income
Other aperating income
Gross rental income

Service charge income

Gains/{losses) on investments held at
fair value

Net movement on foreign exchange;
investments and loan notes

Net movement on foreign exchange;
cash and cash equivalents

Net returns on contracts for difference
Net return on total return swap

Total Income

Expenses
Management and performance fees

Direct property expenses, rent payable
and service charge costs

Other administrative expenses
Total operating expenses

Qperating profit/(loss)
Finance costs

Profit/(loss) from operations before
tax

Taxation

Total comprehensive income

Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share

Revenue
Return

£000

2 36,557
4 67
3 3,185
3 1,051
0 -
10 3,320
10 T
44,180

5 (1,556)
3 {1,311}
6 (1,231)
(4,108)

40,072

7 (416)
39,656

8 . (767)
38,889

g  12.25p

Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return
£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
- 36,557 2712 - 4712
- 67 35 - 35
- 3,185 3,415 - 3415
- 1,051 1,786 - 1,786
196,582 196,582 - (153,614} (153,614)
(3,144) (3.149) - 11,296 1,296
(1.479) (1.474) - 302 302
17,978 21,298 5,724 {41,276) (35,552)
(188) (188) - {3,808) (3,808)
209,754 253,934 58,072 (187,100) (129,028)
(14,3128) (15,884) (1,570) (7392) (8,962)
- {1,321 {1,984) - (1,984)
(604) (1,835) (1,398) {615) (2,013)
{14,932) (19,040) (4,952) (8,007) {12,959)
194,822 234,894 53,120 (195,107) (141,987)
{1,969} {2,385) (814) (2,443) (3,257)
192,853 232,509 52,306 {197,550) (145,244)
2,667 1,900 (5.912) 3,149 (2,763)
195,520 234,409 46,394 {194,401 (148,007)
6161 73.86p 14.62p (61.26)p (46.64)p

Year ended 31 March 2021

Year ended 31 March 2020

The Total column of this statement represents the Group's Statement of Comprehensive Income, prepared in accordance with IFRS. The

Revenue Return and Capital Return celumns are supplementary to this and are prepared under quidance published by the Assotiaticn af
Investment Companies. All itemms in the above staternent derive from continuing operations.

The Group does not have ary other income or expense that is not included in the abave statement therefore “Total comprehensive

income” is aiso the profit for the year.

All income is attributable to the shareholders of the parent company.

The notes from pages 73 ta 97 form part of these Financial Staterments.
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Group and Company Statement of Changes in Equity

GROUP
For the year ended 31 March 2021 Notes Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium  Redemption Earnings
Ordinary Account Reserve Ordinary
£'000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,97 969,982 1,136,453
Total comprehensive income - - - 234,409 234,409
Dividends paid 17 - - - (44,429) (44,429)
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,159,962 1,326,433
COMPANY
For the year ended 31 March 2021 Notes Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium  Redemption Earnings
Ordinary Account Reserve ordinary
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,97 969,982 1,136,453
Total compiehersive income - - - 234,409 234,409
Dividends paid 17 - - - (44,429) {44,429)
At 31 march 2021 79,338 43,162 43,97 1,159,962 1,326,433
GROUP
For the year ended 31 March 2020 Notes Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium Redemption Earnings
Ordinary Account Reserve ordinary Total
£600 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
At 31 March 2019 79,338 43,162 43971 1,161,783 1,328,254
Total comprehensive income - - - (148,007) {148,007)
Cividends paid 7 - - - (43,794) {43,794)
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,62 3,971 969982 1,136,453
COMPANY
For the year ended 31 March 2020 Notes Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium Redemption £arnings
Grdinary Account Reserve ordinary Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000
At 31 March 2019 79338 43,162 43,971 1,161,783 1,328,254
Total comprehensive incame - - - (148,007) {148,007)
Dividends paid 7 - - - (43,794) (43,794)
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,971 969,982 1,136,453

The nctes from pages 73 to 97 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Group and Company Balance Sheets
as at 31 March 2021

Notes Company Group Company
200 2020 2020
£'000 £000 £000

Non-current assets

Investments heid at fair value 10 1,400,516 1,400,516 1,155,295 1,155,295
Investments in subsidiaries 10 - 43,312 - 50,429
1,400,516 1,443,828 1,155,295 1,205,724
Deferred taxation asset 12 686 686 - -
T o 1,401,202 1,444,514 1,155,295 1,205,724
Current assets
Debtors 12 60,990 60,520 60,094 59972
Cash and cash equivalents 29114 29,112 40,129 40,127
90,104 89,632 100223 100,099 v
Current liabilities 13 {107,280) (150,120) (971 (110,016} § E
Net current (liabilities)/assets (iii?g) (60,488) 40,512 {9917} § g
Total assets less current liabilities 1,384,026 1,384,026 1,195,807 1,195,807 @
Nen-current liabilities 13 {57,593) (57,593) (59,354) {59.354)
Net assets 1,326,433 1,326,433 1,136,453 1,136,453

Capital and reserves

Calied up share capital 14 79,338 79,3318 79,338 79338
Share premium account 15 43,162 43,162 43,162 43,162
Capital redemption reserve 15 43,9M 43,97 43,971 4397
Retained earnings 16 1,159,962 1,159,962 965,982 969,982
Equity shareholders’ funds 1,326,433 1,326,433 1136,453 1,136,453
Net Asset Value per:

Ordinary share 19 417.97p 417.97p 358.11p 358.11p

These financial statements were approved by the directors of TR Property tnvestment Trust plc (Cornpany No:84492) and authorised for
issue on 3 june 2021.

D Watson
Director

The notes from pages 73 to 97 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Group and Company Cash Flow Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Company Group Company
201 2020 2020
£'000 £'000 £000
Reconciliation of profit/(loss) from operations before
tax to net cash outflow from operating activities
Piofit/(loss) from operatians before tax 232,509 231,844 (145,244} (145,244)
Finance costs 2,385 2,385 3,257 3,257
(Gains)/losses on investments and derivatives held at fair
value through profit or loss (214,372) (207,255) 198,698 198,71
Net movemnent on foreign exchange; cash and cash
equivalents and loan notes (179) {179) 859 859
(Increase)/decrease in acccued income (102) {102) 584 584
Sales of invesiments 353,167 353,167 316,841 316,841
Purchases of investments (370,496) {370,496) (383,674} (383,674)
Decrease/{increase) in sales settlernent debtor 4,753 4,753 (1417) (1417
(Dectease)fincrease in purchase settlement creditor (5,781) (5,781) 4,501 4,501
(Increase)/decrease in other debtors {11,436) (11,436} 4,447 4,447
Increase/(decrease) in other treditors 2,451 (4,001) 2,047 2,034
Scrip dividends included in investment income and net
returns on contracts for difference (8,489) {8,489) (3,818) (3.818)
Net cash outflow from operaliufg activities before
interest and taxation {15,590) (15,590) {2,919) {2,919)
Interest paid (2,607) (2,607) (3,421 (3.421)
Taxation paid (1,915) (1,915) (2.321) (2,3
Net cash outflow from operating activities (20,112) (20,112) (8.661) (8,661)
Financing activities
Equity dividends paid (44,429) (44,429) {43,794) (43,794)
Drawdown of loans 55,000 55,000 40,000 40,000
Net cash from/(used in} financing activities 10,571 10,571 (3,794) (3,794)
Decrease in cash {9,541) (3,541) (12,455) {12,455)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 40,129 40,127 52,282 52,280
Net movement on foreégn exchange; cash and cash
equivalents (1.474) (1,473) 302 302
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 29,114 29,112 40,129 40,127
Note
Dividends received 38,224 38,224 52,003 52,003
Interest received a5 45 37 37

The notes fror pages 73 to 97 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial staternents for the year ended 31 March 2021 have been prepared en a going toncern basis, in accordance with
International Financiat Reporting Standards (IFRSs) adopted pursuant lo Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European
Union and in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The financial statements have also been prepared in
accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP), “Finandial Statements of Investment Trust Companies and Venture
Capital Trusts,” to the extent that it is consistent with IFRS.

In assessing Going Concern the Board has made a detailed assessment of the ability of the Company and the Group to meet

its liabilities as they falt due, including stress and liquidity tests which considered the effects of substantial falls in investment
valuations, substantial reductions in revenues received and reductions in market liquidity including the effects and potential effects
of the curent and likely angoing economic impact caused by the Coronavirus pandemic. The Board is satisfied with the operational
resilience of service providers despite COVID-19 and continues to manitor their performance throughout the pandemic.

In light of the testing carried out, the liquidity of the level 1 assets held by the Company and the significant net asset value position,
and despite the net current liability position of the Group and Parent Company (which could be mitigated by the sale of liquid level 1
investments), the Directors are satisfied that the Company and Group have adequate financial resources to continue in operation

for at least the next 12 months following the signing of the financial statements and therefore it is appropriate 1o adopt the gaing
concern basis of accounting.

The Group and Company financial statements are expressed in Sterling, which is their functional and presentational cusrency.
Sterling is the functional currency because it is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates.
values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£°000) except where otherwise indicated.
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Key estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements necessarily requires the exercise of judgement, both in application of accounting
policies, which are set out below, and in the selection of assumptions used in the calculation of estimates. These estimates and
judgements are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are continually evaluated based on historical experience and other factors.
However, actual results may differ from these estimates. The only key estimate is considered to be the valuation of investment
praperties. See section (f) of this note, There are not considered to be any key judgements.

3) Basis of consolidation
The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries to 31 March 2021. All the
subsidiaries of the Company have been consolidated in these financial statements.

tn accordance with IFRS10 the Company has been designated as an investment entity on the basis that:
+ It obtains funds from investors and provides those investors with investment management sejvices;

- It commits to its investors that its business purpose is to invest solely for returns from capital appreciation and investment
income; ang

- It measures and evaluates performance of substantiaily alt of its investments on a fair value basis.

Each of the subsidiaries of the Comnpany was established for the scle purpose of operating or supporting the investrment operations of
the Company {including raising additional financing), and is not itself an investment entity. IFRS 10 sets out that in the case of controlled
entities that support the investment activity of the investment entity, those entities should be consolidated rather than presented as
investments at fair value. Accordingly the Company has consolidated the results and financial positions of those subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are consclidated from the date of their acquisition, being the date on which the Company obtains control, and continue
to be consalidated until the date that such control ceases. The financial statements of subsidiaries used in the preparation: of the
consofidated finandial staternents are based on consistent accounting palicies. All intra-group balances and transactions, including
unrealised profits arising therefromn, are eliminated. This is consistent with the presentation in previous years.

b) Income
Dividends receivable on equity shares are treated as revenue for the year on an ex-dividend basis. Where no ex-dividend date is
avaitable, dividends receivable on or before the year end are treated as revenue for the year. Provision is made for any dividends
not expected to be received. Where the Group has elected tc receive these dividends in the form of additional shares rather
than cash the amount of cash dividend foregone is recognised as income, Differences between the value of shares received and
the cash dividend foregone aie recognised in the capital returns of the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income. The fixed
returns on debt securities are recognised on a time apportionment basis 50 as to reflect the effective yield on each such security.
Interest receivable from cash and short term deposits is accrued to the end of the year. Stock lending inceme is recognised on
an accruals basis. Underwriting comemission is taken tc revenue, unless any shares underwritten are requirec to be taken up, in
which case the proportionate commission received is deducted from the cost of the investment.

Recognition of property rental income is set out in section (f) of this note.

Recognition of income from contracts of ditference is set out in section (g) of this note.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 73



Nates to the Financial Statements continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

€) Expenses
All expenses and finance cosis are accounted for on an accruals basis. An analysis of retained earnings broken down into

revenue and capital items is given in note 16. In arriving at this breakdown, expenses have been presented as revenue items
except as foltows:

+  Expenses which are incidental to the acquisition or disposai of an investment;

- Expenses are presented as capital where a connection with the maintenance or enhancement of the value of the
investments can be demonstrated, this inciudes irrecoverable VAT incurred on costs relating to the extension of residential
leases as premiums received for extending or terminating leases are recognised in the capital account;

= One quarter of the base management fee is charged to revenue, with three quarters allocated to capital retum to reflect the
Board's expectations of long term investment returns. All performance fees are charged to capital return;

= The fund administration, depositary, custody and company seceetarial services are charged directly to the Company and
are included within ‘Other administrative expenses’ in note 6. These expenses are charged on the same basis as the base
management fee; one quarter to income and three guarters to capital.

d) Finance costs
The finance cost in respect of capital instruments other than equity shares is calcuiated so as to give a constant rate of return on
the outstanding balance. One quarter of the finance cost is charged to revenue and three quarters to capital return.

€) Taxation
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid o the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Income tax is charged or credited directly to equity if it relates to items that are credited or charged to equity. Otherwise income
tax is recognised n the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The tax effect of different itemns of expenditure is allotaied between tapital and revenue using the Group's effective 1ate of
tax for the year. The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because of
temposary differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes.

In accordance with the recommendations of the SORP the allocation method used 1o calculate tax relief on expenses presented
against capital returns in the supptementary information in the Statement of Comprehensive Income is the “marginal basis”
Under this basis, if taxable income is capable of being offset entirely by expenses presented in the revenue return columg of the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, then no tax relief is transferred to the capital column.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on ditferences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the Balance Sheet and the curresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted

for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temparary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is prabable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary difterences can be utitised.

The Company is an investment trust under 5.1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and, as such, is not liable for tax on capital
gains. Capitaf gains arising in subsidiary companies are subject te capital gains tax.

f) Investment property
Investment property is measured initiaily at cost including transaction casts. Transaction costs include transfer taxes, professionat
fees for legal services and initial leasing commissions to bring the property to the condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating. The carrying amount also includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that
cost is incurred if the recagnition criteria are met. The purchase and sale of properties is recognised to be effected on the date
unconditional contracts are exthanged.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
values are included in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which they arise.

Investment property is derecognised wher: it has been disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use and na future economic
benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of investment properly are recognised in
the Group Statement of Comprehensive income in the year of disposal.

Gains of losses on the disposal of investment property are delermined as the difference between ret disposa! praceeds and the
carrying value of the asset at the date of dispasal.

Revaluation of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value in accordance with IFRS 13, revalued twice a year, with changes in fair
values being recognised in the Group Staternent of Comprehensive Income. The Group engaged Knight Frank LLP as independent
valuation specialists to determine fair value as at 31 March 2021.
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Valuations of investment properties
Determination of the fair value of investment properties has been prepared on the basis defined by the RICS Valuation - Global
Standards {The Red Book Global Standards) as follows:

“The estimated amount for which a property should exchange on the date of valuation between a wilting buyer and a willing
seller in an arn’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and
without computsion.”

The valuation takes into account future cash flow from assets (such as lettings, tenants’ profiles, future revenue streams, capital values of
fixtures and fittings, plant and machinery, any environmental matters and the overall repair and condition of the property) and discount
rates applicable to those assets. These assumptions are based on local market conditions existing at the balance sheet date.

tn arriving at their estimates of fair vaives as at 31 March 2021, the valuers have used their market knowledge and professional
judgemnent and have not only relied solely on historical transactional comparables. Examples ¢f inputs to the valuation can be seen
in the sensitivity analysis disclesed in note 10 (e).

Rental income
Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised on a straight-fine basis over the term of the lease, except far
contingent rental incorne which is recognised when it arises.
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Incentives for lessees to enter into lease agreements or other negotiated rent free perids agreed are spread evenly over the
lease term, even if the payments are not made on such a basis. The lease term is the non-cancellable period of the lease
tagether with any further term for which the tenant has the option to continue the lease, where, at the inception of the lease,
the directors are reasonably certain that the tenant will exeicise that option. Premiums received to terminate or extend leases
are recognised in the capital account of the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income when they arise.

Service charges and expenses secoverable from tenants

Income arising from expenses recharged to tenants is recognised in the period in which the expense can be contraciually
recovered. Service charges and other such receipts are included gross of the related €asts in revenue as the directors consider
that the Group acts as principal in this respect.

g) Investments
when a purchase or sale is made under contract, the terms of which require delivery within the timeframe of the relevant
market, the investments concerned are recognised or derecognised on the trade date.

All the Group’s investments are defined under IFRS as investments designated as fair value through profit o loss but are also
described in these financial statements as investments held at fair value.

Ali investments are designated upan initial recognition as held at fair value, and are measured at subsequent repoerting dates at
fair value, which, for quoted investments, is deemed to be closing prices for stocks sourced from European stock exchanges and
for SETS stocks seurced from the London Stock Exthange. SETS is the London Stock Exchange electronic trading service covering
most of the market including all the FISE All -Share and the most liquid AIM constituents. Unquoted investments or investments
for which there is only an inactive market are held at fair value which is based on valuations made by the directors in accordance
with IPEVCA guidelines and using current market prices, trading conditions and the general economic climate.

In its financial statements the Company recognises the fair value of its investments in subsidiaries as being the adjusted net
assel value. The subsidiaries have historically been holding vehicles for direct property investment or financing vehicles. No
assets are currently held through the subsidiary structure and all financing instruments are directly held by the Company.

Changes in the fair value are recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income. On disposal, realised gains and
Igsses are also recegnised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Derivatives

Derivatives are held at fair value based on traded prices. Gains and losses on derivative transactions are recognised in the Group
Staterment of Comprehensive Income. Gains and losses on CFDs and total return swaps resulting from movements in the price
of the underlying stock are treated as capital. Dividends from the underlying investment and financing costs of (FDs and total
return swaps are treated as revenue/capital expenses.

Gains and losses on forward currency contracts used for capital hedging purposes are treated as capital.
Contracts fer Difference (“CFDs™) are synthetic equities and are valued by reference to the investments’ underlying market vaiues.

The sources of the retuins under the derivative contract (e.g. nationat dividends, financing casts, interest returns and capital
changes) are aliocated to the revenue and capital accounts in alignment with the nature of the underlying scurce of income and
in accordance with the guidance given in the AIC SORP Notional dividend income or expenses arising ¢n long of short positions
are apportioned wholly to the revenue account. Notional interest expense on long positions is apportioned between revenue
and capital in accordance with the Board's lang term expected returns of the Company (currently determined to be 25% to the
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

revenue account and 75% to capital reserves). Changes in value relating to underlying price mevements of securities in relation
to €FD expasures are allocated wholly to capital reserves.

h) Berrowings, loan notes and debentures
Al loans and debentures are initiafly recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, less issue costs where applicable.
After initial recognition, all interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on settlement. The costs of arranging any interest
bearing loans are capitalised and amortised over the life of the loan on an effective interest rate basis.

i} Foreign currency translation
Transactions involving foreign currencies are converted at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated into Sterling at the rate ruling on the balance sheet date. Foreign
exchange differences are recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

j) tash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivaients are measured at amartised cost and comprise cash i hand and demand deposits.

k) Dividends payable to shareholders
Intefim dividends are recognised in the period in which they are paid and linat dividends are recognised when approved by
shareholders.

1) Adoption of new and revised Standards
Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous consolidated financial statements except as noted below.

iFRS 3 amendments. The amendments provided more guidance on the definition of a business ta assist in determining
whether a transaction results in an asset or a business acquisition. The amendments have not had an impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform ~ Amendments to IFRS  1AS 39 and IFRS 7 The amendments provided lemporary reliefs
which enable hedge accounting to continue during the period of uncertainty before the replacement of an existing interest
rate benchmark with an altefnative risk free interest rate. The amendments have not had a material impact on the Group's
financial statements.

Amendments 10 IAS 1 and IAS 8 - Definition of Material. The International Accounting Standards Board refined its definition of
“material” and issued practical guidance on applying the concept of materiality. The amendments have not had a material impact
on the Group’s financia} statements.

The Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting. The Canceptual Framework is not a standard however its purpose is to outline
a set of concepts for financial reporting, standard setting, guidance for preparers in developing consistent accounting policies
and assistance (o others in understanding and interpreting the standards. The Framework has not had a matesial impact on the
@reup’s financial statements.

Early adoption of standards and interpretations

The standards issued before the reporting date that become effective after 31 March 2021 are not expected to have a material
effect on equity or profit for the subsequent pericd. The Group has not early adopted any new International Financia! Reporting
Standard or Interpretation. Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of
the Group’s financial statements are listed below:

IAS 1 Amendments - Classification of Liabilities as Current of Non-Current {effeciive date amended 1o 1 January 2023). The
amendments specify the requirements for cfassifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IAS 1 Amendments - Disclosure of Accounting Policies (effective 1 january 2023). The amendments require an enlity to disctose
its material accounting policy information instead of its significant accounting policies. The amendments contain guidance and
examples on identitying material accounting policy information. The amendments are not expected 1o have a material impact on
the Group’s financial stalements.

1AS 8 Amendments - Defimition of Accounting Estimates (effective 1 January 2023) The amendments define accounting estimates
as “manetary amounts in financial staterments that are subject to measurement uncertainty” The amendments also dlarify the
interaction between an accounting poficy and an accounting estimate. The amendments are not expected (o have a material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

1AS 16 Amendments - Proceeds before Intended Use (effective 1 January 2022) The amendments intend to dlarify the accounting
for the net proceeds from selling any items produced while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment inta use. The
amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

IAS 37 Amendments - Onerous Contracts - Cost of fulfilling contract (effective 1 January 2022) The amendments clarity that for
the purpose of assessing whether a contract is onerous, the cost of fulfilling the cantract includes both the incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract and an allacation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendments are not
expected to have a material impact on the Group's financial statements.

1AS 39, IFRS 4, 7, 9 and 16 Amendments - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform {Phase 2) (effective 1 January 2021) IBOR reform refers
to the global reform of interest rate benchmarks which includes the replacement of some interbank offered rates (IBOR} with
alternative benchmark rates. To ensure users of financial staterents can understand the effect of the reform on a company's
financial instruments and risk managernent strategy, additional information on the nature and extent of risks to which the
company is expesed arising from financial instruments subject to IBOR reform is required. in addition, details of the company’s
progress in completing its transitions to alternative benchmark rates is required.

IAS 41, IFRS 1, 9 and 16 Amendments - Annual Improvernents 2018-2¢ Cycle {effective 1 January 2022) The minos improvemnents,
none of which will have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements, to the standards noted were endersed in
September 2020.

IFRS 3 Amendments - Reference to the Conceptual Framework (effective 1 January 2022) The amendments require that for
transactions within the scope of 1AS 37 or IFRIC 21, an acquirer applies IAS 37 or iFRIC 21 {instead of the Conceptual Framework)
to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business combination. tn addition, IFRS 3 now contains a statement that an acquirer
does not recognise contingent assets acquired in a business combination. The amendments are not expected to have & material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IFRS 4 Amendments - Extension of IFRS § Deferral {effective 1 january 2023} The option for companies whose business is the
issuance of insurance contracts, to defer the effective date of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments has been extended. The amendment
is not expected to have an impact on the Group’s financia! statements.

IFRS 16 Amendments - Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions (effective 1 Aprit 2021) the May 2020 amendments, which introduced
an optional practical expedient that simplifies how a lessee accounts for rent concessions that are a direct consequence of
Covid-19, have been extended to lease payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022.
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tFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts {effective 1 January 2023) IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 insurance Contracts and contains several areas that
are covered, including measurement of revenue, isurance performance, onercus contracts and disclosure. The standard is not
expected to have an impact on the Group's financial statements.

IFRS 17 Amendments - Amendments to IFRS 17 (effective 1 january 2023} In june 2020, amendments to IFRS 17 were issued
which are intended to make financial performance easier to explain and reduce compliance costs by simplifying some
requirements in the standard. The amendments are nol expected to have an impact on the Group’s finandial staternents.

2 INVESTMENT INCOME
2021 2020
£'000 £000

Dividends from UK listed investments 3,753 491
Dividends from overseas listed investments 18,656 26,631
Scrip dividends from listed investments 7482 3370
Property income distributions 6,666 12,200

o 36,557 a7

3 NET RENTAL INCOME

£000 £'000
Gross rental income 3,185 3,415
Seqvice charge income 1,051 1,786
Direct property expenses, rent payable and service charge costs {1.321) (1,984)

2,915 3,277
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3 NET RENTAL INCOME continued

Opetating leases

The Group has entered into commercial leases on its property partfolio. Commercial property leases typically have lease terms
between 5 and 15 years and indude clauses to enable periodic upward revision of the rental charge according to prevailing market

conditions. Some leases contain options to break before the end of the lease term.

Future minimum rentals under non-cancellabie operating leases as at 31 mMarch are as follows:

2021 2020
£000 £000
within 1 year 3,000 2,950
After 1 year but not maore than 5 years 10,000 10,100
More than 5 years 19,000 15,500
32,000 28,550

OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2021 2020
£'000 £060
Interest seceivable 1 32
Interest on refund of overseas withholding tax a4 3
underwriting comrmission 22 -
67 35

Underwriting is part of the process of intreducing new securities to the market. The Company may participate in the underwriting of
investee camparies’ securities, as one of a number of participants, for which compensation in the form of commission is received. The
Company only participates ir underwsiting having assessed the risks involved and in securities in which it is prepared to increase its
holding should that be the outcome. The commission earned is taken to revenue unless any securities underwritten are required to

be taken up in which case the preportionate commission is deducted from the cost of the investrnent. During the year the Company
participated in ane (2020: nil) underwriting and all commission earned was taken to revenue and shown under Other operating income.

MANAGEMENT AND PERFORMANCE FEES

201 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total

Return Return Return Return
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Management fee 1,556 4,669 6,225 1570 4,709 6,279
Performance fee - 9,659 9,659 - 2,683 2,683
1,556 14,328 15,884 1,570 7392 8,962

A summary of the terms of the management agreement is given in the Report of the Directors on page 41.
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6 OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2021 2020
£'000 £000

Directors' fees (Directors' Remuneration Report an pages 55 to 57) 232 209
Audftor's remuneration:

- for audit of the consolidated and parent company financial statements 80 80
Legal fees 15 1l
Taxation fees 69 103
Cther administrative expenses 199 199
Other expenses 454 562
lirecoverable VAT 182 214
Expenses charged to Revenue a m 1,39§_
Expenses charged to Capital 604 615
1,835 2,013

Other administrative expenses incdude depositary, custody and company secretarial services. These expenses are charged on the
same basis as the base management fee; one quarter to income and three guarters to capital. Total other administrative expenses
charged to both income and capital are £797,000 (2020 £796,000).

Other expenses include broker fees, marketing and PR custs, Directors” National Insurance and recruitment, Registrars and
listing fees, and annual report and other publication printing and distribution costs. These expenses are charged solely ta the
revenue account.

VAT on costs incurred in cannection with the extensian of the residential leases on The Colennades are charged to the capital account,
7 FINANCE COSTS

2021 2020
£000 £000
Bank loans and overdrafts repayable within 1 year 1,241 1,866
Loan notes repayable after 5 years 1,384 1,391
HMRC interest: release of Fil GLO provision (240) -
' 2,385 3,257
Amount allocated to capital return (1,969) {2,443)
Amount allocated to revenue return B o 814
8 TAXATION
a) Analysis of charge in the year
2021 201 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000
UK corporation tax at 19% {2020: 19%) 1,989 {1,989) - 3,362 (3,149) 213
Overseas taxation 866 8 874 2,606 - 2,606
2,855 {1,981) 874 5,968 (3,149 2,819
(Over)funder provision in respect of prior
years o (1,980} - (1,980) {4086) - (406)
875 (1,981) (1,106) 5,562 {3.,149) 2,413
Deferred taxation ‘ _(108) (686) (794) 350 - 350
Current tax charge for the year 767 {2,667) {1,900) 5,912 (3,149) 2,763
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

8 TAXATION continued

b) Factors affecting total tax charge for the year
The tax assessed for the year is lower (2020: lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK for a large company of 19%
(2020: 19%).

The difference is explained below:

2021 2021 2020 2020 2020

Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Retuyrn Return Return Return

£000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000

Net profit/(loss) on ordinary activities

before taxation 39,656 192,853 232,509 52,306 (197,550)  (145,244)
Corporation tax charge at 19% (2020:19%) 7,535 36,642 44,177 9,938 (37,535) (27,597)
Effects of:
Non taxable gains on investments - {37.351) {37,351) - 29,187 29,187
Currency movements not taxable - 877 877 - (2,204) (2,204)
Tax relief on expenses charged to capital - 139 139 - (1,038) {1,038)
Non-taxable retuns (23) (3,380) (3.403) - 8,566 8,566
Nan-taxable UK dividends {972} - {972) {1,043) - {1,043)
Non-taxable overseas dividends {4,573) - (4,573) {5,540) - (5,540)
Overseas withholding taxes 866 8 874 2,606 - 2,606
Deferred tax priof year adjustment (108) (686) (794) - - -
(Over)/under provision in respect of prior

years (1,980) - (1,980) (406) 5 {a0%)
Disallowable expenses 19 - 19 69 (43) 26
Deferred 1ax not provided 3 1,084 1,087 288 (87) 201

767 (2,667) {1,900) 5,912 {3,149) 2,763

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assels of £2,703,000 (2020: £nil} arising as a result of losses carried forward.

it is considered too uncertain that the Group will generate profits in the relevant companies that the losses would be available to
offset against and, on this basis, the deferred tax asset in respect of these expenses has not been recognised.

Due to the Company’s status as an Investment Trust, and the intention to continue meeting the conditions required to abtain
approval for the foreseeable future, the Company has not provided deferred tax on any capital gains afising on the revaluation of
disposal of investments.

) Provision for deferred taxation
The amounts for deferred taxation provided at 19% (2020: 19%) comprise:

Group
201 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return

£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Accelerated capital allowances - - - 108 - 108
unutilised losses carried forward - (686) {686) - - -

Shown as:
Deferred tax (asset)/liability - (686) (686) 108 - 108
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8 TAXATION continued

¢} Provision for deferred taxation continued
Company

2021 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
Accelerated capital allowances - - - 108 - 108
Unutilised losses carried forward - (686) (686) - - -
Shown as:
Deferred tax (asset)/liability - {686) (686) 108 - 108
The mevement in provisior: in the year is as follows:
Group
201 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£°000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Provision at the start of the year 108 - 108 107 (350) {243}
Accelerated capital allowances {108) - (108) 1 350 351
Unutilised losses carried forward - (686) {686) - - -
Provision at the end of the year - {686) {686) 108 - 108
Company
2021 201 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Provision at the start of the year 108 - 108 107 (350) (243)
Accelerated capital allowances (108) - (108) 1 350 351
Unutilised losses carried forward - (686) {686) - - -
Provision at the end of the year - (686) (686) 108 - 108
9 EARNINGS/{LOSS) PER SHARE
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share
The earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share can be analysed between revenue and capital, as below.
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
£000 £000
Net revenue profit 38,839 46,394
Net capital profit/{ioss) 195,520 (194,401)
Net total profit/(loss) 234,409 (148,007)
weighted average number of shares in issue during the year 317,350,980 317,350,980
Revenue eainings per share 12.25 14.62
Capital earnings/(loss) per share 61.61 (61.26)
Earnings/{lass) per Ordinary share 73.86 (16.64)

The Group has no securities in issue that could dilute the return per Ordinary share. Therefore the basic and diluted return per

Ordinary share ate the same.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE

a) Analysis of investments

Company Group Company
2021 2020 2020
£000 £°000 £'000
Listed in the United Kingdom 394,176 394,176 351,506 351,506
Unlisted in the United Kingdom 1,468 1,468 682 682
Listed Overseas 921,801 921,801 708,597 708,597
Investment properties 83,01 83,07 94,510 94,510
Investments held at fair value 1,400,516 1,400,516 1,155,295 1,155,295
investments in subsidiaries at fair value - 43,312 - 50,429
1,400,516 1,443,828 1,155,295 1,205,724

b) Business segment reporting
Gross Gross
valuation Net Net EREINELTA revenue revenue
31 March  additions/ appreciation/ JEEIRIFIG 31 March 31 march
2020 (disposals}  {depreciation) 2021 2021 2020
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Listed investents 1,060,103 58,477 197,397 1,315,977 36,403 46,964
Unlisted investments 682 - 786 1,468 154 148
Contracts for difference 8,698 (26,817) 17978 (141) 3,320 5,724
Total return swap (3,808) 3,996 {188) - - -
Total investments segment 1,065,675 35,656 25973 1,317,304 39,877 52,836
Direct property segment 94,510 (9,838) (1.601) 83,071 4,236 5201
1,160,185 25,818 214,372 1,400,375 44,113 58,037

In seeking to achieve its investment objective, the Company invests in the shares and securities of property companies and property
related businesses internaticnatly and also in investment property located in the UK. The Company therefore considers that there
are twa distinct repofting segments, investments and direct property, which are used for evaluating performance and allocation of
resources. The Board, which is the principat decision maker, receives infarmation an the two segments on a regular basis. whitst
fevenue streams and direct property costs can be atiributed to the reporting segments, general administrative expenses cannot be
split to allow a profit for each segment to be determined. The assets and gross revenues for each segment are shown above.

The property costs included within note 3 are £1,321,000 (2020: £1,984,000) and deducting these costs fiom the direct property
gross revenue above would result in net income of £2,915,000 (2020: £3,217.000) for the direct property reporting segment.
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10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continued
<) Geographical segment reporting

Gross Gross
valuation Net Net ERFITENT] revenue fevenue
3 March  additions/ appreciation/ EEEIN ET] 31 March 31 March
2020  (disposals)  (depreciation) 201 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
UK fisted equities and convertibles 351,506 {(30,616) 73,286 394,176 10,265 16,963
UK unlisted equities 682 - 786 1,463 154 148
UK direct praperty’ 94,510 {9.838) (1,601} 83,071 4,236 5,201
Continental European listed equities 708,597 89,093 124.1M 921,801 26,138 30,001
1,155,295 48,639 196,582 1,400,516 40,793 52,313
UK contracts for difference? 5,071 {13,108) 8,621 S84 1,242 2,714
European contracts for difference? 3,627 (13,709) 9357 (725) 2,078 3,010 33
S
UK total return swap’ {3,808) 3,996 (188} - - - z g
1,760,185 25,818 214372 1,400,375 44,113 58,037 2"

Included in the above figures are purchase costs of £741,000 (2020: £460,00C) and sales costs of £184,000 (2020: £199,000).

These comprise mainly stamp duty and commission.

The Company received £329,018,000 (2020: £367.977000) from investments, including dwect property, sold in the year. The book cost
of these investments when they were purchased was £266,450,000 (2020: £317581,000). These investments have been revalued
over time and until they were sold any unrealised gains/losses wete included in the fair value of the investments.

T Net additions/(disposals) includes £465,000 {2020: £981,060) of capital expenditure. Net appreciation/(depreciation) includes
amounts in respett of rent free periods.

2 Gross revenue for contracts for difference retates to dividends receivable, on an ex dividend basis, on the underlying positions
held. The appreciation/{depreciation) in CFDs refates to the movement in fair value in the year.

3 The depreciatior: in the TRS relates to the movement in fair value in the year until maturity.

d) Substantial share interests
The Group held interests in 3% or more of any class of capital in 10 companies (2020: 8 companies) in which it invests. None
of these investments is considered significant in the context of these financial statements. See nete 21 on pages 96 and 97 for
further details of subsidiary investments.

€) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financia! assets and financial liabilties are carried in the Balance Sheet either at their fair value (investments) or the balance
sheet amount is a reasonable approximation of fair vaiue {due from brokers, dividends and interest receivable, due to brokers,
accruals and cash at bank).

Fair value hierarchy disclosures
Categorisation within the merarchy has been determined on the basis of the lowest tevel input that is significant to the fair value
measurement of the relevant asset as follows:

Level 1- valued using quoted prices in an active market for identical assets.

Level 2 - valued by reference to vatuation techniques using observable inputs other than quated prices within Leve! 1.
Level 3 - valued by reference to valuation technigues using inputs that are not based or observable market data.

The valuation techniques used by the Graup are explained in the accounting policies in notes 1 (f) and 1 (g).
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10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continued

¢) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities continued
The table below sets out fair value measurements using IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy.

Financial assets/{liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss

At 31 March 2021 Level 1 level 2 Level 3 Total
£000 £'000 £°000 £'000

Equity investments 1,315,977 - 1,468 1,317,445
Investment properties - - 83,07 83,0M
Contracts for difference - {1a1) - (1)
Fereign exchange forward contracts - (1.107) - (1,107)
1,315,977 (1,248) 84,539 1,399,268

At 31 March 2020 Level 1 level 2 Level 3 Total
£°000 £000 £000 £000

Equity investments 1,060,103 - 682 1,060,785
Investment properties - - 94,510 94,510
Contracts for difference - 8,698 - 8,698
Total return swap - (3,808) - {3,808)
Foreign exchange forward contracts - {(5,609) - (5,609)
1,060,103 {719) 95,192 1,154,576

The table ahove represents the Group's fair value hierarchy. The Company’s fair value hierarchy is identical except for the inclusion
of the fair value of the investment in Subsidiaries which at 31 March 2021 was £43,312,000 (2020: £50,429,000). These have been
categorised as level 3 in both years. The movemnent in the year of £7,117,000 (2020: £13,000) is the change in fair value in the year,
which inciudes a distribution from a subsidiary company of £6,435,000 and the refease of a corporation tax provision of £348,000
in a subsidiary company. The total financial assets at fair value for the Company at 31 March 2021 was £1,443,828,000 (2020:
£1,214,422,000).

Reconciliation of movements in financial assets categorised as level 3

At 31 March 2021 31 March Appreciation /e N I
2020  Purchases Sales (Depreciation)
£000 £000 £000 £000
Unlisted equity invesiments 682 - - 786 1,468
investment properties
- Mixed use 52,623 315 (303) (4,658) 47,977
- Office & Indystrial 41,887 150 (10,000) 3,057 35,094
94,510 465 {10,303) (1,601) 83,07
95,192 465 {10,303) (815) 84,539

All appreciation/{depreciation) as stated above relates to movements in fair vaiue of enlisted equity investments and investrment
properties held at 31 March 2021,

The Group held one unquoted investment at the year end {see 11.6 averleaf).

Transfers between hierarchy levels
There were no transfers during the year between any of the leveis.
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10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continued

Sensitivity information for Investment Property Valuations
The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorised within Leve! 3 of the fair value hierarchy of
investment properties are:

® Estimated rental value: £6.5 - £65 per sq ft (2020: £6.5- £65)
® Capitalisation rates: 2.0% - 6.0% (2020: 2.0% - 6.0%)

Significant increases (decreases) in estimated rental value and rent growth in isolation would result in a significantly higher {fower)
fair value measurerment. A significant increase (decrease) in fong-term vacancy rate in isolation woutd resuft in 3 significantly lower
(higher) fair value measurement.

there are inteirelationships between the yields and rental values as they are partially determined by market rate condition. The
sensitivity of the valuation to changes in the most significant inputs per class of investment property are shown below:

Estimated movement in fair value of investment properties at Office & n ™
31 March 2021 arising from Retail  Industrial g‘ g
£/000 £000 zz
Sx
Increase in rental value by 5% 310 1,585 50 1,945 “
Decrease in rental value by 5% (250) (1,610) (25) (1,885)
Increase in yietd by 0.5% (4,040) (5,835) (925) (10,800)
Decrease in yield by 0.5% 5,155 9,505 1,325 15,985
Estimated movement in fair vaive of investment properties at Office &
31 March 2020 arising from Retail industrial Other Total
£000 £000 £000 £'000
Increase in rental value by 5% 1,300 1,780 - 3,080
Decrease in rental value by 5% (1,225) (1,720) - (2,945)
Increase in yield by 0.5% (5,025} (6,005) (950) {11,980)
Decrease in yield by 0.5% 6,750 9,355 1,365 17,470

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Risk management policies and procedures

The Group invests in equities and other instruments for the long term in the pursuil of the Investment Objectives set out on
page 24. The Group is exposed lo a variety of risks that could result in either a reduction or an increase in the profits available for
distribution by way of dividends.

The principal risks the Group faces in its portfolio management activities are:
® Market risk {comprising price risk, currency risk and interest rale sisk)

® Liquidity risk

@ (redit risk

The Manager’s policies and pracesses for managing these risks are surnmarised on page 25 and have been applied throughout the
year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

11.1 Market price risk
By the very nature af its activities, the Group's investments are exposed to market price fluctuations.

Management of the risk
The Manager runs a diversified portfolio and reports to the Board on the portfolio activity and performance at each Board meeting.
The Board monitors the investment activity and strategy to ensure it is compatible with the stated objectives.

The Group’s exposure to changes in market prices on its quoted equity investments, CFDs and investment property portfolic, was as

fellows:
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Investments held at fair value 1,400,516 1,155,295
CFD fong gross exposure 146,001 56,728
RS long gross exposure - 6,598

Concentration of exposure to price risks

As set out in the investment Policies on page 25, there are guidelines to the amount of exposure to a single company, gecgraphical
region or direct property. These guidelines ensure an appropriate spread of exposure to individual or sector price risks. As an
investment company dedicated to investment in the property secter, the Group is exposed to price movemenls acioss the property
asset class as a3 whole.

Price risk sensitivity

The foilowing table iHlustrates the sensitivity of the profit after taxation for the year and the value of shareholders’ funds to an
increase of decrease of 15% in the fair values of the Group’s equity, fixed interest, CFD and direct property investments. The level of
change is consistent with the illustration shown in the previous year. The sensitivity is based on the Group’s equity, fixed interest,
CFD and direct property exposure at each balance sheet date, with all other variables heid constant.

2011 pliryl 2020 2020
Inaease Decrease Increase Decrease
in fair in fair in fair in fair
value value value value
£000 £°000 £00Q £000

Statement of Comprehensive income - profit after tax

Revenue feturn (103) 103 (77) 77
Capital return 209,801 (209,801) 173,877 (173,817)
Change to the profit after tax for the yeai/shareholders' funds 209,698 {209,698) 173,740 (173,740)
Change to total earnings per Ordinary Share 66.08p (66.08)p 54.75p (54.75)p

11.2 Currency risk
A proportion of the Group's portfolio is invested in overseas securities and their Sterling value can be significantly affected by
mavernents in foreign exchange rates.

Management of the risk

The Board receives a report at each Board meeting on the proportion of the investment portfolio held in Sterling, Euros ot other
currencies. The Group may sometimes hedge foreign currency movements outside the Eurozone by funding investments in overseas
secytities with unsecured loans denominated in the same currency or through forward currency contracts.

Cash depaosits are held in Sterling and/or Euro denominated accounts.
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Foreign currency exposure
At the reporting date the Group had the fallowing exposure:
(Sterling has been shown for reference)

Sterling 28.0% 27.0%
Eurg 51.0% 53.0%
Swedish Krona 13.0% 11.0%
Other 8.0% 9.0%

The following table sets out the Group's total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to foreign currencies of the net
monetary assets and labilities:

Swedish wo

sterling Krona 53

20 £°000 £'000 E E

z?

Receivables {(due from brokers, dividends and other income receivable) 49,462 10,668 561 299 ”
Cash at bank and on deposit 22,853 4,339 650 1,272
Bank loans, loan notes and overdrafts (95.000) - - -
Payables (due to brokers, accruals and other creditors) (10,142) (1,031) - -
FX forwards {61,209) - 13,848 46,254
Total foreign currency exposure on net monetary items (-94,0363- - 13,-97-5- 15,059 47,825
Investments held at fair value 478,715 707,968 155,635 58,198
Non-currerd assets 686 - - -
Non-current liabilities (15,000) {42,593) - -
Total currency exposure 370,365 679,351 176,69;1 ' 106,023
Swedish

Sterling Euro Krona Other
2020 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Receivables {due from brokers, dividends and other income receivable} 31,552 27,495 634 413
Cash at bank and on deposit 25,602 11,922 962 1,643
Bank loans, loan notes and overdratts (40,000) - - -
Payables {due to brokers, accruals and other creditors) (8,026) (6,076) - -
FX forwards (133,731) 62,014 22,525 43,583
Total foreign currency exposure on net monetary items (124,603) 95,355 24,121 45,639
Investments held at fair value 446,698 551,576 100,836 56,185
Non-current assets (15,108) (44,246) - -
Total currency exposure 306,987 602,685 124,957 101,824

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the profit after tax for the year on the Group’s equity in regard 1o the exchange rates
for Sterling/Euro and Sterling/Swedish Krona and other currencies.

It assumes the following changes in exchange rates:
® Sterling/Euro +/- 15% (2020:15%)

® Sterling/Swedish Kiona +/- 15% (2020:15%)

@ Sterling/Other +/- 15% (2020:15%)
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Foreign currency sensitivity continued
If sterfing had strengthened against the currencies shown, this would have had the following effect:

Year ended March 2021 Year eaded March 2020

Swedish Swedish
furo Krona Euro Krona Other
£'000 £'000 £000 £°000 £000

Statement of Comprehensive Income -
profit after tax

Revenue retuin (2,726) (589) (250} (3,016) (340) (99)
Capital return (83,243) (20,269) {7,579) (71,091) (13,132) 37
Change to the profit atter tax for the

yearfshareholders’ funds (85,969) (20,858) (7,829) {74,107) (13,472) (7.416)

Change to totai earnings per Ordinary share {36.13)p {29.93)p

If Sterling had weakened against the currencies shown, this would have the following effect:
Year ended March 2021 Year ended March 2020

Swedish Swedish
Euro Krona Euro Krona Other
£°000 £7000 £°000 £000 £000

Statement of Comprehensive Income -
profit after tax

Revenue return 3,41 732 318 4971 423 13
Capital return 124,633 27,440 10,262 97,685 17,780 9,909
Change to the profit after tax for the

yeaifshareholdess’ funds 128,044 28,172 10,580 102,656 18,203 10,022
Change to total earnings per Ordinary share 52.56p 41.24p

11.3 interest rate risk
Interest rate movements may affect:

@ the fair value of any investments in fixed interest securities;

@ the fair value of the loan notes;

@ the leve! of income receivable from cash at bank and on deposit;
@ the level of interest expense on any variable rate bank loans; and
® the prices of the underlying securities held in the portfolics.

Management of the risk

The possible effects on fair value and cash flows that could arise as a result of changes in interest rates are taken into account when
making investment decisions. Property companies usually have borrowings themselves and the level of gearing and structure of its
debt portfalia is a key factor when assessing the investment in a property company.

The Group has fixed and has had variable rate borrowings during the year. The interest rates on the loan notes is fixed, detaiis are
set out in note 13. in addition to the loan notes the Group has unsecured, multi-currency revolving loan facilities which carry variable
rates of interest based on the currencies drawn, plus a rmargin. These facifities totai £130,000,000 (2020: £110,000,000).
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Management of the risk continued

The Manager cansiders bath the level of debt on the balance sheet of the Group {i.e. the loan notes and any bank loans drawn)
and the “see-through” gearing, taking into account the assels and liabilities of the underlying investments, when considering the
investrment portfolio. These gearing levels are reported regularly to the Board.

The majority of the Group’s investment portfolio is non-interest bearing. As a result the Group’s financiat assets are not directly
subject ta significant amounts of nisk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates.

Interest rate exposure
The exposure at 31 March of financial assets and financial liabilities to interest rate risk is shown by reference to:

@ floating interest rates: when the interest rate is due to be re-set;

@ fixed interest rates: when the financial instrument is due to be repaid.

The Group’s expesure to floating interest rates on assets is £80,027.000 (2020: £79,651,000).
The Group’s exposure to fixed interest rates on liabilities is £152,593,000 (2020: £99,246,000).
The Group’s exposure to floating interest rates on liabilities is £nil (2020: £nil).
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Interest receivable and finance costs are at the following 1ates:

@ Interest received on cash balances, or paid on bank gverdrafts, is at a margin over LIBOR or its foreign currency eguivalent
(2020: same).

® Interest paid on borrowings under the mutti-currency fcan facilities, is at a margin over LIBOR or its foreign currency equivalent for
the type of loan (2020: saime),

& The finance charges on the €50m and £15m loan notes are at interest rates of 1.92% and 3.59% respectively.

The year end amounts are not representative of the exposure to interest rates during the year as the level of exposure changes
-as investments are made in fixed interest securities, borrowings are drawn down and repaid, and the mix of borrowings between
floating and fixed interest rates changes.

Interest rate sensitivity
A change of 2% on interest rates at the reporting date would have had the following direct impact:

2021 201 2020 2020

2% 2% 2% 2%

Increase  Decrease Increase Decrease

£000 £000 £'000 £000

Change to sharehoiders’ funds (1,176) 1,176 317 317
Change to total earnings per Ordinary share {0.37)p 0.37p (0.10)p 0.10p

This level of change is not repiesentative of the year as a whole, since the exposure changes throughout the period.

This assessment does not take into account the impact of interest rate changes on the market value of the investments the
Group holds.

11.4 Liquidity risk
Unquoted investments in the portfolio are subject to liquidity risk. The Group held one unquoted investment at the year end (see
11.6 betow).

In certain market conditions, the liquidity of direct property investments may be reduced. At 3t March 2021, 6% (2020: 8%) of the
Group’s investment portfolio was held in direct property investments.

At 31 March 2021, 94% (2020: 92%) of the Group’s investment portfolio is held in listed securities which are predominantly
readily realisable.

Bank loan facilities are short term revolving loans which it is intended are renewed or replaced but renewal cannot be certain. Loan
notes of €50m and £15m are repayable in February 2026 and 2031 respectively.

The table shows the timing of cash outflows to settle the Group’s current tiabilities together with anticipated interest costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
Debt and Financing maturity profile

Within Within Within Within within More than

1year 1-2years 2-3years 3-dyears 4-5years 5 years

At 31 March 2021 £'000 £'DDD £000 £000 £000 £°000
Bank loans” 95,000 - - - - - 95,000
Loan notes - - - - - 57,593 57,593

Projected interest cash flows an

bank and loan notes 2,178 1,356 1,356 1,356 1,356 2,693 10,295
Accruals and deferred income 10,719 - - - - - 10,719
Other creditors 110 - - - - - 110
108,007 1,356 1,356 1,356 1,356 60,286 173,717

within within within within Within  More than
1year 1-2 years 2-3years  3-4years  4-5years S years Total
At 31 March 2020 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Bank loans 40,000 - - - - - 40,000
Loan notes - - - - - 59,246 55,246

Projected interest cash flows on

bank and loan notes 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388 4,081 1,021
Accruals and deferred income 3,812 - - - - - 3,812
Other ¢reditors 294 - - - - - 294
45,494 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388 63,327 114,373

" & £60m multicurrency facifity with RBS was renewed for one year In Febiuary 2021, £50m (2020 £10m) was drawn on this facifity at the balance sheet date. A
£30m one year facikty with ING Luxembourg was renewed in july 2020, £30m (2020, £30m) was drawn on (ks facllity at the balance sheet date. A £40m facility
was renewed with {CBC in Novernber 2020. £15m (2020: £nil) was dsawn on this facility at the belance sheet date,

Management of the risk

the Managet sels guidelines for the maximum exposure of the portfolio to unquoted and direct propeity investments. These are set

out in the Investment Palicies on page 25. All unquoted investments with a value over £1m and direct property investments with a

value over £5 million must be approved by the Board for purchase.

The Company maintains regular contact with the banks providing revolving facilities and renewal discussions commence well ahead
of facility renewal dates. In addition the Company is exploring new opportunities for the pravision of debt on an ongoing basis.

1.5 Credit risk

The faiture of a counterparty to a transaction to discharge its obligations undes that transaction could result in the Group suffering
2 loss. Al the period end the largest counterparty risk, which the Group was exposed to was within Deblors and Cash and cash
equivalents where the total bank balances held with one counterparty was £53,134,000 (2020: £46,731,000 two counterparties).

Management of the risk

Investment transactions are carried out with a number of brokers, whose credit standing is reviewed periodically by the Manager,
and limits are set on the amaount that may be due from any one broker. £ash at bank is only held with banks with high quality
external credit ratings.

Credit risk exposure
In summary, compared to the amounts in the Balance Sheet, the maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 March was as follaws:

0N 2021 2020 2020

Balance  Maximum Balance Maximum

Sheet exposure Sheet exposufe

£000 £7000 £000 £000

Debtoss 60,990 60,990 60,094 60,094
Cash and cash equivalents 29,114 29,114 40,129 40,129
o 90,104 90,104 100,223 100,223
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Where the receivables of the Group are exposed to credit risk, the requirement for impairment is assessed at each year end. For
all receivables, in the table above, no impairment has been recegnised in relation to expected credit losses as the impact of these
losses is immaterial as at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: no impairment).

Offsetting disclosures

In order to better define its contractual rights and to secure rights that will help the Group mitigate its counterparty risk, the Group may
enter into an {SDA Master Agreement or similar agreement with its OTC derivative contract counterparties. An ISDA Master Agreement
is an agreement hetween the Group and the counterparty that governs OTC derivatives and foreign exchange contracts and typically
contains, among other things, collateral posting terms and netting provisions in the event of a default and/or termination event. Under
an I1SDA Master Agreement, the Group has a contractual right to offset with the counterparty certain derivative financial instrurnents
payables and/or receivables with collateral held and/or posted and create one single net payment in the event of default including

the bankruptcy or insolvency of the counterpaity. However, bankruptcy or insolvency laws of a particular jurisdiction may impose
restrictions on or prohibitiens against the right of offset in bankruptcy, insolvency or other events.

The disclosures set out in the following tables include financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject to an enforceable
master netting arrangernent or simitar agreement.

At 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group's derivative assets and liabilities (by type and counterparty} are as falfows:

IVIINYNIA
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Net amounts Net amounts
of financial of financial
assets/ assets/
liabilities liabitities
presented in presented in
the Balance <Cash collateral the Balance  Cash coilateral
Sheet pledged Sheet pledged
£000 £000 £000 £000

CFD positions:

Goldman Sachs {141) 50,913 8,698 31,525
(141) 50913 8,698 31,525
TRS position: ) .

ING - - (3,808) 7997
- R (3,808) 7997

FX forward contracts: - o
Bank of Montreal - - (2,582) -
Barclays - - (2,398) -
BNP Paribas - - (620) -
HSBC (1.107) - - -
Westpac - - (9) -
(17 ' - (5.609) -

11.6 Fair values of finandial assets and financial liabilities

Except for the loan notes which are measured at amortised cost (refer to Note 13), the faif values of the financial assets and
financial liabilities are either carried in the balance sheet at their fair value (investments} or the balance sheet amount is a
reascnable appeoximation of fair vatue (debtors, crediters, cash at bank and bank overdiafts, atcruals and prepayments).

The fair values of the listed investments are derived from the closing price or tast traded price at which the securities are quoted on
the London Stock Exchange and other recognised exchanges.

The fair value of contracts for difference are based on the underlying listed investment value as set out above and the amount due
frorn or to the counterparty under the contract is recorded as an asset or liability accordingly, which is disciosed in Note 13 for the
current year.

The fair values of the propesties are derived from an open market (Red Book) valuation of the properties on the Balance Sheet date
by an independent firm of valuers (Knight Frank).

There was one unquoted investment at the Balance Sheet date, Atratg, with a total value of £1,468,000 (2020: Atrato, £682,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1t FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
In the Parent Company accounts there are investrnents of £43,312,000 in unlisted subsidiaries which are classified as levei 3.

The amounts of change in fair value for investments including net returns on CFDs recognised in the consofidated profit or loss for
the year was a gain of £214,372,000 (2020: loss of £198,698,000).

11.7 Capital management policies and procedures
The Group’s capital mapagement objectives are:

@ 10 ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern; and
@ to maximise the total return to its equity shareholders through an appropriate balance of equity capital and debt.

the equity capital of the Group at 31 March 2021 consisted of called up share capital, share premium, capital redemption
and revenue reserves totalling £1,326,433,000 (2020: £1,136,453,000). The Group does not regard the loan notes and loans as
permanent capital.

The loan notes agreement requires compliance with a set of financial covenants, including:

@ Total Borrowings shall not exceed 33% of Adjusted Net Asset Value;

® the Adjusted Total Assets shail at all times be equivalent to a8 minimum of 300% of Total Borrowings; and
@ the Adjusted NAV shall not be less than £260,000,000.

12 DEBTORS

Company Group Company
201 2020 2020
£000 £000 £'000

Amounts falling due within one year:

Securities and properties sold for future settlement 267 267 5,020 5,020
Tax recoverable 4,231 3,761 1,414 1,292
Prepayments and acciued income? 5176 5176 5,082 5,082
Amounts receivable in respect of Contracts for Difference - - 8,698 8,698
CFD margin cash 50,913 50,913 31,525 31,525
TRS margin cash - - 7997 7,997
Other debtors 403 403 358 358

' 60,990 60,520 60,094 59972

Non-current assets
Deferred taxation asset 686 686 - -

* Includes amounts in respect of rent free periods.
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13 CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Company Group Company
2021 2020 2020
£000 £000 £000

Amounts falling due within one year:

Bank loans and overdratts 95,000 95,000 40,000 40,000

Securities and properties purchased for future settlement 194 194 5,975 5,975

Amounts due to subsidiaries - 42,880 - 50,342

Amounts payable in respect of Contracts for Difference 141 L] - -

Amounts payable in respect of Total Return Swap - - 3,808 3,808

Tax payable 9 9 213 213

Accruals and deferred income 10,719 10,685 3,812 3,783

Foreign exchange forward contracts for settlement 1,107 1,107 5,609 5,609 P

Other creditors 10 104 294 286 E §
107,280 150,120 59711 110,016 g ®

Non-current liabilities:

1.92% Euro Loan Notes 2026 42,593 42,593 44,246 44,246
3.59% GBP Loan Notes 2031 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
Deferred taxation - - 108 108

57,593 57,593 59,354 59,354
Loan Notes

©On the 10th February 2016, the Company issued 1.92% Unsecured Euro 50,000,600 Loan Notes and 3.59% Unsecured G8P 15,000,000
Loan Notes which are due to be redeerned at par on the 10th February 2026 and 10th February 2031 respectively.

The fair vatue of the 1.92% Euro Loan Notes was £42,732,000 (2020: £44,418,000) and the 3.59% GBP Loan Notes was £15,219,000
(2020: £15,553,000) at 31 March 2021.

Using the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy the Loan Notes are deemed to be categorised within Level 2.

The loan notes agreement requires compliance with a set of financial cavenants, including:

@ Total Borrowings shall not exceed 33% of Adjusted Net Asset Value;

® the Adjusted Total Assets shall at al! tirnes be equivalent to a minimum of 300% of Total Borrowings; and
® the Adjusted NAV shall not be less than £260,000,000.

The Company and Group complied with the terms of the loan noles agreement throughout the year.

Multi-currency revolving loan facilities
The Group also had unsecured, multi-currency, revolving short-term loan facilities totalling £130,000,000 (2020: £110,600,000) at
31 Mmarch 2021, At 31 March 2021 £95,000,000 was drawn on these facilities (2020: £40,000,000).

The maturity of these faciiities is shown in notes 11.3 and 11.4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

13 CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES continued
Recongciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

long term  Short term

debt debt
Group and Company £'000 £'000
Opening liabilities from firancing activities at 31 Masch 2020 59,246 40,000 99,246
Cash flows:
Drawdown of bank loans - 55,000 55,000
Movement on foreign exchange (1,653) - {1,653)
msing liabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2021 57,593 © 95,000 152,593

14 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary share capital
The balance classified as Ordinary share capital includes the nomina! value proceeds on the issue of the Ordinary eguity share
capital comprising Ordinary shares of 25p.

Issued, allotted

and fully paid
Number £000

Ordinary shares of 25p
At 1 April 2020 317,350,980 79,338
At 31 March 2021 317,350,980 79,338

The voting rights are disclosed in the Report of the Directors on page 43.
During the year, the Company made na market purchases for canceliation of Ordinary shares of 25p each {2020: none).
Since 31 March 2021 no Qrdinary shares have been purchased and cancelled.

15 SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT AND CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE

Share premium account
The balance classified as share premium includes the premium above nominal value fram the proceeds on issue of the equity share
capital comprising Ordinary shares of 25p.

Capital redemption reserve
The capital redemption reserve is used ta record the amount equivalent to the nominal value of purchases of the Company’s own
shares in order to maintain the Company’s capital.

16 RETAINED EARNINGS

Group Company Group {ompany

201 2021 2020 2020

£'000 £000 £'000 £000

Investment holding gains 335,322 360,663 206,072 238,531
Realised capital reserves 757,418 31,167 691,148 664,465
1,092,740 1,091,830 897,220 902,996

Revenue reserve 67,222 68,132 72,762 66,986
1,159,962 1,159,962 969,982 969,982

Group investment holding gains at 31 March 2021 include a £143,000 gain (2020: £643,000 lass} relating to unfisted investments and
gains of £45,201,000 (2020: £51,882,000 gains) relating to investment properties.

Company investment holding gains at 31 March 2021 inclede gains of £70,685,000 (2020: £83,657,000) relating to uniisted and
subsidiary investments with a £44,061,000 revaluation gain {2020: £50,742,000) relaling 1o investment properties. Dividends are
only distributabie from the revenue reserve,
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17 DIVIDENDS

Year ended Yeat ended
31 March 31 March
01 2020

£000 £000

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:

Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 of 8.80p 27,927 27,292
(2019: 8.60p) per Ordinary share

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 5.20p
(2020: 5.20p) per Ordinary share 16,502 16,502

44,429 43,794

Amounts not recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 9.00p
(2020; 8.80p) per Ordinary share 28,562 27,927

the final dividend has not been included as a Hability in these financial statements in accordance with $AS 10 “Events after the
Balance Sheet Date”
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Set out below is the total dividend to be paid in respect of the year. This is the basis on which the requirements of 5.1158 of the
Corporation Tax act 2010 are considered.

Year ended Year ended
31 Maich 31 March
2021 2020
£'060 £'000
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 5.20p

(2020: 5.20p) per Ordinary share 16,502 16,502

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 9.00p
(2020: 8.80p) per Ordinary share ] 28,562 27,927
45,064 44,429

18 COMPANY STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own Statement of Comprehensive
Income. The net profit after taxation of the Company dealt with in the accounts of the Group was £234,405,000 (2020: £148,006,000
loss).

19 NET ASSET VALUE PER ORDINARY SHARE

Net asset value per Ordinary share is based an the net assets attributable ta Ordinary shares of £1,326,433,000 (2020
£1,136,453,000) and on 317,350,980 (2020: 317,350,980) Ordinary shares in issue at the year end.

20 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At 31 March 2027 the Group had capital commitments of £144,000 (2020: £132,000) but no contingent liabilities (2020: nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

21 SUBSIDIARIES

The Group has the following principal subsidiaries, ail of which are registered and operating in Scotland, England and Wales:

Name Reg. Number Principal Activities
New England Properties Limited 788895 Non-trading company
The Colonnades Limited 2826672 Non-trading company
showart Limited 2500726 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties Residential Developments Limited 2365875 Non-trading company
The Property Investment Trust Li¢ 2415846 Non-trading company
The Real Estate investment Trust Limited 2416015 Non-trading company
The Terra Property Investment Trust Limited 2415843 Non-trading company
Trust Union Property Investment Tryst Limited 2016017 Non-trading company
Trust Uniea Properties (Number Five) Limited 2415839 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties {Number Six) Limited 2416018 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties {Number Seven) Limited 2415836 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Eight) Limited 2416019 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties {Number Nine) Limited 2415833 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Ten} Limited 2416021 Non-trading company
Trust Union Psoperties {(Number Eleven) Limited 2415830 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties {Number Twelve) Lirnited 2416022 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Thirteen) Limited 2415818 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Fourteen) Limited 2416024 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Fifteen) Limited 2416026 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Sixteen) Limited 2415806 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Seventeen) Limited 2416027 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Eighteen) Limited 2415768 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties {Bayswater) Limited 2476030 Property investment
Trust Union Properties {Cardiff) Limited 2415772 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Theale) Limited 2416031 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties {Number Twenty-Two) Limited 2415765 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties {Numbes Twenty-Three) Limited 2416036 Non-trading company
Skitlion Finance Limited 2420758 Non-trading company
Trust Union Finance {(1991) Plc 2663561 Investment financing
fGH Developments Limited 1481476 Non-trading company
FGH Developments (Aberdeen) Limited (E18030) SC68799 Non-trading company
FGH {Newcastle) Limited 1466619 Non-trading company
NEP {1994) Limited 977481 Non-trading tompany
New England Developments Limited 1385909 Non-trading company
New England Investments Limited 2613905 Non-trading company
New England Retail Properties Limited 1447221 Non-trading company
New England (Southern) Limited 178731 Non-tiading company
Sapco One Limited 803940 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties Limited 2134624 Non-trading company
Trust Union Finance Limited 1233998 Investment holding and finance company
TR Propersty Finance Limited 2415941 Investment holding and finance company
Tryst Union Properties (South Bank) Limited 2420097 Non-trading company
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21 SUBSIDIARIES confinued
The Company has provided a quarantee for each of these subsidiaries in arder for themn ta take the exemption from the reguirement
of an audit, in line with the reguirements of 5.479A of the Companies Act 2006.

Ali the subsidiaries are fully owned and all the haidings are ordinary shares.

All companies have the registered office of 11-12 Hanover Street, London, W1S 1YQ with the exception of FGH Developments
{Aberdeen) Limited which is registered to 50 Lothian Road, Festival Square, Edinburgh £H3 9BY.

22 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSURES

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parlies, have been eliminated on
consolidation. The balances are interesl free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

Amounts due by the Company to subsidiaries per note 13

2021 2020
£000 £000
The Colonnades Limited 22,619 22,619 53
TR Property finance Limited 20,281 27743 g ?
New England Properties Limited {20) {20) E: ®
42,330 50,342 ’

Remuneration of key management personnel
Fhe remuneration of the directors, who are the key management personnel of the Company for each of the relevant categories
specified in |AS 24: Related Party Disclosures is provided in the audited part of the Directors” Remuneration Report on page 56.

Directors’ transactions
Transactions in shares by directors are considered to be a retated party transaction due to the nature of their role as directors.

Movements in directors’ shareholdings are disclosed within the Directors” Remuneration Report on page 57.

Dividends totalling £17,000 (2020: £10,000) were paid in the year in respect of shares held by the Company’s directors.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 97



I3

Glossary and AIFMD disclosure

1.0 ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Alternative Perfonmance peasures are numenical measures of the
Campany’s current or histonical performance, inangial position or
cash flows, ather than the financial measures defined or specified
In the Financial Statements.

the measures defined below are considered to be Alternative
Performance Measures. They are viewed as particularly refevant
and are frequently quoted for closed ended mvestment
comparies

Total Return

The NAY Total Return 1s calculated by reinvesting the dividends
In the assets of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend
date Dividends are deemed ta be reinvested on the ex-dividend
date as this ts the protoral used by the Company’s benchmark
and other indices. The Share Price Total Return 1s calculeted by
reinvesting the dividends in the shares of the Company trom the
relevant ex-dividend date

NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2020 3581 3175
NAV/share price per share at

31 march 2021 797 3925
Change in year 16.7% 23.6%
Impact of dividends reinvested 4.0% 4.7%
Total Rétlun for the year 20.7% 28.3;/0

Net Debt

Net debt 1s the total value of loar notes, loans (including notional
exposure 1o CHDs and 1RSs) less cash as a proportion of net asset
value

Ihe nel gearing has been caiculated as follows:

Lean notes 57,593 59,246
Loans 95,000 40,000
CFD positions (notional exposure) 146,001 56,728
TRS position {notional exposure) - 10,405
Less: Cash (2914) (40,129)
Less: Cash collateral {(included
within ‘Other debtors’ in Note 12) {50,913) {39,522)
218,567 86,728
Equity sharehoiders’ funds 1,326,433 1,136,453
Net gearing 16.5% 7.6%
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The Ongaing Charges 1atio has been calculated it accordance
with the guidance 1ssued by the AIC as the total of investment
management fees and administrative expenses expressed as a
percentage of the average Net Asset values thioughout the year.
The definition of administrative expenses daes include property
related expenses, the Ongomg Charges calculation 1s shown
inciusive and exclusive of these expenses to allow comparison
af the direct admimistrative and managemert charges with

e imajonly of Investment Trusts which do not hold any direct
property mvestments.

Excluding
Performance

Including

Excluding
Performance Performance
Fees
£000

Management Fee

{note 5) 15,884 6,225 6,225

Cther

Administrative

expenses (note 6} 1,835 1,835 1,835

Property Costs 270 270 -

Less: Non

recurnng

expenses - - -
17,989 8,330 8,060

Average et 1,283,051 1,283,051 1,283,051

Assets

Ongoing Charge o N .

2021 1.40% 0.65% 0.63%

Ongaing Charge 0.80% 0.61% 0.59%

2020

The Ongeing charges ratio provided in the Company’s Key
Information Docurnent 15 calculated in line wath the PRIPS
reqgulations which 1s different to the AIC methodolagy above,

Key Performance Indicators

Ihe Board assesses the performance of the mManager in meeting
the Trust’s objective against a number of Key Performance
indicators, these are considered ta be Alternative Performance
fMeasures These are sel out on pages 26 and 27 of this report
together with infarmation abeut any calculations of the source of
data
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2.0 GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

AIFMD

The Alternative kund Managers Direclive 1s Eurapean leqislaion
which created a European wide framewark for requlating the
managers of “alternative investment funds” {Alfs) it1s designed
10 regulate any fund which 1s not a UCITS (Undertakings for
Coltective Investment in Transferable Securities) fund and which
15 managed or marketed in the EU

alc
Ihe Association of Investment Companies - the AIC s the
representative body lar closed ended investment companies

Alternative Performance Measure

A finanuial measure of financal performance or financial position
other than 3 hnancial measure defined or specified in the
accounting statements,

Discount

Ihe amount by which the market price of a share of an
investment trust 1s lower than the Net Asset vaiue per share
expressed as a percentage of the NAY per share

Key Information Document

under the PRIIPs Reguiations a short, consumer fniendly Key
Information Document is required setting cut the key features,
risks, rewards and costs of the PRIIP and 15 intended ta assist
investars to better understand the Trust and mdke comparisons
between lfusts

The document ncludes estimates of investment perforirdnce
uncer a number of scenancs These calculations are prescrbed
by the requlation and are basea purely on recent histenical data
it 15 impaortant for investors to note that there 15 no Judgemert
apphed and these da nat in any way reflect the Board or
Manager's views

Key Performance Indicator "KPI”

AKPI":s a gquantfiable measure thal evaluates how successful
the trust1s 10 meeling its sbjectives The Trust’s KPIs are
discussed on pages 26 and 27

MIFID

The Markets :n Hinancial instruments Gifective 15 the EU
legislaticn that regulales firms who provide services to elents
l:nked tc "financial .nstrumerts” (shares, bonds, Lrits in coilective
‘nvestrent scherres and dernvatives) and the venues where
Ihose instrumerts are traded

Net Asset Value (NAV) per share
The value of total assets less liebriiies (ircluding borrow rgs)
drniced by the number of shares rissee

3.0 ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENT FUND MANAGERS
DIRECTIVE (“AIFMD")

in accordance with the AIRMD, infarmation in relatior to the
Company’s leverage and remunefation of the Campany’s AlkM,

F&C Investiment Business Limited, 1s required to be made
avallable to investors Detaled regulatory disclosures including
those on the AIFM's remuneration policy are avaiable on the &l
website or from +&€ on request. The nurmerical remuneration
disclosures in relation to the AIFM's first relevant accounting
penod will be made available i due course.

Leverage
Under the Alrt Directive, 11 1s necessary for Alks to disclase their
leverage in accordance with prescribed calculations

Afthough leverage 15 oflen used as anather term for gearng,
under the AlFMD leverage 1s specifically defined Twa types of
leverage calculations are defined; the gross and commitment
methads These methods summarily express leverage as a rati
of the exposure of the AIF against its net asset value “Exposure’
typically includes debt, the value of any physical properties
subject to mortgage, non-Sterking currency, equily of Cufrency
hedging at absolute national values {even thase held purely

for nsk reduction purposes, such as farward foreign exchange
contracts held for currency hedqing) and denvatve expasure
{canverted nto the equivalent underlying positicnsy The
commitment methad nets off denvative Instruments, while the
gross methed aggregates them

The table below sets out the current maximum perrritied limit
and the actial level of leverage for the Company as at 31 Maich
2020

Gross Commitment

Leverage exposure method method
Maximum permitted fimit 200% 200%
118%

Actual

The teverage limits are set by the AlbM and approved by the
Bgarg and are in ikne with the iirmts set out in the Campany's
Articles of Asscciation

This shou:d not be confused w th the geanng set out 1n the
Frarcal Highlights which s caculatec uncer the traditional
method set out by the Asscaiztion of Investimert (cmpanies The
AlFM 15 also requirec lo caomply with the geanrg parameters set
by the Board in relatior ta borrowings
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Natice of Annual General Meeting

THIS NOTICE IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR
IMMEDIATE ATTEMTION

If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take you
should seek your own advice fram a stockbroker, solicitor,
accountant or ather independent professional adviser who 15
authanised under the Finanaal Services and Markets Act 2000 1f
you are resident n the United Kingdom, or if not, from another
apprepnately authansed independent financial adviser

if you have sold or otherwise transferiod all of your shares,
please pass this document, together with the accormpanying
documents to the purchaser, or transferee, or to the person whe
arranged the sale or transfer so they can pass these documents
to the person who now holds the shares.

Our preference 15 to welcome sharehalders in persan to our 2027
AGM, particularly given the constraints we faced 1n 2020 due to
the COVID 19 pandemic The Company 1s continuing to monitar
the current COVID 19 legislation and public health guidance 1ssued
by the UK Government.

we have prepared for this AGM based on the anticipated status
of the UK Gavernment’s roadmap out of lockdown at the date
of the meeting 1t 15 expected that the AGM will be able 1o gu
ahead as normal as a physical meeting.

However, It may be necessary ta adapt our arrangements 1o
respand to any changes in circumstances, including the possibility
of & delay to the further easing of restnictions. Any changes to the
arrangements for the AGM (including any change Lo the location
of the AGM) will be commuricated to shareholders before the
meeting, Induding through our website (www trproperty com)
ard via an RNS announcement.

Ihe meeting will be canducted 1n accordance with legislation
and public health quidance In farce at the tme of the meeting.
Depending on the arcumstances at the time of the meeting, 1t
may be necessary to mit physical attendance by shareholders.
we regret that 1t will not be possible to provide refreshmenls
in the usual way If new restnctions are impesed, 1t 15 possible
that we will nat be 1n a position Lo accommadate shareholders
beycnd the mimmurn required ta hold a quorate meeting.

Regaidless of the current expectation for the physical meeting
to proceed as plarned, we strongly encourage al' shareholders
to vote In advance by proxy and appoint the Chawrman of the
meeting as their proxy rather than any cther named persgn,
who may not be permitted ta attend the AGM This will ensure
that their vole will be counted if they (or any other proxy they
might otherwise appoint) are not able to attend the meeting All
resclutions will be voted on by 2 pall.

shareholders intending to attend the AGM are asked ta register
their intention as soon as practicable by emadt to the following
dedicated address cmuk-trpropertyinvestment@Iinkgroup o uk

shareholders wha are nof able or 4o not wish to attend Lhe
meeting in persan {regardless of an easing of restrictions) will be
able 1o walch a live webcast of the meeting This will include the
formal business of the meeting, the Manager's presentation and
questions and answers The webcast will not enable sharehoiders
1o partispate 1n the meeting or vole However, sharehclders will
be invited to subimit questions through our website, by 12 00
noor on 26 July 2021 Questions of a very similar nature may be
grouped together ta ensure the orderly running of the AGM.
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Shareholders are asked to consult the website :n the period
leading up to the event where any restnctians ar changes will
be set out and the format detailed when we know what will be
permitied at that ime,

Notice 15 hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of

TR Property Investment Trust ple (the "Company”) wil be held
at 2 30 pm on 27 july 2021 at the Royal Autormaobile Club, 89/91
Pall Mall, London SW™Y 5HS for the purpose of transacting the
foliowing business

To consider and, +f thought fit, pass the follawing Resoiutions,

cf which Resolutions 1ta 11 will be proposed as Ordinary
Resgiutions and Resolutions 12 to 14 shall be proposed as Special
Resctutions

Io receive the Report of the Directors and the Audited
Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2021

Ic approve the Directars’ Remuieration Report (other than the
part containing the Directars’ remuneration pelicy) for the year
ended 31 Maich 2021,

1o declare a final dividend of $00p per Ordinary share
To re-elect Siman Marnison as a Director,

la re-elect David Watson as a Director

To re-elect Iim Grllbanks as a Direclar.

Io re-elect Kate Bolsover as a Director

lo re-efect Sarah Jane Curtis as a Directar.

To re-appoint KPMG LLP (the "Auditor”) as Auditors of the
Company io hold office until the conctusion of the next Annual
General Meeling af the Company.

To authorise the Directors to determine the remuneration of
the Auditors.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Ordinary rusclution
THAT, 1n substitution for alf such existing authonties, the
Directers be generally and unconditionally authonsed
pursuant to and 1n accordance wilh Section 551 of
the Companies Act 2006 (the "Act”) to exercise all
lhe powers of the Company to allol shares in the
Company and to grant nghts to subscnbe for, or to
convert any secunty into, shares in the Company up (o
a nominal value of £26,181,455 (being approximately
33% of the total issued share capital of the Company
as al the lalesl practicable date pnor to publication of
this Notice) provided that this authonty shall expire
at the date of the next Annual General Meeting of
the Company (or, 1f eatlier, at the close of busiress
on 27 October 2022), save that the Company shall
be entitied to make offers or agreements befare the
expiry of this authonty which would or might requie
shares to be aliotted or nghts to he granted after
such expiry and the Directors shall be entitled to allol
shares and grant nghts pursuant to any such offers or
agreements as If this authonly had not expred



Notice of Annual General Mesting

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

THAT

(&) {in substitution for all such exisung authonties and subject
to the passing of Resolut:on 11 set out above) the dwectors
be empowered pursuant to Section 570 and Section 573 of
the Act Lo allot equity secunties (as defined In Section 560
ol the Act) tor cash pursuant ta the authonty conferred
by Resoiution 11 above and/or to sell shaies held by the
Company as treasury shares for cash as f Section 561(1) of
the Act did not apply ta any such allotment, provided that
this power shall be imired to

(1) the allotrnent of equity securities and sale of lreasury
shares for cash in connection with an offer of, or
invitation ta apply for, equity secunties

{aa) to shareholders n proportion (as nearly as may be
practicable) to their exrsting holdings; and

{bb} to halders of other equity secunities, as required
by the nghts of those securities, or as the Board
otherwise considers necessary,

and so that the Board may irmpase any limits or restrictions
and make ary arrangeiments which 1t considers necessary
or appropriate 1o deal with treasury shares, fractional
entitlements, record dates, legal, regulatory or prachical
problems in, or under the faws of, any terntory of any ather
matter, and

(1) in the case ot the authanty granted under ResolLt on
1t and/arin the ¢ase of any sale af treasury skares
for cash, to the allotment (otherwise than under
paragraph {1) above) of equity securit es or sale of
treasury shares up 1o a nominal amount of £3,966,887
{being approxsmately 5% of the total issued shaie
capital of the Campany as at the lalest practicable date
prior to pubncation of the nctice of meeting},

(b)the power given by th s resalution shall expire upen the
expiry of the authonty conferred by Resolution 11 above,
save that the Company shall be entitled to maxe offers or
agreements before the expiry of such power which would
ar might reguire equity secunties 1o be allotted after such
expiry and the directors shall be entitled to al'ot equity
secunties pursyant to any scch offer or agreement as of the
power conferred hereby had net expired

THAT the Company be and 15 rereby aererally anc
ancondionally autronsed in accordance wwith Secaon 703
af Ire Act 1o make marke! surchases (vatain the
m2aning of Section 4%3(4) of the Acty of Drdina~, shares
0 250 each 1t e caoital of e Com™naTy on suc terrs
ANa N sUCT Manner as the direciors may Fom ome to

AME gelEmng proy e hat

(a) the max murr romber of Crdinary shares hereby
althorsed tc be purchasec skal be 14 65% ¢f the
Corrpany’s Grdinary sheres o ssue at the cate cf the
Annual Gerera’ Meet rq lequ.va ent tg 47.370,5"1 Ordinary
shares of 25p each al 3 Jure 2021, the latest pract cabe
gate prior 1o pub- caton of th.s Notice),

{(b) the maximum price (exclusive of expenses) which may
be paid for any such share shalt not be more than the
higher of

{13 105% of the average of the middie market quotatians
for an Grdwnary share as taken fram the London Stack
Exchange Dally Otiicial List for the five business days

immediately preceding the date on which the Company

agrees to buy the shares concerned, and

{11} the hugher of the price of the fast independent trade

and the highest current independent bid for an Ordinary

share in the Company on the trading venue where the
purchase 15 carrsed out at the ielevant time,

(¢} the mintmum price {exclusive of expenses) which may be
paid for an Qrdinary share shali be 25p, being the nominal
value per Ordinary share; and

{d)the authanty hereby conferred shall expire at the

tonclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company
In 2022 (ar, 1f earlier, at the close of business on 27 Qctober

2022). save that the Company shall be entitled to enter
INto & contract to purchase Oidinary shares which will, ol
may. be completed or executed wholly or partly after the
power expires ard the Company may purchase Ordinary
shares pursuant to such contract as if the power canferred
hereby had not exprred

IHAT, with effect from the conclusion of this meeting,
the Articles of Assoriation produced o the meehing ard
nitiatled by the Chairman of the meeting for the purpases of

identification be hereby approved and adopted as the Articles

of Association of the Company, in substitution for, and 1o the
exclusion of, the existing Articles of Assouation

Regsstereg Office

Registered in Englanc No. 84492 1112 Hanover Slreet
Londan

W15 1Y(Q

By Order cf the Board

For anc or behalf of
Lak Compary Wadeis Loetad

Secelary

2 june 2027
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTES TO THE NOTICE OF AMNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting
convened by the above Notice 1s entitled to appoint one

or mare proxtes te exercise ail or any of the nghts of the
member to attend, speak and vote in his or her place
Sharehalders are strongly encouraged to appomt the Charman
of the meeting as their proxy, rather than any other named
person who may not be permitted to attend the AGM n the
event of restrictions of limits on attendance A proxy need

not be a sharehalder of the Company. lo appoint mare than
one proxy, the proxy form should be photacopied and the
name of the proxy to be appointed indicated on each proxy
form together with the number of shares that such proxy 15
appainted in respect of Completion and submussian of a proxy
instruction will not preclude a member from attending and
voling In person at the AGM (subject to any restrictions on
physical attendance).

To be valid any proxy farm or ather instrument appainting

a proxy must be returned by past, by couner or by hand to
the Campany’s Registrars, Computershare Investar Services
PLC, The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road, Bristol BS99 67Y, or
alternatively, by guing to www eproxyappointment.com
and fallowing the instructions piowided All praxies must

be appointed by no later than 48 hours before the time of
the AGM. In the case of joint holders, where mare than ore
of the joint holders purports to appoint a proxy, oniy the
appointment submitted by the mast senicr halder will be
accepled Senignty Is determined by the arder in which the
names of the jomnt holders appear in the Company’s registei
in respect of the joint halding {the first named being deemed
the most seniar)

In order to be abie ta attend and vate at the AGM or any
adjourned meeting {and alsa for the purpose of calculating
how mary votes a person may cast), a person must have

his or her name entered an the Reqister of Members of the
Company by 2.30 pm on 23 July 2027 (or 6 CO prn on the
date two days before any adjourned meeting) Changes to
entries on the Register of Members after this time shall be
disregarded in determining the nghts of any person to attend
or vote at the meefing.

voting will be conducted on a poll at the Meeting On a poll
vole every sharehalder will through thew proxy have ane vote
fur every ordinary share of which he or she 1s the holder.

Shareholders should note that 1t is possible that, pursuant to
requests made by shareholders of the Company under Section
527 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company may be required
to pubksh on a website a statement setting oLt any matter
relating to: {7} the audit of the Campany’s accounts (including
the auditor’s report and the conduct of the aucst) that are to
be laid before the AGM, or {1} any circumstarce connected
with an auditor of the Company ceasing to hold office since
the previcus meeting at which annual accounts and reporls
were jaid In accordance with Section 437 of the Companies
Acl 2006
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The Company may not require the sharehoiders requesting
any such website publication to pay 1ts expenses in complying
with Sections 527 or 528 of the Companies Act 2006, Where
the Company 1s required to place a staternent on a website
under Section 527 of the Campanies Act 2006, It must forward
the statemnent to the Companys auditor not later than the
time when it makes the statement available on the website
Ihe business which may be dealt with at the AGM mcludes
any staternent that the Company has been required urder
Sectian 527 of the Compamios Act 2006 to publish on 2
website.

Any corparation which 1s a member of the Company can
appoint one or mare corparate representatives who may
exercise on its behalf all of 1ts powers as a member provided
that they do not do so 1 refation to the same shares.

The right to appoint a proxy does not apply 1o persans whose
shares are held on their behalf by another peison and who
have been nominated to recerve communication from the
Company in accardance with Section 146 of the Companies Act
2006 ("nominated persons”) Nominated persons may have

a right under an agreement with the registered sharehalder
wha halds shares on their behall to be appointed (or to

have someone else appainted} as a proxy Alternatively, if
nominated persons do not have such a nght, or do not wish
ta exercise i1, they may have a nght under such an agreement
to give mstruclions ta the person holding the shares as to the
exercise of voting nghts.

CRES] members who wish 1o appoint a praxy or proxies
through the CREST electronic praxy appaintment service

may do so for the AGM to be held on 27 July 2021 and any
adjournment(s) thereof by using the protedures descrbed in
the CREST Manual. CREST persanal members of other CREST
sponsared members, and those CREST members wha have
appomted a voting service provider should refer to thewr CRESI
SpNsOrs Of voting service pravider(s), who will be able to
take the appropriate action on ther behalf

In order for a proxy appaintment or instruction made by
means of CREST to De valid, the approprate CREST message

(a “CREST Proxy Instruction™) must be properly authenticated 1n
accordance with kuraclear UK & Ireland Limited's specifications
and must contain the information required for such
instructions, as described in the CREST Manual. The message
must be transmitted 50 as to be received by the Campany’s
agent, Computershare Investor Services PLC (CREST Participant
ID 3RAS0}, no later than 4& haurs before the time appointed
for the meeting. tor this purpose, the ume of receipt will

be taken o be the time (as determined by the tme stamp
applied to the message by the (REST Apphication Host} from
which the Company’s agent Is able to retrieve the message by
enquiry to CRESI in the manner presciibed by CREST

CREST members and, where applicable, their CRESI spansar of
wating service pravider should note that turoclear UK & Ireland
Limited does not make available speciai pracedures in CRES!
for any particular messages.
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Normai system tim:ngs and Imitations will therefare apply

i relation ta the input of CREST Proxy Instructions 1t 1s the
responsibility of the CREST member concerned to 1ake {or 1f
the CREST member 1s a CREST personal member or sponsored
member or has appointed a voting service provider, (G procure
that bis o her CRESI sponsor of voting service provider

taxes) such action as shall be necessary 1¢ ensure that a
mmessage 1s ansmilled by means of the CREST system by any
particular ime 1n this connectior, CREST members and, where
applicable, their CREST sponsor of vating service piovider are
referred i particular to those sections of the (REST Manual
concerning practical imitations of the CREST system and
timings. the Company may treat as invahd a CREST Praxy
Instruction in the arcumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)(a)
of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001

Any member attending the meeting (subgect to any
restrctions in place at the time of the meeting) has the nght
to ask questions. The Company must cause to be answered
any such question relating to the business being dealt with at
the meeting but no such answer need be giver 1f (a) tc do so
would interfere unduly with the preparation tor the meet:ng
ar :invoive the discosure of confidential information, (b) the
answer has alieady been given on a website in the form of an
answer to a question; or {¢) It 1s undesirable in the pterests
of the Compary or the good order of the meeting that the
question be answered Questicns of a very similar nature may
be grouped together to ensure the aiderly runring of the
AGM

A copy of this notice, and other infarmatian required by
sect:on 311A of the Companies Act 2006, can be found at
www tiproperty com

Members satisfying the threshalds m sect.cr 338 of the
Corrpanies Act 2006 may require the Company to give, 1o
members cf the (cmpany entitled to receive nclice of the
AGM, notice of a resoluton which those members intenc to
move (and which may ploperly be moveg) at the AGM A
resclution may properly be moved at the AGM unless.

(1} 1t wedld, of passed, be ineffective (whether by reason of
any incons:stency with any enactment of the Company's
corstitution or otherwise), (1) it s defamatory of any persor,
ar (uy s fivelous or vexatious A request made pursuart
to th's nght may be in hard copy or electionic ferm, must
Jenbify the rescluticn of which notice 15 to be given, must
be acthenticated by the person(s) making tard rmust be
receved by the Company not later than six weeks before the
date of the AGM

Members satisfying the thresholds nosection 3384 of the
Campames Act 2006 ey request the Compary (o inCude

in the business tc be deait with at the AGM any ratter

{other thar 2 proposed rescltt or) which mey proper'y be
reoces in the business at the AGR A matter may properly
be rcluded in the busiress at the AGM unless ()it s
detarratary of ery persen, or (1} 't s fr vcious or vexatiaus
AreqLest mrade pLisuant to th s rebt may ke bard copy

of eweciioniC form, must idertify the matter to be ncuded o
the business, must be accomparec by a statement settng
ot the grouncs for the request, must be authenticated by the
person{s) ma<irg it and must be recerved by the Corrpany not
later than s x weeks before the date of the AG

Biographical detalls of the directors are shown on pages 38
and 29 af the Annual Report & Accounts.

As at 3 June 2021 (being the (atest practicable day prior

te publication of this Notice), the 1ssued share capital of

the Company 15 31/.350,980 Crdinary shares ol 25p each
Therefore, the total number of vating fights in the Campany at
3,une 202715 317,350,980

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the
Management kngagement Committee, the Nomination
Commtiee, the New Arhicies of Associat:on and the Letters of
Appointment for directors will be available for inspection for
at least 15 minutes prior to and during the Company’s AGM

You may nat use any electronic address provided either in
this Notice or any related documents to communicate for any
purposes other than those expressly stated

. The Cormpany may process personal data of attendees at the

Annual General Meeting This may mclude webcasts, photos,
recording and audio and video links, as well a5 other forms
of persenal data. The Company shall process such personal
data in accordance with its privacy policy, which ¢an founc at
https //www tipropertycom/legal
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Explanation of No

RESOLUTIONS 1, 2, AND 3: ACCOUNTS,
DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT AND
DIVIDEND

These are the resolutions which deal with the presentation of
the audited accounts, the approval of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report and the declaration of the final dividend

Ihe vate lo approve the Remuneratien Report 1s advisory only
and will nol require the Company to alter any arrangernents
detailed in the report should the resciution not be passed

The Beard is propesing a final dividend for the year ended

31 mMarch 2021 of 9.00p per ordinary share. If approved at the
AGM, the Company would pay the dividend on 4 August 2021
to those shareholders on the Company's 1egister at the close of
business on 18 June 2027,

RESOLUTIONS 4, 5, 6, 7, AND 8: RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

These resolutions deal with the re-election of Simon Marmnson,
nim Gillbanks, David Watsan, Kate Balsover and Sarah Jane
Curtis. In accardance with the UK Corparate Goavernance Code, all
directors will retire an an annual basis and have confirmed that
they will offer themselves for re-election.

A performance evaluation has been completed and your Board
has determined that each of the directors continues to be
effective and demanstrates their commitment to their role

Their biographical detalls, which are set out on pages 38 ang

39, demonstrate how the Board has the appropriate balance

of skills, experience independence and knowledge to lead the
Companys long-term sustainable success. Accordingly, the Board
unanimously recommends thetr re election

RESCLUTIONS 9 AND 10: AUDITORS

These deal with the reappaintment af the Auditors, KPMG
LLP and the authorisation for the directors to determine their
remuneraticn

RESOCLUTION 11: ALLOTMENT OF SHARE CAPITAL

Our Board tonsiders It appropriate that an authornty be granted

to allot shares in the capital of the Company up to a maximum
nominal amount of £26,445,915 (representing appioximately one
third of the Company's 1ssued share capital as at 3 June 2021,
heing the latest practical date prior to publication of this Notice of
the meeting) As at the date of this notice the Company does not
hold any shares in treasury.

The directors have no present intertion of exercising this
authonty and would anly expect to use the authonty if shares
coLld be issued at, or at a premium 1o, the Net Asset value per
share

Ihis authority will expire at the earlier of c'ose of business
ar 27 October 2022 and the conclusion ef the Annual General
Meet.ng of the Company 10 be held :n 2022
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RESOLUTION 12: HSAPPLICATION OF STATUTORY
PRE-EMPTION RIGHTS

Ths resolution would give the directors the authonty to allot
shares (or sell any shaies which the Company elects to hold
in treasury) for cash without fisst offering them to existing
sharehgclders in propoertion to their existing shareholdings.

This authonty would be hmited to allotments or sales in
cannection with pre-emptive offers and affers to holders of
other equity secunties if required by the nghts of those shaes
or as the board atherwise considers necessary, or otherwise up
to an aggregate nominal amount of £3,966,887 [his aggregate
nominal amount represents 5% cf the total 1ssued share capital
of the Company as at 3 June 2027, the latest practicable date
prior to publication of this Notice In respect of this aggregate
nomiral amount, the directors confirm therr intention to follow
the provisions of the Pre-Emption Group’s Statement of Principles
regarding cumulative usage of authenties within a rolling
3-year penod where the Principles provide that usage In excess
of 75% should nal take place without prior consultation with
shareholders

The autharity will expire at the earlier of ¢lose of business an
27 Qctober 2022 and the concfusian of the Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held in 2022,

RESOLUTION 13; AUTHORITY TO MAKE MARKET
PURCHASES OF THE COMPANY'S ORDINARY
SHARES

At the AGM held 10 2020, 3 special resolution was propased and
passed, grving the directors authanty, until the conclusion of the
AGM In 2027, to make market purchases of the Company’s own
issued shares up to a maximum of 14.99% of the 15sued share
capital.

Your Baard ts proposing that they should be given renewed
authonity to purchase Ordinary shares in the market Your

Boaid believes that to make such purchases in the market at
appropriate times and prices 15 a suitable method of enhancing
shareholder value 1he Company would, within guidelines set
from time to time by the Board, make either a single purchase o
a series of purchases, when market conditions are suitable, with
the aim of maximising the benefits to shareholders.

where purchases are made at pices below the prevailing Net
Asset Value per share, this will enhance the Net Assel Value

for the remaining shareholders 1t 1s therefore intended that
putchases would only be made at prices below Net Assel value
Your Board cansiders that it will be most advantagecus to
shareholders for the Company to be shle ta make such purchases
as and when 1t considers the tming to be favourabie and
therefore does not propase to set a tmetabie for making any
such purchases.

The Lempanies (Acqu'sition of Own Shares) (Treasury Shares)
Reqgulations 2003 enable comparies in the United Kingdem to
hold 1n treasury acy of their own shares they have purchased
with a view to possibie resale at a future date, rather than
canceding them |1f the Campany does re-purchase any of 1ts
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shares, the directers do not currently intend to hold any of the
shares re-puichased in treasury The shares so re-purchased will
continue to be cancelled.

The Listing Ruies of the UK Listing Authornty Imit the maximum
price (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for any such
share. It sha'l not be more than the higher of

(1} 1065% of the average of the middle market quatations for an
Ordinary share as taken from the London Stack Exchange Daily
Official List for the five business days immediately preceding
the date on which the Company agrees to buy shares
concerned, and

(1) the hugher of the price of the last independent trade and
the fughest current independent bid for an Ordinary share 10
the Company on the trading venue where the purchase 1s
carried out

1he minimum price to be paid will be 25p per Ordinary

share (being the nominal value) The Listng Rules also himit

a isted company to purchases of shares representing up 1o
15% of 115 15sued share capital In the market pursuant to a
general authonty such as this tor this reason, the Company is
himiting +ts authority to make such purchases ta "4 9% of the
Company’s Ordinary shares i 1ssue at the date of the AGM, this
Is equivalent tg 47.570,911 Ordinary shares of 25p each (nominal
value £11,892,/27) at 3 June 2027, the latest practicable date
prior to publication this Notice The autharity will last until the
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be Peld in 2622

RESOLUTION YL ADQPTION OF NEW ARTICLES OF
ASSOUATION

Resolution 14 relates o the adoption of new Art.cles of
Associaticn (the "New Articles™) In order to update the
Company’s cuirent Articles of Association (the “Curient Articles”,
which were adopted on 14 December 2012 The New Artices
reflect develapments in best practice, and provice additianai
clarhication and flexibility The main changes in the New Articles
are summarised in the Append:x an pages 106 and 10/ Other
changes, which are ot a minor, technical or clar fying nature have
nat been nated in the Appendix The New Articles showing all
the changes ta the Current Articles are available forinspection,
at www trproperty com and will also ke available at the Annual
General Meet rg

RECOMMENDATION

Your Board believes that the resalutions cortainec in this Notice
of Annual General Meeting are In the best interests ¢f the
Company and sharekoiders as 2 whole and recommends that you
vate in favour of them as your Directors inferd to do 0 1espect of
their benef cial sharehaldings
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APPENDIX

Further information and Explanatory notes regarding
amendments to the Company’s articles of association

sigma Shares and Defeired Shares

Ihe New Articles amend the Current Articles to remove
provisions and references relating to Sigma Shares and Deferred
Shares This reflects that on 14 December 2072 all Sigma Shares
were cansolidated and redesignated as Qrdinary Shares, and
the resulting Deferred Share was purchased by the Company for
cancellation. The Company now has a single class of Ordinary
Shares.

Untraged sharshotders

Ihe New Articles amend the position in relatian to untraced
shareholders. Rather than requinng the Company to take qut
lwo newspaper advertisements, the New Articles require the
Company to use reasonable eftarts to trace the shareholder.
‘Reasonable efforts’ to trace a shareholder may nclude, if
considered appropriate, the Company engaging a picfessional
asset reunification cornpary of other tracing agent to search for
a sharehofder who has not kept their shareholder detalls up to
date.

tn addition, the New Articles provide thal money from the sale
of the shares of an untraced shareholder wili be forteited If not
claimed after two years, rather than six years.

These changes reflect best practice and provide the Company
with appropriate flexibility In connection with locating untraced
shareholders

Sub-division gf shares

The New Articles clanfy that any shares resulting fram a sub-
division of the Campany’s existing shares may, n1 additian to
having any preference ar advantage as compaied with the
Company's other shares, also have deferred or ather nghts This
change makes administenrg any sub-division of shares more
straightforward

Operation of genera! meatings

the New Articles contain specific provisions te clanfy that the
Company ¢an hold "hybnd” general meetings (inciuding annual
generai meelings) and to set out how such meetings are to
be conducted Under the New Articles, the Company may hold
“hybnid” general meetings in such a way that enables members
to attend and partupate in the business of the meeting Dy
attending a physical location or by attending by means of an
electranic faclity Voting at hybrid meetings will, by default, be
decided on a poll Hybrnd meetings may be adjourned in the
even!t of a technolagicai failure.

The Mew Arlices allow the Company, where appropriate, to make
thanges to the arrangements far general meetings {including the
introducticn, change or carcellation of electronic faalitiesy after
notice of the meeting has heer 1ssued The Company may give
notice of any such changes in any manner considered appropnate
{rather than via an advertisement .0 two natcnal rewspapers)
The New Articles also expliat'y allow the Company to irtroduce
hea'th and safety arrangements at its meet ngs.

These changes were introduced to provide the Board greater
flexibility to align with technological advances, changes in
Investor sentiment and evalving best practice, particuiarly in hght

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

af the Covid-19 qutbreak and the uncertain duration of social
distancing measures and restnctions an gatherngs The Board
believes that hybrid meetings will allow for greater shareholder
and stakeholder engagement over the coming years in & way
that 1s more convenient for all partres. Absent exceptional
grcumstances, members of the Board intend to continue the
practice of attending general meetings of the Company in person
In ling with the views expressed by the Investment Association
and Institutonal Sharehalder Services, the changes witl nat
permit meetings to be held exclusively on an elfectronic basis, so
a physical meeting wil stl! be required In deciding whether and
how to hold a hybnd general meeting mn future, the Company
will have regard ta the views of shareholders and institutional
governance bodies at the relevant time as well as 1o relevant
guidance or codes of best practice.

The New Articles also specifically refer to the passibiiity of
satelhite/multi-venue meetings, such as the use of overflow
rooms Satellite meetngs are legally valid even without such a
provisicn but it has been added for clanty.

These changes are primarily contained in articles 47, 48, 50
and 53 in the New Articles A number of ather consequential
amendments have been made to the New Articles

Ghjections of Eirors in Voting

in relation to the slatulory requirement that a proxy must vote
in accardance with any instructions given by the member by
whom the proxy 1s appointed, the New Articles state expliotly
that the company 15 not required to check that proxies and
corporate representatives have voted in accordance with their
instructians or that ther failure to do so would vitiate the result
of a shareholder vote

Number of diractars
lhe New Articles reflect the statutory minimum of twao directors,
and introduce a maximum of 10 directars

Reappomunent of directars

In fine with the requirements of the LK Carporale Governance
Lode, the New Articles require directors to retire (and should
they wish to remain i office, seek re election) at each annual
general meeting This requirement does not apply to directors in
their first year of appointment who were appainted in the penod
between the AGM natice being issuecd and the AGM 1tselt. This
confirms existing Company practice,

Directors fees

The Current Articles provide that the aggregate of all fees paid

to directors shall not exceed £250 060 per annum. Article 88 of
the New Articles increases this amount to £300,000 to reflect the
amount appravad by resclution of the Company on 22 July 2014

Borrowing Poweis

The New Articles include in the defimtion of “borrowngs” the
rminarity proportion of moneys barmowed by a member of the
group and owing to 3 partly-owned subsidiary undeitaking
(weth “the minorty proportion” meaning a propartion equé! to
the proportion of the issued share capital of a partly-owned
subsidiary undertaking which 1s not attr:butabie to a member of
the group)
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Forfeiture of unclaimed dividends

Ihe Current Articles provide that if @ dividend or ather payment
due to mernbers has nct been claimed for twelve years after
being declared or becomning due, it will be forfeited to the
Company Articte 122 of the New Articles reduces this penod from
twelve to six years

Payments of dividends and cther amaunts

The New Artictes give the Board greater flexibility to determine
the appropriate methad{s) it pays dividends {and other sums)
to shareholiders 1his flexibility will hefp the Board take account
of developments 1 market practice and keep down the
agmumstrative cost of making payments The New Articles
alsg provide that where 3 payment cannol be made because

a shareholder has not provided valid accourt details to the
cormpany, that amount will treated as unclaimed until the
shareholder provides those details.

Capital Reserve

The New Artictes remave Article 132 :n the Qld Articies, which
was Included to ensure that the campary qualifies as an
investment frust and 15 treated as an investmert company
Following the modernisation of the investment trust regime and
amendments to legislation abolishing the restricion on the ability
to distnbute capital profits, this pravision 1s no lorger necessary

Strategic report gnd supplemantary matetiat;

The Companies Act 2006 and the Companies (Receipt of Accounts
and Reparts) Requiatians 2013 allow the Company to serd a copy
of its strateqic report with supplementary matenial instead of

its full accounts to a member whao has elected or tacitly agreed
to receive these documents, provided that the Company 15 not
prahibited from doing so inits articles Acticle 125 1s intended to
make It clear there 15 ng such probbition Shereholders should
note that they can always view the full annual repcrt on the
Lompany’s website of request a hard copy from the Company's
registiar

Gender Neytint Drafting
The New Articles amend the Curient Articles so that gender
reutral larguage 15 usec

Generai

Other changes which are of a minor, techmical or danfying nature
or which have been mace to remave provisions 1n the Current
Art-cles which duplicate Engnsk company law are nat roted
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The half year results are announced 1n late November The full
yeal results are anrounced in early June,

“

[ERE ! AP

The AGM 1s held in Landon in july.
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Dividends are usually paid on the Ordinary shares as follows:

internm, Janudry
Final- August

P R T S ]
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Dwidends can be paid 1o shareholders by means of BACS
(Bankers’ Automated Cleanng Services), mandale forms for

this purpose are available from the Registrar. Alteinatively,
shareholders can write to the Reqgistrar {the address Is giver: on
page *08 of this report) to give their instructions; these must
include the bank account number, the bank account Utle and the
sort code of the bank to which payments are o be made.

[ I S AN T B

IR Properly Investment Trust plc offers sharehalders the
oppcrtunity tc purchase further shares in the Corrpany through
the ORiP Plezse note that following Brexit shareholders in kuiope
are no longer able t¢ participate in the DRIP DRIP forms may

be obtained from Computershare Investor Services PEC through
their secure website www nvestorcentre co uk, or by phening
037G 707 1694 Charges do apply, dealing commission of 0.75%
{subject to a minimum of £2 56) Government stamp duty of
05% also applies

EE I
The market prices of the Company’s shares are published datly
in the fingncial limes Scire of the .nformation 1s published in

other leading newspapers the Financ 2l limes also shows figqures
for the estimated Net Asset va.ues and the discaunts appicable

ISIN GB0005064097
SEDAOL 0506409
glocmberg TRY.LN
Reuters TRY.L
Datastream 1RY

Getads of the benchmark are grysn m tme Strateqic Repart
on page 24 of this Report and Accounts The benchmark incex s
publ:shed daiy enag tan be found on Bloomber;

FISE EPRA/NARE | Developed ELicpe (appec Net Total
Return Index 0 Sterlirg
icomberg IRORAG ndex

PaTIENET

Details of the market price and Net Asset value of the

Ordinary shares can be found on the Company's website at
www.tipraperty com.

Sharehalders who hold their shares in certificated form <an check
therr holdings with the Registrar, Computershare Investar Services
PLC, via www Investorcentre co.uk. Please nate that to gain
access to your detalls on the Computershare site you will nieed
the holder reference number stated on the top ieft hand corner of
your share certificate

seyp e Yo
[ELFR RIS B

PR
Capres of this Report and Accounts and other docyments 1ssued
by the Company are avallable from the Company Secrelary If
needed, coples can be made available n a vanety of formats,

including Brallle, audio tape of larger type as appropriate.

You can contacl the Registrar, Camputershare Investar Services
PLC. which has installed textphones to allow speech and hearing
impaired people who have their own textphone to cantact

themn directly, without the need for an intermediate operatar, by
dialling 08/0 702 0005. Specially trained operators are available
durirg normal business hours to answer queries via this service

Alternatively, If you prefer to go thraugh a ‘typetalk’ operator
{provided by the Royal Natianal institute for Ceaf People} you
should dial 18001 followed by the number you wish o dial

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST




BTN S U

Where notification has been piowded in advantce, the Company
will arrange for copies of shareholder communicatians ta be
pravided to the operators of nominee accounts Nominee
investars may altend genaial meetings and speak at meetings
when invited to do sa by the Chairman.

R I
Lo 3

Upan a disposal of all or part of a shareholder’s holding of
Ordinary shares, the impact on the sharehalder’s capital gains
tax base cost of the canversion o Sigma shares i 2007 and the

redesignation to Grcdinary shares in 2012 should be considered.

In respect of the conversion to S«gma In 2007, agreement
was reached with HM Revenue & Customs (“"HMRC”) to base
the apportionment of the capital gains tax base cost an

the propertion of Qidinary shares that were converted by a
sharehclder into Sigrma shares on 25 July 2007

Therefore, if an Qrdinary shareholder convertad 20% of therr
existing Qrdinary shares Into Sigma shares on 25 july 2007, the
capital gams tax base cosl of the new Sigma shares acquired
would be equal to 20% of the oniginal capital gains tax base cost
of the Qrdinary shaces that they held pre-conversion [he base
cost of their rermaining halding of Qrdinary shares wauld then be
80% of the onginal capital gains tax base cost of their Ordinary
shares held pre-canversion.

As part of the re-designation of the Sigma shares into Ordinary
shares in December 2012, a further sharehglder's agreement
was reached with HMRC that a shareholders capital gains tax
base cost In their new Ordinary shares should be equivalent to
their capital gains base cost In the pre-existing Sigma shares

{i e ther capital gains base cost under the existing agreement if
apphcable).

If In doubt as to the consequences af this agreement with HMRC,
shareholders shauld cansult with their own professional advisors

IR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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The shares of TR Property Investment frust plc are iisted and
traded on the London Stock kxchange. Investors may purchase
shares thiough their stockbroker, bank or other f:nancial
itermediary.

et
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Investors may hold their investment in certificated farm Qur
registrars, Computershare operate a dealing service which enabies
investors o buy and seli shares quickly and easily online without
a broker or the need to open a trading account. Alleinatively the
Investor Centre allows mvestors ta manage portfclios quickly and
securely, update details and view balances without annual charges
Further details are avallabie by tontacting Computershare on 0370

707 1355 or visit www computershare com.

IR Praperty Investment Trust pic now offers sharehalders the
opportunity te purchase further shares In the company through
the Dividend Re investment Plan ("DRIP”) thraugh the reqistrar,
Compulershare Shareholders can obtamn further mformation an
the DRIP through therr secure wehsite wwwanvestarcentre co uk,
Gr by phoning 0370 707 1694. Charges do apply. Please note

that to gair access to your delails or register for the DRIP on the
Computershare site you will need the holder reference nurnber
stated an the top left hand comer of your share certificate

P, s Lew T e A [ .

A nurrber of barks and wealth management arganisations
provide Savings Schemes and 1SAs through wh ch UK clients car
invest :n TR Property Investment Irust plc

ISA and savirgs scheme providers do charge deaury and other
fees for operating the accounts, and investors should read the
lerms and Conditions provided by these companies 2nd ensure
that the charges best suil their planned investirent prohle maost
schemes carry annual chaiges but these vary between provider
and product where dealing charges apgly. in some cases these
are applied as a percentage of funds invested and others as a
flat charge The optimum way to held the shares will be different
for each investor depending upon the frequency and size of
investments to be made

Details are given below of two providers offering shares in
IR Propesty Investmert Trust, but there aie mary other cptions

Interactive :rvestor provide and acimrister a range of self-select
investiment plans, ircluding tax-acvantaged 1SAs ard SIPPs
(self-Invested Personal Pension}, and Tradirg Accounts

fFor more wnformation, rteract.ve investol can be cantacted on
(345 607 6001, or by visiting https //www i o Lk/

rteractive investar offer ipvesters i TR Property ard ather
rvestment trusts 3 free opt- i oniime shareholcer vot.rg ard
rfarmation service that erables investars tg rece ve sharehgicer
corermunicatons end, if they wish, to vote or the sharehclairgs
helc in their account

TR Picpeily :5 asc or the irteractive super &0 rated st

300 offer a rumber of Privete investar Pians, Investrment Trust
arc jurior 1ISAs and (Fidiers Ipvestment Paars ‘rvestments
can be irade as lurep sums of through regu:ar savings For mare

infarmation see :nside the back cover BMO tan be contacted on
(800 136 420, or wisIl www bmogam com

Please remember that the vailue of your investments and any
income from them may go down as well as up Past perfarmance
is not @ guide to future performance. You may not get back

the amount that you invest It you are in any doubt as to the
sultability of a plan or any investment available within a plan,
please take professianal advice.
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Foliowing the acquisition of Alliance Tryst Savings by interactive
investor, ATS self-directed accounts were transferred ta the
interactive mvestor platferm an 14th Qctaber 2019,

LRSI P TR T S ST

In 2012 BNP Paribas closed down the part of their business that
operated Savings Schemes and ISAs Investars were giver the
chowe of transferring their schemes to Allance Trust Savings
{("A15") of to a prowder of their own chaoice, or to dose therr
accounts and sell the haldings.

it investors did not respond to the letters from BNP Paribas, their
accounts wese transferrec to AIS

Foltowing the acquisition of Affrance frust Savings by interactive
nvestor, AlS self-directed accounts were transferred to the
ntefactive investor pistfgrm on 14 Qctober 2019
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Shareholders in a number of Investment irusts have been
approached as part of a share fraud where they are informed

of an opportunity te sell their shares as the company 15

subject ta a takeover bid Thisis not trye and 1s an attempt to
defraud shareholders Ihe share fraud alsc seeks paymert of a
‘commission” by shareholders to the parties carrying out the fraud

Sharehalders should remare alert to this type of scam and treat
with suspicon any contact by telephone offenirg an atiractive
investment opportunity, such as a prermurm price for your shares,
ar an attempt to convinge you that payment 1s required it arder
lo release 3 settiement for your shares. These frauds may also
offer ta sell your shares ir comparves which have little or ng
value or may cffer you borus shares. These so called "boiler
room” scams €an also involve ar attempt te obta:in your personal
and/or barxing information with which to commit dentity fraud

Ihe cal.ef may be fiiendly and reassuring cr they may take 3
rare yrgent tone, encouragng you 16 act auick'y atherwise you
covle lose money of mss oLt on 2 deal

It you kave been cortacted by ar unautharised firm regarding
your shases the FCA would | ke to hear from you You can report
er unauthor.sed firm Lsieq the FCA he pine on 0800 111 6768 or
by vising their webs te, wh ¢b also has cther useful infcrmation,
al www fta org Lk

if you rece ve eny ursalicited wrvestmenrt advice ma<e sure you
get the correct rame cf the person ard arganisation If the cails
persst, hang up If you dea with ar unauthonsed firm, you w 'l
nol be ehgbie to receive payment undei the F rangal Services
Compensatior Sthemre

Please be advised that the Board or the Manager would
never make unsolicited telephane calls of such a nature to
shareholders.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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You can use your ISA allowance to make an annual
tax-efficient investment of up to £20,000 for the
current tax year with a flump sum from £100 or reqular
savings from £25 a month. You can also transfer any
existing ISAs to us whilst maintaining the tax benefits.

BMO JUNIOR 1SA (JISA}

A tax efficient way to invest up to £9,000 per tax year
for a child. Contributions start from £100 lump sum or
£25 a month. ISAs or CFFs with other providers can be
transferred to BMO.

BRMO LIFETIME 15A (LISA)

For those aged 18-39, a Lifetime ISA could help towards
purchasing your first home or retirement in later life.
invest up to £4,000 for the current tax year and receive
a 25% Government bonus up to £1,000 per year. Invest
with a lump sum from £100 or regular savings from
£25 a month.

BMO CHILO TRUST FUND (K1)

If your child already has a CTF you can invest up to
£9.000 per birthday year, from £100 lump sum or £25 a
month. CTFs with other providers can be transferred

to BMO.

BALG GENFRAL INVESTMENT AC00UNST [GIAY
This is a flexible way to invest in our range

of Investment Trusts. There are no maximum
contributions, and investments ¢an be made from
£100 fump sum or £25 a month.

SMO HINIOR BVESTAMENT ALCOW N (1A}
This is a flexible way to save for a child in our

range of Investment Trusts. There are no maximum
contributions, and the plan can easily be set up under
bare trust (where the child is noted as the beneficial
owner) of kept in your name if you wish to retain
control over the investrment. Investments can be made
from a £100 lump sum or £25 a month per account.
You can also make additional lump sum top-ups at any
time from £100 per account.
The CTF and ISA atcgunts are opered by paents i the (hac’s naine

anc they heve d4ccess to the money at age 18 ““(alls mey be recarced or
meritored [ e ning 2nc gudl ty puiposes
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Annual management charges and other charges apply according to
the type of plan.

RIS R TS A R S N
v EGO+VAIL
v FA0+VAI
i o E25+VAT
You can pay the annual charge from your account, or by direct debit
(in addition 1o any annual subscription hmuts).
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£12 per fund (reduced to £0 for deals placed through the online BMO

Investar Portal} for ISA/GIA/LISA/JIA and JISA There are no dealing
charges on a CTF

Dealing charges apply when shares are bought or sold but not on the
reinvestment of dividends or the investment of manthly direct debits

Government stamp duty of 0 5% also applies on the purchase of
shares {where applicable)

The value of investments can go down as well 35 up and you may

not get back your oniginal investment 1ax benefits depend on your
indwidual crcumstances and tax allowances and rules may change.
Please ensure you have read the full lerms and Conditions, Privacy
Palicy and relevant Key reatures documents befare investing. For
requlatory purposes, please ensufe yau have read the Pre-sales {ost &
Charqes disclosure related to the product you are applying for, and the
relevant Key Information Documents (KIDs) for the mvestment trusts
you want to invest Into

R

To open a new BMO plan, apply cnline at bmogam.com/fapply

Cnhine apphcations are not available if you are transfernng an existing
plan with another provider 10 BMO, or if you are applying for a new
plan in more than cne name but paper appilcations are available at
bmoinvestments.co uk/docurmnents o1 by contacting 8MO
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By post:

You can also invest in the trust through ontine dealing platforms for
private mnveslors that offer share deaiing and ‘SAs. Companies nclude
Barclays Stockbrokers, EQi, Halifax, Hargreaves Lansdown,
HSBC, Interactive investor, Lloyds Bank, The Share Centre

bmomvestments o uk
¢ facebook com/bmainvestmentsuk

0345 500 3030, 900arm 5 00pm, weekdays, calls may be recorded
or manitored for traiming and qualty purposes

HMO Asset Maragement Limited s authorsed ana requiated by the Financ a Conduct ALthar ty ard 18 < imeimber of BMO Global Assel Maniagement EMEA of wh ck the

L limdte parert company s the Bank af Martred 737510 156 05/2° UK
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TR Property Investment
Trust plc is managed by

BMO M | A part of BMO Finandial Group




